
SELECTMEN’S MEETING AGENDA* 

Donn B. Griffin Room, Town Hall 

732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 

Executive Session 5:45 P.M. 

Regular Meeting 6:30 P.M. 

Monday, November 22, 2021 

 

*As required by Open Meeting Law, you are hereby informed that the Town will be video and audio taping as well as live 

broadcasting this public meeting.  In addition, anyone in the audience who plans to video or audio tape this meeting must 

notify the Chairman prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Pursuant to MGL,c.30A section 21 (a)(3) to discuss with respect to collective bargaining for all town unions 

if an open session would have a detrimental effect on the town’s bargaining position and the chair so 

declares; 

B. Executive Session pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, sec. 21(a)(2)  to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for 

negotiations with non-union personnel and to conduct contract negotiations with non-union personnel. 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Vote to approve a Caleb Chase request in the amount of $1000.00 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Update from Brain Scheld on the Harwich fund 

B. Annual Committee Meetings:  

a. Harwich Cultural Council 

b. Finance Committee 

C. Presentation of the current financial assessment of the town in preparation for the 2022 Annual Town 

Meeting  

D. Discussion and possible vote on the development of a general policy statement to guide the Town 

Administrator in developing the budget requests for Fiscal Year 2023 

E. Discussion and possible vote to support the proposed amendments to Section VII and Section IX of the 

Monomoy Regional School District Agreement  

F. Discussion and possible vote to approve the proposed draft proclamation for the 8th Grade Blue Team D-

block Civics class Project Citizen with Rob Mador of Bridges for the Fallen   

G. Discussion and possible vote to approve the private plow rate change as recommended by the Town 

Administrator  

H. Discussion and possible vote to approve the event application for Christmas in Harwich – December 3, 4 

and 5, 2021 – Pending Building Department Approval  

I. Discussion and possible vote to authorize the Chair to sign the Recycling Dividends Program grant in the 

amount of $9,900 

J. Update from the Town Administrator in regards to the tax liability working group 

 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Updates from the Town Administrator: 

1. 5 Bells Neck Road  

2. 203 Bank Street 

3. 0 Seth Whitefield Road  

4. 77 Willow Street 

5. Pleasant Lake Avenue Project   

6. 276 Queen Anne Road 

 B. Update, discussion and possible vote on 2022 Community Preservation Committee (CPC) application -  H3 

Beautify Harwich Center 

 

VIII. CONTRACTS 

A. Discussion and possible vote to approve a contract with Motorola Solutions for $177,400.90 for the purchase of 

portable radios for the police and fire departments.   

B. Discussion and possible vote to approve the agreement for professional engineering services for Comprehensive 

Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP) Revisions by GHD for $229,000.00 

C. Discussion and possible vote to approve the agreement for professional engineering services for Route 28 Sewer 

Main Design by GHD for $192,546.00 

 

IX. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 

X. SELECTMEN’S REPORT 

 

XI. CORRESPONDENCE 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

*Per the Attorney General’s Office: The Board of Selectmen may hold an open session for topics not reasonably 

anticipated by the Chair 48 hours in advance of the meeting following “New Business.” If you are deaf or hard of hearing 

or a person with a disability who requires an accommodation contact the Selectmen’s Office at 508-430-7513. 

 

Authorized Posting Officer: Posted by: ______________________________ 

 Town Clerk 

   Date:  

Danielle Delaney, Executive Assistant  November 18, 2021 



 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 



ANNUAL 
COMMITTEE 

PRESENTATIONS 



 

 

Board of Selectman Report 2021 
 

 

The Harwich Cultural Council (HCC) is a town-appointed committee with a goal to enrich the 

cultural lives of our citizens. We are one of 329 local councils who are charged with allocating 

grant funds for community-based projects, as well as ticket subsidies for our students and seniors 

to theaters, museums, and educational venues in the arts, humanities, and interpretive sciences. 

The HCC is annually funded in part by the Massachusetts Cultural Council (MCC) and by the 

Town of Harwich. Additionally, HCC fundraising and private gifts provide us with discretionary 

monies which can be used for programs, activities, and events that meet MCC and HCC criteria. 

 

The Committee 

The Harwich Cultural Council, with a maximum of nine members, has seven active members with 

two vacancies. As of September, we resumed in-person meetings, held monthly on the second 

Thursday of the month at 4:00 p.m. at the Harwich Cultural Center.  

 

The HCC elected Bernadette Waystack as Chair, Christine Banks as Treasurer and Sharon Moore 

as Grants Coordinator last spring.  Dinah Lane was re-elected Secretary. Additional council 

members at this time include Peter Hollis, Jackie Leach and Nina Schuessler. Member Charles 

Barnes has stepped down to pursue other areas of service with our thanks for his time on the 

council. Due to term limits, Tina Games has completed 6 years and is no longer eligible to serve. 

Our profound gratitude must be noted for her years of leadership on all fronts.  

 

Grant Awards 

Our local cultural grants program continues to be our main focus and we are always looking for 

new and innovative ways to get the word out to members of our community. This year the Mass 

Cultural Council instituted a new platform for applying and reviewing grants, “Smart Simple”. All 

applications are now online only and the process, while still being worked out, has proved to be 

user-friendly for both council members and applicants.  

We have instituted social media accounts on Facebook and Instagram in order to expand our 

outreach and communications to the community in as many ways as possible.  With some COVID 

restrictions easing, we look forward the opportunity for more events and programs returning to 

live, in-person experiences.  Council members hope to resume attending such events and hosting an 

awards reception in the near future as well. 

 

For fiscal year 2022, the Harwich Cultural Council received 23 grant applications totaling 

$14,725 in funding requests. We have begun the review process to determine which projects meet 

the HCC criteria for funding and will best serve the community of Harwich and its cultural needs.  

We will conclude in early December with deliberations over which projects meet our criteria and 



the amounts to be funded. Applications have been submitted in all three of the categories which fall 

under our requirements – arts, humanities, and interpretive sciences. Successful candidates for 

FY22 awards to be funded will be notified in writing before mid-February and will have one full 

year to complete their program, project or event. 

 
 

Goals for 2022 

 

 Finalization of the Cultural District designation for Harwich Port and Harwich Center is 

back on track with MCC.  The HCC will continue to partner with the Town of Harwich 

and the Harwich Chamber of Commerce on this with an eye towards it becoming official 

in the spring of 2022. 

 It is our hope to resume the annual grant receptions in person at the Harwich Cultural 
Center to honor both our past 2020/2021 and present grant recipients.  Grantees are 

typically asked to give an overview of their projects at that time.  

 The HCC eventually will continue with exploration of new fundraising opportunities and 

will work in collaboration with local artists. 

 The HCC will continue its efforts to increase public awareness of cultural activities in our 
town through a variety of marketing approaches, including our Facebook and Instagram 

pages, and through collaborations with the Harwich Cultural Center, Harwich Chamber of 

Commerce and Channel 18. 

 Our annual grants information session has become a comprehensive video webinar 
presented by the MCC on their new “Smart Simple” platform. It is available at any time 

on our website and will be updated for next year’s grant cycle as needed. 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

Bernadette Waystack, Chair  

Harwich Cultural Council  

November 18, 2021 



Finance Committee Annual Report 

November 22, 2021 

 

In the Town of Harwich, it is the Finances Committee’s responsibility to receive, 

review, analyze and make recommendations to the citizens of Harwich at the 

Annual Town Meeting on the Budgets and Warrant Articles received from the 

Selectman and the Town Administrator. The various budgets consist of the Town 

Operating Budget, Schools (both Monomoy Regional School District and Cape Cod 

Regional Technical School), Water/Wastewater budget and all Warrant Articles 

(both monetary and non-monetary).  

During the Budget Cycle the Finance Committee holds Public Meetings and Public 

Hearings on the various Budgets and Warrant Articles. The Finance Committee 

may at times invite Department Heads and Warrant Articles holders in for further 

explanation on their Budgets and Warrant Article requests.  

 Committee members: Karen Doucette, Mark Ameres, Daniel Tworek, 

Angelo La Mantia, Thomas Sherry, Dale Kennedy (Clerk), Brian Weiner 

(Vice-Chair), Jon Chorey (Chair). Currently there is one opening and working 

with Town Moderator on this. 

 All members are sworn in and have completed State Ethics Training. 

 The Finance Committee’s responsibilities do not require review/updating 

currently. 

 Member attendance at meetings has been good. We have not cancelled 

any meetings due to a lack of a quorum. 

 All meeting Agendas (with back-up material) have been posted and we are 

up to date with posting of minutes. 

Discussion Topics 

 Uncollected Property Taxes 

 Approved but unspent Warrant Articles 

 A plan on the use, and continued use of the Cultural Center 



I realize that this meeting is not the time to discuss these topics in detail. I also 

realize that there is currently progress being made on 2 of these topics; those 

being Uncollected Property Taxes and Approved but unspent Warrant Articles. On 

the third topic. “A plan on the use and continued use of the Cultural Center”. I 

believe we are currently in; year 4 of a 5 year “study on the use of the Cultural 

Center”. The Finance Committee has not seen a plan on the use of the Cultural 

Center. This coming Budget Fiscal Year 2023 the Town is asking for Capital for the 

Cultural Center of $230.000.00 for a generator and boiler. In Fiscal Year2025 the 

Town is asking for $200,000.00 for windows and in Fiscal Year 2026 the Town is 

asking for $200,000.00 for additional windows.  

The Finance Committee feels that this needs to be discussed further with clear 

goals and objectives for the Cultural Center. 

I have attached a couple of Excel worksheet forms for the Finance Committee and 

eventually the Citizens of Harwich to better understand the first 2 topics  

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jon Chorey 

Chair Finance Committee 

 

 



Uncollected Property Taxes 

TREND CHART - UNCOLLECTED PROPERTY TAXES (month by month) 

(month/calendar year)> Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 , May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 

Total Unpaid Tax 
Number of Tax Bills Unpaid 
Total Unpaid Interest 
Total Unpaid Fees/Penalties 
Number of Overdue Bills "Paid in Full" 
Number of Parcels with tax liens 
Number of Parcels in Foreclosure Process 
Number of Parcels with Owners Unknown 
Number of Parcels with Unknown Location 

Number of Miscellaneous Parcels 

NOTES: these numbers can be color-coded to show how they are trending month to month 
Example: RED - trending up (getting worse), GREEN - trending down (getting better), BLACK - no change 



Uncollected Property Taxes 

DETAILED CHART - UNCOLLECTED PROPERTY TAXES 

Property Information Outstanding Tax Information Treasurer/Collector Actions Taken to Date 
LOCATION OWNER PROPERTY TAX LATE INTEREST Date Action 

PARCEL (ADDRESS) NAME TYPE DATE TAX DUE DUE FEES DUE TOTAL DUE Action(s) Taken Taken 

E
X

A
M

P
LE

 

12345 10 Main Street Joe Smith Land & Bldg 6/30/2018 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 $ 300.00 1,325.00 1) Final Notice Sent 6/15/2018 
2) Tax Lien placed on parcel 12/31/2018 
3) Sent to Attorney to begin foreclosure 3/31/2019 

 4) Foreclosure Started 9/1/2019 
5) Foreclosure Completed 11/1/2019 

 4  ) 4 



Uncollected Property Taxes 

Term Definition (Validate definitions with Treasurer/Collector - Amy Bullock) 

'Parcel 
Location (Address) 

;Owner Name 
; 
Property Type 

Parcel unique identifier 

:Parcel address 
'Parcel owner 

;Land or Building 

Tax Due :.Overdue tax amount due 
Interest Due :?% of interest applied since Tax Late Date 

:Fees Due :Attorney Fees, Penalty Fees 

;Tax Late Date  The date taxes were deemed late r .. 
Total Due Equals = Tax Due + Interest Due + Fees Due 

Actions Taken 

Owners Unknown 

Steps Treasurer/Collector will take to collect overdue taxes: (Refer to a published tax policy, assuming these are 
the steps Amy is following??) For example, Step 1: Final Notice Sent , Step 2: Tax Lien on Parcel, Step 3: Sent to 
Attorney to Begin Forclosure, Step 4: Foreclosure Started, Step 5: Foreclosure Completed, etc 

List each official action taken on a parcel and the date the specific action was taken 

?? 

Miscellaneous Parcels ?? 

Location Unknown i?? , 



Approved But Unspent Warrant Articles 

SUMMARY - TOTAL APPROVED BUT UNSPENT WARRANT ARTICLES 

DEPT NAME 

Cemetary 

DEPT HEAD NAME 

Golf 

Historical 

Library 

TOTAL AMOUNT 

APPROVED 

TOTAL AMOUNT 

SPENT TO DATE 

TOTAL 

ENCUMBRANCES 

TOTAL UNSPENT TO 

DATE 

Police 
Fire 

Public Works 
Waste Water 

11/17/2021 1 Aproved But Unspent Warrants 11-11-21 (002) 



Approved But Unspent Warrant Articles 

TREND CHART - APPROVED BUT & UNSPENT WARRANT ARTICLES (month by month) 

TOTAL UNSPENT TO DATE 

TOTAL $ AMOUNT 

APPROVED Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 
Cemetary 

ATM <date> <article It>
•  

ATM <date> <article tt> 
ATM <date> <article #> 

• 

ATM <date> <article #> 

Cemetary TOTAL:  - 

 1 
, 

 . 

1 

- I $ -E 

r r 

, r 
,. „ 

f r 

$ - [ $ 

T 

, 

•  .c 

I 

- I 

1 1 

, , 

. • 

7 7 1 . 

I -I $ - 

r 1 

4. , 

„ . 

f 7 

II  -1$

1 

, 

., 

- I $ 
Golf 

ATM <date> <article #> 
ATM <date> <article #> 

ATM <date> <article #> 

Golf TOTAL: $ - 

i 
• 4

;

 I 

$ -I 

. 

$ 

i. il•
; 
t 

$ 

7 7 
t t 

$ -1 $ 1 $ 

r 

L 

$ I 

',
:. 

$ - $ -1 $ i 

r , 
- , 

$ 1 

1 
1 

$ 1 

Historical 

ATM <date> <article #>  
ATM <date> <article #> 

ATM <date> <article #> 

Historical TOTAL: $ - $ - 

: 
t

: 

$ - $ - 

$ - 

.
: 

4  

f, ., 

  ,  T • 

$ - 

; 4 
 : : 

: 1 

; 4 
 

: 

$ - 

$ - 

 
1 

$ - 

, . 
, .

,. , 

$ - 

; ; 
: ; 
1 : 
. 

'   4  ., 
 ',.  

',. ; 

$ - 

. 

., 

„ 

$ - 

1 
: 
1 

, 

i 

$ _ 

$ - 

$ _ 

 .. 

•  : 

$ - 

:- 
; 
;" 

$ - $ - 

. 
, 

i. 

$ - 

Library 

ATM <date> <article #>  
ATM <date> <article #> 

ATM <date> <article #> 

Library TOTAL: $ i i imiodiet iit udi;mili ii i ii"i"i memi lii i ii l isimal -mil idaii

• 4 
•   :  
 1 

• 1  
 : 
 ; 

$ - 

; ; ; 
: : 
. L 
, 

 : 
1  , 
. 

f 

t 

$ - 

Police 

ATM <date> <article #> 
ATM <date> <article 4*> 
ATM <date> <article #> 

Police TOTAL: $ - 

`,  

$ - 

- 
: 
1, 

$ - 

1 

$ - $ - 

Fire . • I t I . . 1 • 

11/17/2021 1 Aproved But Unspent Warrants 11-11-21 (002) 



Approved But Unspent Warrant Articles 

DETAILED CHART - APPROVED BUT UNSPENT WARRANT ARTICLES 

Warrant Information Next Steps Actions Taken to Date 

ATM Date 

Approved 

Warrant Name & 

Number 

Owning 

Dept. Name 

Dept. Head 

Name 

Dollar Amount 

Approved ($) 

Spent to 

Date Encumbrances 

Total 

Available 

Budget Next Steps 

Projected Spend 

FY'21 Action(s) Taken 

Date Action 

Taken 

 , 

11/17/2021 1 Aproved But Unspent Warrants 11-11-21 (002) 



Approved But Unspent Warrant Articles 

Term Definition (Review with Carol Coppola) 

:- 
Encumbrances ?? 
ATM, :Annual Town Meeting . 
'Add all terms from prior spreadsheets 



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
Phone (508) 430-7513 

Fax (508) 432-5039 

Joseph F. Powers, Town Administrator 
Meggan M. Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 

MEMO 
TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

RE: 

732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 

Board of Selectmen 

Joseph F. Powers, T dministrator 

Meggan M. Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 
Carol Coppola, Finance Director 

Current financial assessment of the town 

DATE: Monday, November 22, 2021 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the Board of Selectmen with a current financial 
assessment of the town to assist the Board in the development of a general policy statement to 
guide me in developing budget requests for the ensuing fiscal year. 

Estimated revenues 
The town's assumptions regarding General Fund revenues for Fiscal Year 2022 are on track 
based on data available for the first quarter of the fiscal year. The town brought in 29% of 
general fund revenues in Q1 (July, August, September) and data for October and November (as 
of 11/15/21) show the town is trending towards reaching 50% of our goal as we near the 
midpoint of the fiscal year. 

Budget planning against anticipated headwinds 
As you know, operating budgets for the town (comprised mainly of departmental and/or program 
groups supporting the everyday activities of the town) consist of personnel costs (salaries/wages) 
and operating expenses (expenses). Generally speaking, personnel costs account for roughly 
73% of the overall departmental operating budget. 

The town is presently in negotiations with all eight (8) of the collective bargaining associations 
with six of the eight agreements expiring on June 30, 2022. As such, I recommend that salaries 
and wages be established during the budgeting process at the present base levels. This will also 
impact on non-union employees covered by the Personnel Bylaws. 

Other salary elements such as longevity rates and step increases will remain at the levels at 
which they were bargained. 

Based on the unknown impact of the collective bargaining process on salaries and wages and 
being aware of several budgetary "headwinds" (which I will reference ahead), I recommend that 
departmental operating expenses be level funded during the budgeting process. 

1 (Page 



As you may recall from the past two years' budgeting processes, I rely upon the Department of 
Revenue's definition of a level funded budget which is: 

"A "level funded" budget appropriates the same amount of money to each municipal 
department and is tantamount to a budget cut (reduction) from the prior year 
appropriation, Even under level funding, however, increases in mandated costs and other 
fixed expenses must be covered, usually at the expense of the general government 
operating budget."Source: Department of Revenue, Technical Services 

Anticipated headwinds 
As we approach our Annual Town Meeting, there are several budgetary impacts either from past 
years' votes or current events that will impact on the overall budget over which the town may 
exercise little or no control. Such headwinds include: 

• Debt exclusions from past years — one example is the debt related to the Phase II 
construction related to the CWMP which will impact on Fiscal Year 2023 as well as 
future years; 

• Increases in municipal health insurance rates — I am taking a conservative approach 
to the rate growth assumption after consulting with our Finance Director. We plan on a 
6% increase in health insurance rates which will be determined within this fiscal year by 
the Cape Code Municipal Health Group of which the town is a member; 

• Public education assessments- While we have been discussing the assessment 
mechanism of the Monomoy Regional School District wherein we have experienced 
rapid growth in Harwich's assessment over the years, we now anticipate an increase in 
the town's assessment for the Cape Cod Regional Vocational School District's budget 
in Fiscal Year 2023; 

• External impacts — We know that our local economy as well as the national economy 
is facing inflation at rates not seen in thirty years as well as one of the tightest job markets 
in years. Additionally, as the workforce population ages and reaches retirement, we may 
see a double-edged impact with more retirees making Harwich their year-round home 
(therein increasing the need for services) as well as more Harwich employees retiring 
(therein creating vacancies in a tight labor market). 

I hope this preliminary assessment is helpful to the Board as you progress to the discussion of a 
general policy statement to guide the budget development process over the coming weeks. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

2 I g e 



Monomoy Regional 

School District 

Agreement Proposed 

Amendments 



The following document, 

Regional Agreement as 

approved 8 11 21, is the Redline 

draft of proposed changes to 

Section VII and IX. 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF CHATHAM AND HARWICH WITH 
RESPECT TO THE FORMATION OF A REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Whereas the Towns of Chatham and Harwich, towns in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 
hereinafter referred to as "member towns", desire-to ereatehave created a regional school 
district. hereinafter referred to as "District",  consistent with the terms of Chapter 71 of the 
Massachusetts General Laws.;  (G.L.), as amended, the member towns, in consideration of the 
mutual promises contained herein, agree as follows: 

Section I. MEMBERSHIP OF THE REGIONAL DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

A. Name and Composition. -1 The name of the tfansitien-pefiod spoken of in Section XX 
Ilefein-H-40-District shall be named-by-the intefimMonomov Regional School Committee, utilizing a 
maj-ei-ity-wate consistent with Section 1,B below. District. The Regional District School Committee, 
hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Committee", shall consist of eight (8) members, four 
(4) of whom reside in the Town of Chatham and four (4) of whom reside in the Town of 
Harwich. 

B. Weighted Voting. Because of the disparity in the population of the two member  towns, each 
of the four (4) Committee members. hereinafter sometimes referred to as "member towns,- from 
Harwich will have one full vote on all matters and each of the four (4) Committee members from 
Chatham will have 50% of a vote on all matters, for a total of six (6) votes. F-e-FUnless otherwise 
required by law or regulation. for a motion which requires a majority vote to pass, a majority (i.e., 
greater than 50%) of the six (6) votes (which must be no fewer than 3.5 votes) must be cast in the 
affirmative and at least one Committee member from each of the two member  towns must vote in 
the affirmative. For the passage of a motion requiring a two-thirds vote (such as the passage of the 
annual budget), at least two thirds (i.e., no fewer than 4 votes) of the six (6) total votes must be 
cast in the affirmative. Should a shift in the respective populations of the member towns, based on 
the most recent decennial federal census figures, cause an impermissible disparity based on one-
person, one-vote principles, the Committee will act to address the disparity via the amendment 
process. 

C. Election of Members. Each member must reside in the member town thatwhiell she or he 
represents. Each member must be elected consistent with the process for the election of town 
officials in said town and will be elected to open seats during the annual election or special 
election in said town. The term of each elected member will begin on the first business day after 
his or her election and after being sworn in by the respective Town Clerk. A member who has 
not otherwise vacated his or her seat will continue to serve until his or her successor is elected 
and sworn. 

-At every annual election, exeopt at the initial-elec-tion-ef-the-Regiena4-gelleel-DistrietGommitte-
when-the-preeedm.e-sp-eGified-below in subsection E  (1Mtial-gtaggeFing-ef-Teims)-will-be-applied, there 
shall be elected one or two members of the Committee from the Town of Chatham and one or 
two members of the Committee from the Town of Harwich as is necessary to maintain the 
membership of the Committee in accordance with subsection A (Name and Composition) 
above. 

Client Matter 28276/1:1000l/A7247679.D0CXA7246522.DOCX 



D. Length of Terms. With the sole exception of the initial election of the Regional School District
Committee by the procedure specified below in subsection B-Ønitial Staggering of Terms),
theLenuth of Terms. The term of office of each elected member shall be three years, and a 
member will serve until his/her successor is elected and sworn in by the respective Town 
Clerk-  unless the member has otherwise vacated his or her seat. 

E. Initial Staggering of Terms. For the purpose of sta_ ering the terms-ef the initial Regional School District
C-GPali-}ittee-&14yrthe-f&l-lewing-preeeth+Fe-will-aPplY4 

In regard to each of the member to s, the two-f2) candidates receiving the highest and-second highest 
number of votes will be elected to three (3) year-t erms• tho candidate receiving tlh e thing highest n.,,.,,ber of 

be clooted to a one (1) year term. 

E. FVacancies. Any vacancy occurring on the Committee  for any cause shall be filled by 
the local Select Board/Board of Selectmen and the remaining Committee members from the 
member town where the vacancy occurs. The members of the Select Board  Board of 
Selectmen shall meet in joint session with the remaining members of the Regional School 
District Committee from the townmember town where the vacancy occurs. A majority vote 
of the members of this joint session shall be required to fill the vacant position. Such 
replacement shall serve until the next annual town election. At that next annual election, a 
person will be elected to serve the balance of the unexpired term, if any, which had become 
vacant. 

F. (Orir,anization. At the first scheduled meeting of the Committee after the annual 
election of all member towns, the Committee shall organize in accordance with 
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 71, Section 16A, known as "Regional School 
Committee, Organization". In addition, the Committee shall fix the times and place for its 
regular meetings for the new term, provide for the calling of special meetings upon written or 
electronic notice to all its members, and appoint appropriate sub- committees and other 
officers,, 

Section II. POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

The Committee shall possess all of the powers and duties  conferred by-lawand imposed upon 
regional school district committees *i-a-C3,,L-,G4aptel -7-1 sec-ti-en-1-6-anii-atheizwi-s-eby law,
including, but not limited to  the power . those powers and duties as are specified in G.L. c. 71. 
Section 16-161. inclusive, as any such laws may be amended from time  to acquire property and/or_ 
time, subject to enter into leases for land and/or buildings. Dui4ng the period July 1, 2012 to June 
30, 2013, the Committee-s4a44-1+ave-the-power-tetei-f-efm-all-ef--the-end-ef--theear--Feper-ting-
funetiens-that-nerally-wauld  have been performed by the Chatham School ComrnittccanY local 
acceptance requirements, and the Harwich School Committee,by this Agreement. 

Client Mattcr 28276/00001/A7247679,DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



Section III. QUORUMS. VOTES AND GOVERNANCE 

A. A quorum to conduct business shall consist of five (5) members, with no fewer than two 
members being present from each of the member towns. A number less than the majority may 
vote to adjourn, but shall not take any other action. 

B. On all issues requiring a vote of the Committee, a simple majority vote (i.e., no fewer than 
3.5 of the six (6) votes as spoken to in Section I, subsection B) shall be required to pass all 
motions, except as specified elsewhere in this Agreement, or as required by statute  or regulation. 

C. The Committee shall annually elect officers at the first regularly scheduled meeting held 
after the last of the elections in the member towns. Such officers shall exercise the powers 
expressed and implied in G.L. Chapter 71, section 16A. 

D. A Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson shall be elected  by ballot from among the 
Committee's membership. The Committee will have as standard practice that the position of 
Chairperson will rotate annually between the member towns. For example, in the first year that the 
1.4is,t4c-t-i&-iff-existenee, the GliaiiTerson will be-elected without regard to when e;

once w;,, then be main aired i fl t iro years. By a two-thirds (2/3) vote, and with at least one 
Committee member from each of the member towns voting in the affirmative, the Committee may 
in any given year deviate from this standard practice. The Vice-Chairperson in any given year 
shall be drawn from the members who reside in the member town different from that of the 
Chairperson. 

E. The Committee shall elect a Secretary who may or may not be a member of the Committee's 
membership. 

F. The Committee shall appoint a Treasurer who shall not be a member of the Committee. 

G. Any action voted by the Committee thatwhieli directly and specifically affects the 
elementary school(s) in only one member  town will require that three of the four members of the 
Committee from the member  town in which the affected elementary school(s) is/are located vote 
in support of that action. 

Section IV. TYPE OF SCHOOL DISTRICT AND TRANSFER OF ASSETS 

A. The Regien-al-ge44,9@-1 District shall provide educational programs for public school students 
who reside in the member towns and who are attending grades pre-kindergarten through and 
including grade 12. The Regional  School District Committee, as established consistent with 
Section I (Membership of the Regional  School District School Committee) above, is authorized in 
its discretion to establish and maintain other educational programs, including, but not limited to, 
vocational-technical educational programs consistent with G.L Chapter 74, and is authorized in its 
discretion to join or form educational collaboratives consistent with G.L. Chapter 40, s. 4E. 

B. The Regie elleol District may, at the Committee's discretion, include pre-kindergarten, 
and shall include all grades from K-12. 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.D0CXA7246522.DOCX 



C. The elementary schools shall serve students in grades K-4, and, at the Committee's 
discretion, pre-kindergarten. 

D. The middle school(s)/high school(s) shall serve students in grades 5-12. 

E. Where the term "fifesehee4pre-kindergarten" is mentioned in this Agreement, it is done 
in order to permit the Committee, at some future date, the discretion to provide "universal" 
pfeseheel-elassespre-kinderuarten classes in addition to providim! pre-kindergarten to 
(wank/it- g students with disabilities. 

F. The Committee may, in its discretion, alter the elementary/secondary grade 
eenfigiwatieliconfigurations spoken to above. 

G. At the time of the creation of the District, any and all money held in so called "revolving funds," in gift 
aeeetintsr iii-gFant-aeeeonts7-£4-413-studeat-a4ivity-aeeettiatsififfids-thet-ar-e-hel le-friember-towns4er-the-
befiefi4-44-thei respeetive-seheel-departmeats-Nv4-14-be-c-eaveyed4e-the-PistFiet-te-19e44444-zed-fer-edueatiena-1-
eficibier-extfast+H-ietilefiitifpeses-een-s-i&tent-with-the-purpeses-feEwhieh4he-re*el-N4ng-ftmdf, or accounts were 
emited:—Additienally7scheel-felated--equipment7matei-ialr  and-supplies-that-are-awned-hy-the-seheel-
depaftmeftts-ef-the-member-tewns-at-the-time-ef-the-ereatien-ef-the-P464fic- e-senv-eyed-te-the-P-4Fiet, 

Section V. LOCATION AND OWNERSHIP OF SCHOOLS 

A. All Re-gien-a4-District schools shall be located within the geographical limits of the District. 
The District school buildings shall be located on sites owned by, or leased to, the District. 

B. 4t-is-the-iiltent-ef-the-member-tewas-te-seek-te-lau-i-4d-a-new441-seheel-and-te-renevate-a-d44€141e-seheel-
with all due alacrity.

€—There shall be no less than one elementary school in each member town. Students in the 
elementary grades shall attend schools in their towns of residence, except in special cases as 
defined by the Committee. 

D. C. Each member town shall retain ownership of its elementary school buildings and grounds 
that are in existence at the time of the formation of the District and shall lease the same to the 
District for the sum of one dollar per year. Each lease shall be for a term of up to twenty (20) 
years, with said term to be established by the Distric- School Con mittee. 
on the date when the Committee completes the transition period spelcen to in- Section XX and comes into 
full existence. . The term shall commence July 1. 2012. The leases shall contain provisions for an 
extension of up to 20 years at the option of the Committee. The leases shall contain provisions 
authorizing the District to repair, improve, alter, remodel and maintain the buildings or any part 
thereof, at the District's expense. Said leases shall not prevent the use of the buildings or 
premises by the respective owner  member towns, upon approval of the Regional School District 
Committee; such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Each lease involving a member 
town may include such other terms as may be agreed upon by the Select Board/Board of 
Selectmen of that member town and by the Committee, who shall execute the lease for the 
member towns and the District, respectively. 

The Town of Chatham shall lease to the Committee the land and buildings (at the option of 
the Committee) presently known as the Elementary School, as well as the land and/or the 
buildings (at the option of the Committee) comprising the e-effibill-ed-Middle School/ High Schoe4,-, 
Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.D0CXA7246522DOCX 



The terms expressed in pafa-gFaphSection V, PC shall apply equally to this paragraph. 

FL,-E The Town of Harwich, shall lease to the Committee the land and/or buildings (at the option 
of the Committee) presently known as the Elementary School,  as4vell-as-the-land-andAar-the 
INA44-d-ings-(--at-the-eptien-of-the-gonN*ittee)-pfesently-known-as-the-Mi4214-e-grehee47-ae€1-t-he-lanfl-anitier-the-
lattildings-fat-The-eption-of-the-Gen4m-i-ttee)-presently-knewn-as-the-High-Sehool. The teiffistenn
expressed in paragraphSection V,4) C shall apply equally-to this paragraph. 

G. The leases of all-of-the above referenced school buildings should be signed by the date the District-
Committee completes the transition-period spoken to in Section XX and comes into ftill existence. 

14,-F. At whatever point in time thatthe land and/or buildings that are leased by a member town to 
the Committee ceases to be needed by the District, the District School Committee shall vote to 
declare said land and/or buildings as surplus, and the custody and control of said land and/or 
buildings shall revert to the owner member  town. 

1-.-G. Payments from future leases of DistrictRegioilal property shall be paid to the 
Regional SG1440.1-District. 

Section VI. TRANSPORTATION 

The Committee shall set District transportation policy. School transportation shall be provided 
by the R-egiertal-SeheA-District, and the cost thereof shall be apportioned among the member 
towns as defined in Section IX. 

Section 'VII. BUDGET 

A. The Committee shall prepare an annual operating and maintenance budget using accounts 
itemized in conformance with the chart of accounts utilized and required by the Massachusetts 
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) or its successor. 

B. The Regional School  District's budgetary process, and the timing of and method of 
appropriation of funds in regard thereto, shall be governed by the provisions of G. L. c. 71 
§16(m) and c. 71 §16B and other applicable provisions of G. L. c. 71 and any special laws 
or regulations relating thereto. 

C. The Committee shall prepare a budget on a fiscal year basis for the District in the following 
manner: 

1. The Regional District budget process shall be initiated annually on or about October 1 
and shall provide opportunity for the  Select Board/Board of Selectmaen and Finance 
Committee of each member town to have input into its preparation. On or about 
January 15th, the Committee shall complete its proposed budget for the ensuing year. 
Said proposed budget shall be approved by majority vote, with at least one 
Committee member from each member town voting in the affirmative. -S-a-i4The 
District shall submit its proposed budget shall be posted in to the Town-44a4-1Seleet 
Board/Board of each memb©r town, shall be provided to each member town's public library, 
and-shall-he-submitte4-to-the-Selectmen and Finance Committee members of each 
member town, and provide a copy to each member town's public library and  tTown 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



eClerk's office for posting,. 

2. Said proposed budget shall contain a notice stating when and where a public hearing 
will be held. The public hearing shall be held in any District school building. The 
notice of the public hearing shall be posted in all member towns and published 
consistent with G.L. section 38N in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the region. 

3. Upon request of the Finance Committee and/or the Select Board/Board of Selectmen 
of any member town, the Committee shall arrange to meet with such Finance 
Committee and/or Select Board/Board of Selectmen for the purpose of discussing 
the proposed budget. Said proposed budget shall be in reasonable detail, itemized at 
least as follows: central administration, expenses of instruction, transportation, 
operation of school plant, maintenance of school plant, capital outlay, and debt and 
interest charges, unless the Finance Committees and Select Board/-Board of 
Selectmen from each member town and the Committee subsequently agree to some 
other methodologv. All non-recurring expenditures shall be itemized. Enrollment, 
staffing, total expenditures and assessments for the past five (5) years shall be 
included. The Finance Committee or the Select Board/Board of Selectmen of a 
member town may request further information. 

4, Consistent with G.L. ce.Ghepter 71, section 16B the Committee shall adopt by a 
two-thirds (2/3) vote of all its members a budget with such changes as may 
have resulted from conferences and/or the public hearing. Within thirty (30) 
days from the date on which the budget is adopted, the Treasurer of the District 
shall certify and transmit  to the Treasurer of each member town that 
member town's assessed share of such budget. 

5. The budget and assessments shall be so constructed as to show debt service, 
transportation, operating, and capital costs. It shall also list all sources of revenue 
used to reduce operating costs as described in Section IX. 

6. The process and the requirements for the approval or disapproval of the budget by the 
member towns will be consistent with the terms and conditions of eheptefChapter 71, 
section 16B18 B as well as 603 CMR section 41.00, et seq, as those terms and 
conditions may be amended. In the event of a conflict between any provision of law 
or regulations and this Agreement, the law and/or regulations shall prevail. 

7. The budget will be prepared net of School Choice revenue. School choice revenue 
will be proportionally allocated to offset each school's budget based on school's 
average ratio of enrollment at that school for the preceding three years on October 
as reported to DESE. Each school's ratio of enrollment shall mean the ratio that that 
school's enrollment bears to the total district enrollment. 

Section VIII. BUDGETARY DEFINITIONS 

The budget for the operation of the District's Schools, including payments of principal and 
interest on bonds and other evidence of indebtedness issued by the District, shall be apportioned 
to the member towns via the method set out in Section IX and subject to the following definitions: 

Clicnt Matto' 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



A. Budget 

As defined by this document, the budget is the amount of money voted by the Committee to 
finance the District schools,  inclusive of aid from the Co and thatwhiel4 will be assessed to the 
member towns. 

B. The budget shall be comprised of various costs, each as herein defined as follows: 

1. "Operating Costs" include all costs not included in capital costs, transportation costs, 
or debt service, as defined below, but operating costs include interest and principal on 
revenue anticipation notes. Operating costs include the net costs of evening, graduate 
and extension courses or any other types of courses, including vocational education 
programs, which are offered by the District to persons other than pupils attending a 
regular district school program in any of the grades 1) 1 K-12, inclusive. 

2. "Capital costs" will include all capital outlay appearing in the 7000 DESE function 
codes. 

3. "Transportation costs" include all costs associated with transporting the District's 
students to and from school. 

4. "Debt service" includes all costs that are used for payment of principal and interest on 
bonds or other obligations issued by the District except revenue anticipation notes. 

Section IX. METHOD OF ASSESSING COSTS OF THE REGIONAL-SC-140.01.-
DISTRICT 

A. Operating Costs. -Opefatifig'The District shall apportion operating costs neefle€14e-
suppeFtvia the izlistpic-tzs-lauclget-wi44-he+Kltiee€1-by-a14-gefter-al-ftmEI-r-e-venues-anil-state-
aitsiMember--tewn-assessffients-will-then-be-pr-epareEl-as-fellew&following process:

1. Each member town will eentFibute4ebe assigned the Distriet-ne-less-thaff4ts-minimum 
required local contribution to the District  as determined by the Gemmis64ener--isersu.ant--
to G.L. chapter 70DESE. Any-ex-eess-sests-oceeEled-te-suppel4-the-Elistfiet4 

2. Each member's share of that portion of the District's operating costs that exceeds the 
total required local contribution for all members is allocated via the following series of 
calculations: 

a. The District budget will be separated into three parts: a Chatham Elementary 
School building budget, a Harwich Elementary School building budget and a 
budget for the Middle School. High School, and District costs, known as the 
Regional Budget. Each budget will be considered net of general fund revenue 
and state aid apportioned by the-  District per Section IXT, A, 3. Apportionment 
of Funds/Revenue. 

b. The District's Foundation Enrollment as reported to the state for the purpose of 
determining Chapter 70 for the given fiscal year will be seemented by 
member town and age group (PreK-4 and 5-12). This will be requested 
from DESE.annually. 

c. An above minimum required local contribution for each building will be 
calculated by subtracting the building's portion of the minimum required local 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.00CXA7246522.DOCX 



contribution from the building's budget as presented in (a.) above, The building's 
portion of the minimum local required contribution will be calculated as follows: 
i. Each elementary school's portion of the minimum required local contribution 

will be determined by the member town's minimum required local 
contribution multiplied by the  tewarnember town's PreK-4 Foundation 
Enrollment divided by the member town's total Foundation Enrollment. 

ii. The Regional Budget's portion of the member town's! minimum required 
local contribution will be determined by calculating the sum of: each 
member Ttown's minimum required local contribution multiplied by the 
member Ttown's 5-12 Foundation Enrollment divided by the member town's 
total Foundation Enrollment. 

d. The above minimum required local contribution for each building will be 
apportioned as follows: 
i. Each member gown will be apportioned 100% of its local elementary 

school building's above minimum required local contribution. 
ii. Each member Ttown will be apportioned a percentage of the Regional 

Budget's above minimum required local contribution as determined by each 
member Ttown's average ratio of pupil- enrollment in grades five through 
twelve for the preceding three years. Each member  Ttown's ratio of pupil 
enrollment shall mean the ratio that each member town's pupil enrollment in 
grades five through twelve bears to the total pupil enrollment in grades five 
through twelve of all the member town's in grades five through twelve for 
that year on October 1. Average ratio of pupil enrollment shall mean the 
average of the annual ratios for each member town over the preceding three 
years. 

e. Each member town's minimum required local contribution shall be added to its 
total above minimum required local contribution to determine its Annual 
Operating Assessment. 

3. Apportionment of Funds/Revenue 
a. General fund revenues and state aid (excluding Regional Transportation Aid) 

will each be applied to the building or Regional eash-selieells- budget- as follows: 
i. Each elementary school's portion of the revenue will be determined by each 

member town's average ratio of foundation enrollment in PreK — 4 for the 
preceding three years. Each member town's ratio of foundation enrollment 
shall mean the ratio that each member town's foundation enrollment in 
grades PreK-4 bears to the total foundation enrollment of all the member 
towns. 

ii. The Regional Budget's portion of the revenue will be determined by the ratio 
of the total 5-12 Foundation Enrollment for the preceding three years. The 
ratio of the total 5-12 foundation enrollment shall mean the ratio that the 
total foundation enrollment in grades 5-12 for all member towns bears to the 
total foundation enrollment for all member towns. 

b. All grant and all other District funds shall be apportioned to school budgets by 
the Committee -at the Committee's discretion. 

B. Capital Costs. Capital costs shall include all expenses in the nature of capital outlay 
including, but not limited to. the cost of acquiring land. the cost of constructing. 
reconstructing, or adding to a school building or buildings, the cost of remodeling or 
making extraordinary repairs to a school building or buildings. the cost of constructing 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



sewerage systems and sewerage treatment and disposal facilities or the cost of the 
purchase or use of such systems with a municipality. and any other item of capital 
outlay for which a regional school district may be authorized to borrow, or which could 
be categorized as a capital expense in conformance with applicable law and regulation. 
including, without limitation. the cost of original equipment and furnishings for such 
school buildings or additions. plans, architects' and consultants' fees. grading and other 
costs incidental to placing school buildings and additions. sewerage systems and 
sewerage treatment and disposal facilities, and any premises related to the foregoing in 
operating condition. Capital costs shall also include payment of principal of and interest 
on  bonds, notes and other obligations issued by the District to finance capital costs. 

1. Capital costs attributable to the middle and high schools will be  assessed to the member towns 
on the basis of th nfellifient, Excess costs will be assessed to ea ,—ember - 

ecl-twee-three-year rolling average of each member town's 
foundation enrollment-fer-eaeh-fflem4eFtown. That is. foundation enrollment flumes, as 
aiblishcd by DESE for each member town for the most recent three years will be averaged. as 
will the total of the foundation enrollments of all member towns for the most recent past three 
years. Each member town will be assessed the same percentage of middle and high school 
capital costs as that member's foundation enrollment for the past three years relates to the 
foundation enrollment for the Regional District during those three years. 

2. 

3. 
4. B. Capital Costs. Except as expressed in subsection E belew-(whieh-peFtains-te4lie-assessnient 

of capital  costs and debt sense  on facilities that are in existence at the time of creation of the-
District until such time that thefe-is-one-regional-high-schoel-and-ene-fegienal-tnikl€14e-seheolfr-

af-eash-tewn-Ls-fettnElatien-enrollment as described in Section IX, A, 11  Capital costs attributable 
to the  -District's elementary schools will be assessed to the member town that owns that 

C. above:,

D. 
E. Transportation Costs. Transportation costs will be assessed to the member towns based upon the 

number of students residing in each te-wnmember town who attend the District's schools based 
on the average of the most recent three years' October 1 enrollment figures as reported=
currently on October 1. to DESE. 

F. Debt Service.  Except as expressed in Notwithstanding the terms of  subsection E below 
(whieh-pertaiRs-to the assessment of capital nests andB above. debt service on facilities 
that are in existence at the time of creation of the District until such time there is one 
fegienal-higli-seheal-and-ene-fegieilal-aliddle--s-cheal-VEleb4--seFv-iee-costscosts  -will be 
assessed to the member towns as follows: 

1. Debt service costs attributable to the high school ancl-the-Filiddle-sehe04-will be 
assessed to the member towns using the three year rolling average of each 
tewilmember town's foundation enrollment as described in Section IX,A,43 
above. 

Client Metter 28276/00001/A7247679.D0C3CA7246522.DOCX 



1. DebtAll other debt service costs attributable to the District's elementary schools will be 
assessed to the member towns based upon the meshanistn-deser-ibeel-intafaffraph-E-belaw 

2. 

on capital items and debt service which are attributed to facilities that are in existence at 
the tinie of the creation of the District and which are under the care and custody of the 
District, regardless of whether-they are owned-by the District or leased to the District, 
will be assessed to the-member towns using the following-approach. The-number of 
students who reside in each of the member towns who attend the facility in question
based upon the average of the most recent three years' October 1 enrollment figures as 
reported to DESE will be identified. Each member town will then be assessed a 

Pereentage-wil-1-13e-44+e--safile-Pereeatage-a&-the-+Hiffther--44-6414efits-friffn--that--tw he-
ade-entelled-in-the-faeil-ity-4n-ques.tienr  us-int-the-thfee-year-a-ver-age-refereneeel-in-this-
paragraph, bears to the two towns' combined enrollment in that facility. If the 
construction of a new high school is unclertaken-atler-the-ereatien-ef-the-Distriet7the 
capital costs and debt service attributed to said construction, and the planning for same, 

of the new high school will occur prior to there being one reidonal middle school. If a 
renovation of and/or addition tothat owns the building  which is known at the time of 
creation of the District as the Chatham Middle School/High School is undertaken for
purposes of converting said building to a District middle school, the capital costs and 

as.ses-sed-unfler-stibseetiens-B-and-D-a4eve,-14433,vever7-the-eapital costs and debt service 
at4=4134,1641.e-te4h4s-134414ing-eeritini+ing4e-be-tiged-c1S-a-iffidille.s.elieel-fer-The-Ghatham-
students while- the Harwich Middle School is still in operation will be assessed

G. The payment of the assessed share of costs by each member town, as computed by the 
Committee according to the methods specified in Section IX, shall be made by each 
member town's Treasurer by check or electronic transfer payable to the Regional School 
District in five equal installments by the first business day of each August, November, 
February, May, and June-.-the month as set forth below: 

Chatham: Aunist, October. December. February. April. May. June 
Harwich: July. September, November, January, March. May. June 

Section X. STABILIZATION FUND. 

The Committee may, consistent with the terms and conditions of G.L. c.chapter 71, section 
16GY2, establish and maintain a stabilization fund. 

Section XL ADMISSION OF ADDITIONAL TOWNS 

By an amendment to this agreementAtgeement adopted by each member town in accordance with 
Section XVII (Amendments) and in compliance with the provisions therein contained, any other 
town or towns may be admitted to the Regional School District upon adoption of such 
amendment, and also upon compliance with any statutory or regulatory requirement as may be 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522DOCX 



applicable. New member towns may be admitted as of July lg of any fiscal year, provided all 
requisite approvals for such admission, including the Commissioner's approval, shall be obtained 
no later than the preceding December 31. 

Section XII. WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBER TOWNS 

In the event that a member town decides to seek to withdraw from the District, the following 
procedures and requirements will apply: 

A. Vote Expressing Desire to Withdraw. Any member town seeking to withdraw from the 
District shall, by vote at an annual or special town meeting, request the Committee to formulate 
an amendment to this Agreement setting forth the terms under which the tewlimember town 
may withdraw from the District. No withdrawal will take effect on other than July 1 of a given 
year, and the vote spoken of in the preceding sentence, as well as the notification to the District 
consistent with paragraph B below, as well as the submittal of a long range education plan 
consistent with paragraph C below, must all occur no less than two (2) years prior to the desired 
date of withdrawal. 

B. Notice. The clerk of the nmember town seeking to withdraw shall, within seven (7) days 
of the vote, notify the Committee chairperson as well as the District's superintendent in writing 
that the tewilmember town has voted to request the Committee to formulate an amendment to the 
Agreement setting forth the terms for withdrawal. The clerk will provide a certified copy of the 
vote with the notification. 

C. Long Range Education Plan. No less than two (2) full years prior to the desired date of 
withdrawal, the tewnmember town seeking to withdraw, in addition to the other requirements 
spoken to in paragraph A above, will submit to the Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary 
Education (hereinafter "the Commissioner") and to the District a "Long Range Education Plan" 
consistent with 603 CMR 41.02(2). The Long Range Plan will address, in addition to any other 
factor required by the Commissioner, the following: the expected educational benefits of 
reorganization; the current and projected enrollments; an inventory of all educational facilities 
under the jurisdiction of the District; the proposed administrative structure; the fiscal 
ramifications of withdrawal upon the withdrawing tewamember town as well as the other 
member towns in the District; the geographical and physical characteristics of the area; and the 
effect that withdrawal will have on student transportation. 

D. Requirements. In addition to other terms and requirements which the Committee may 
include in the amendment, the tewomember town seeking to withdraw will be responsible for the 
following: (1) payment of all operating costs for which it is liable as a member of the District; (2) 
continuing payments beyond the time of withdrawal to the District for the 4ewamember town's 
share of the indebtedness of the District which is outstanding at the time of such withdrawal, and 
for interest thereon, to the same extent and in the same manner as though the tewnmember town 
had not withdrawn from the District; and (3) for the costs, including legal fees, that accrue to the 
District as a result of the withdrawal process. 

E. Approval of Withdrawal. A request to withdraw shall become effective only if the 
amendment to the Agreement is approved by vote of the Committee, is approved by the 
Commissioner, and is approved by majority vote at an annual or special town meeting in the 
town seeking to withdraw and in each of the other member towns, and the withdrawal can 
Client Matter 28276/00001 /A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



become effective no less than one full year after the completion of these requirements. 

F. In no event shall such withdrawal take place prior to ten (10) years from the effective date of 
this agreementAureement as defined in Section XVIII (Effective Date and Jurisdiction). 

Section XIII. ANNUAL REPORT 

The Committee shall submit to each member town an annual report containing a detailed 
financial statement and a statement showing methods by which the annual charges assessed 
against each member  town were computed, together with such additional information relating to 
the operation and maintenance of the schools as may be deemed necessary by the Regional 
District Committee or by the Select Board/Board of  Selectmacn and/or the Finance Committee of 
any member town. 

Section XIV.  TEACHERS

I-E-aseeffieffse-with-Ce er-4-1-7-seeti4R-42B-7-tee-eher-s-Sefi414041-thR-s-el+etels-e-f-a-41-}epa4cr town at the 
Ii441-e-that-the-14-is-wiet-c-effies-ifite-e*istenee-anfl-whe-hair,e-pfefess-ien-al-teaeher-s a4-1-13e-empleyed-by-
the-4;44Fiet-wi-th-that-same-status,--Teathers-whe-afe-sep,44044411e-s-elieels-44-a-mem4er-tewn-at-the4i-me-t-hat-
the-Distfiet-eame-s-inte-exisletice-and-whe-ele-net-have-prefessienal-teasher-status-shall-be-effipleye€1-is the-
District if there is an available pesitien-whiell-s4ehiaeF&en-is-c-ertifiekl-t43441, 

Section XV.   INCURRING OF DEBT 

The District School Committee may vote to incur debt consistent with the terms and conditions 
of G.L. cLhapt-err 71, section 16. At the time of taking action to incur debt, and except for the 
incurring of temporary debt in anticipation of revenue, the District School Committee by 
faaj-efitytwo-thirds vote will choose either the process that appears in subsection (d) of 
chapterChapter 71, section 16, or the process that appears in subsection (n) of chapterChapter 
71, section 16. 

Section XVI.  XV. REVIEW OF AGREEMENT 

At least every five (5) years, the Committee will undertake a review of the terms of this 
Agreement. The first review of this Agreement shall occur no later than in the fifth fiscal year of 
the District's existence. Proposals for amendments to this Agreement will follow the procedure 
contained in Section XVIIXVI (Amendments). 

Section XVII. XVI. AMENDMENTS 

A. Amendments to this Agreement may be initiated by a three-quarters (3/4) vote (i.e., no fewer 
than 4.5 votes) of the  Committee or by a petition signed by ten per centpercent (10%) of a 
member town(s) registered voters. Said signatures need to be certified by the Clerk of the 
respective tewnmember town who must also certify the fact that the number of signatures 
represents at least 10% of the registered voters of the townmember town. Such amendments to 
the aereenientAg,reement must receive a majority vote of approval by each member town at an 
annual town meeting, and all amendments are subject to the approval of the Commissioner. 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



B. No such amendment shall be made which shall substantially impair the rights of the holders 
of any of the District's bonds or notes of the District then outstanding, or the rights of the District 
to procure the means for payments thereof. 

Section XVIII.  XVH. EFFECTIVE DATE AND JURISDICTION 

The full jurisdiction of the Committee will-commenced on July 1, 2012  at the cenGlusien-of--the-
tfans-ition-pePied-establi-s.hed-i.n-geGtiGn XX.

Section -XIX. XVIII. SEVERABILITY OF SECTIONS 

Consistent with G.L. Chapter 71, section 161, if any provision of this Regional-gehool District 
Agreement shall be held invalid in any circumstance, such invalidity shall not affect any other 
provisions or circumstances. 

Section—V -Is4821-TION-PE1401)--

As part of the approval of this Agreementr and-o-f-the-Regiona4,-School-District-efeateel-44his-4greement7
tho4nember--towns-as--well-os-the-Gemmissioner-wil-1-b-e-taken-te-have-appi,oved-a-transition-pepiedr
consis-ten-t-with-603-GMR-4-14-3(4)-which-will  extend from-the date-of-voter-approval-of-the-District-until-the 
end of the fiscal year following the fiscal year in-which4heate-to-appfe-ve-the  Distfiet-was4aken,gtor-ing-
this-tfansition-perielE13-the-exis-ting-local-school-committees-v41-continue-in-existence-and-will-continue-te-
operate-the-sehools-of-the-member--towns-subj-ect-te-the-restfictions-speken  to in this Section XX (hereinafter
"this section"). During this transition period, and prior-to the seating of the Regional-Sohoo1- ommittee-on-
July 1, 2011, an Interim Regional School Conmtittee (hereinafter the "IRSC") will be foned consistent with 
this sect' 
June 30, 2011, at which time the Regional School Committee-NN4-14-be--seated-and-will-seiwe-for-the balance of 
the-tfansitiowpefied-and-thefeafter-, 

-A-Genmositioii-of-the4ifterim-Regiena4-Sehool-Gemmittee -soen-as-possible-after-the--appreval-ef-this 
Agreement-by-the-vatefsr the-Intefim-Regional-Seliool Committee will be formed which will consist of eight 
(-8)-membeFsTfoup-(4)4min-each4own.,--Two-(2)-of-such-membefs-will-be drawn from the members of, and 
elected by vote of, each of the two--(2)-  local school committees. Each of these local school committees will 
also-appoint-two-(-2)-additional-eitizens-whe-resicle-imtheir-Fespective-towns-and-who-afe-not-members-ef-the-
lecal-school-committee40-seiw-e-en-the4R ese-membeFs-wil-1-be weighted, and the 

Agreement. During that part of the transition perieel-wheii-the-IR-SC--i-s-in-e*istencer  should-any-inembei,-on 
the_ipcs --444esigri_frefa_niembershi _efi__the_442,..sc_or.43,evame_ineligiwe_fer_eimitifitie4faefit4ership_aw.the_444s.c__ 

loeal--school-c-ommittee-wi44-vote-a-replaeement,4f the vacancy is causecl-by-one-of-the-members-of-a-lecal-
school committee leaving the IRSC, then the replacement shall be chosen from among the remaining
membei,s-of-that-local-school--co y4s-caosed-by-ene of the citizens leaving the IRSC, 
then the respective local-school-c-ammittee-shatl-appoint-another citizen who is not a member of the local 
committee  as the replaeffnent. 

thatirtwo-{2)-ffesent4Foin-each-ef-themiembor-towns,-At-a-meeting-where-there-io-no-quolimi7the-FileFil-INWS-
present-may-vote-to-adjourn-but shall not take any other action. 

-04317 5,--The-1-MC,w444-eleet-aff eer-s-een4s-teRt-with-Seetien444-(Qu-eRtms7
Votesr and-Governance)-ewept-that-the-IRK officers so chosen will serve throughout-that-paft-of-the-
transi-tienter4od that the4RSG-is-imexistenee, 

Client Metter 28276/00001/A7247679.D0CXA7246522.DOCX 



Dufing-the-transition period, the IRSC (until June 30, 2011) and the-Regierial—Se m-J-n4y-
s3-eful3-jeet-te ds-neses-s-a r-the-

inelud-ing-but-net-limited-te4he-febk44444-0,-.

1. 
frern-other-settrees,-This-is-net-intended-te-alter the fact that during the transition period other 

spool departments. 

2. 

3. 
eclueationras-weThas-the-power-te-atitherize-the-snperintendent-te-empley-ether-perseriffel-as-
needed: 

4. 

they agencies 
he regional school 

district: 

5. 
these budgets. 

6. 

7. 

8. Th 

9. The power to appoint subcommittees. 

E. Relationship betweon the IRSC and the Local School Committees and Between the Regional School 

igate or 
iit=y-vote -of the IRSC or, after June 

30, 2011, by majority vote of the Regional School Committee. In addition, the local school committees shall 
GeMpl-y- With-th fiRg-the-tpaRsitieft-peFied÷ 

1. 

Committee. 

2. P-F-egFaril-046F-144-g -14-ei4-1-affi-S1-14-6tailtial-131-41-1-e-Saflie-

3. 

Inless ratified by
gional School 

or,  after--June407-2,011, by majority vote of the Regional School Committee. 

4. The school administration of the local school districts shall cooperate with the Regional
Administtation-inte matien_,,hatin e-transfer control during the-
transition-period, 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



5. Dlifin-g-the-faefid-My-1,--2A44-te4u-ne-A-2-04-2T-the-Regieffa-l-Sc-h-ee4-Geffm+ittee-wi4-l-a&Frt+H+O-

iespensibility-feEthe-tfanspor-tatiowe-f-the4egular--edwation--&todeRts-(4:e7-flet-the-spe641- 
edueatien-stiailents-ef-4he-veeatienal-stwlents)-whe-Fesisle-in-Ghatham-and--14e-Fwieh-ancl-v,,he-af&- 
enrolled in the-Ghat-ham-er--HeRvieh-P-44ie-geheols-,1)-ufiflg-2041-2012, the Chatham School 
Committee anisl-the-Har-wiell-Sheal-Gommittee-shel-l-p-ay-ati-as&essment-te-the-R-egianitl-S-ehool-
Committee-ef-an-a-meunt-equal-te-the-ses-t-ef-eraid-tfansportatien-fer-their-respeet-ive-Fegular-
stuflents,--The-Regienal-geheal-Gemmit e-opti-eri-of-elesignating-the-Chatham 
Sehool-Depait-Bent7the41aiwieli-geheal-Depafthientr  or both, as its finansi-a-l-agents(s)-cer-
p-H4j3e-s-es-ef-ptoeessring-in*e-iees-anfl-p-aymeHts-fer-sei44-r-anspot-tati-ee-, 

F. Termination of MSC. The-Wcg-G-3,v-i-l-l-exist-until-midiaight-en-June40,--2-0-1-4-rat-whieh4ime 
the-Re-g-ional School Committee wi-l-l-a-seume-j-ufisdietiefro-f-the-Regien-al-geheo-l-D-istFiet-for-the-
hatanee-e-f-the-traheition-per-i-efl-and-thereafter-,4he-Regional-Seheet-Ce med-

itgFeeffiefitsrothef-agfeefftentsTafld-leases-that-I-uwe-been-efttered-'inte-by-the4Rge,

Dated this- day of , 2021. 

Chatham Select Board Harwich Board of Selectmen 

Peter Cocolis, Chair 
Michael D. MacAskill, Chair 

Shareen Davis, Vice Chair 

Cory Metters, Clerk 

Dean Nicastro, Member 

Jeffrey S. Dykens, Member 

Monomoy Regional School Committee 

Nancy Scott, Chair 

Nancy Scott, Chair 

Client Mailer 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 

-M ary E. Anderson, Clerk 

-L arry G. Ballantine, Member 

Donald F. Howell, Member 

Meredith Henderson, Vice Chair 



Joseph Auciello, Member 

Danielle Tolley, Member 

Jackie Zibrat-Long, Member 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 

-T ina Games, Member 

-T erry Russell, Member 

Sharon Stout, Member 



Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 

Jeffrey Riley, Commissioner 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



The following document, 

Regional Agreement Proposed 

Changes, explains the proposed 

changes to Section VII and IX. 



Regional Agreement Proposed Changes 

Unless highlighted, the following is a summary of Proposed Changes that the Committee has discussed 
previously and noted in the redlined version of the Regional Agreement (A5066778.DOC[Ver:4]), DESE 
requested changed from their April 13, 2020 and March 9, 2020 feedback (Christine Lynch and 
subsequently Michelle Griffin to Marc Terry) are highlighted in light blue, Administrative proposals 
regarding budgeting, capital and debt, and ultimately the assessment are highlighted in yellow. One 
additional recommended change of a now obsolete provision is highlighted in orange. 

Section I. MEMBERSHIP OF THE REGIONAL DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

A. Name and Composition — "the District shall be named by the Interim Regional School 
Committee" becomes "The name of the Regional School District shall be the Monomoy Regional 
School District," 

B. Weighted Voting— When a majority vote is required by statue (as with the District's budget), the 
Regional Agreement cannot legally require something more -- here, our Agreement requires at 
least one vote from each town In the affirmative. DESE recommends that the wording of the 
second sentence in this section start with "Unless otherwise require by law or regulation, for a 
motion which requires a majority vote to pass,..." Similarly, there would be no requirement that 
at least one Committee member from each member town vote in the affirmative when a 2/3 
vote is required (as happens with a vote to borrow for Debt). 

C, Election of Members — the wording defining the initial election of School Committee members 
using an "Initial Staggering of Terms" is removed. 

D, Length of Terms reference to the initial election's "Initial Staggering of Terms" is removed, 
Clarity is added that allows for a member to begin serving in a vacated seat when it occurs 
outside of the regular election cycle. 

E. Initial Staggering of Terms — this entire clause is removed because It was only applicable to the 
first election for School Committee members as the School District formed and is now obsolete, 

E, Vacancies Becomes the new E with the above subsection deleted. Superfluous wording of "for 
any cause" is removed. 

Section II. POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

The wording defining the Powers of the Committee during the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, as 
the new district transitioned from Chatham and Harwich Public Schools, is removed because it Is now 
obsolete. 

DESE also recommends that we should include a broader reference to the powers of a regional school 
committee 

The Committee shall have all the powers and duties conferred and imposed upon school 
committees by law and conferred and imposed upon it by this Agreement, and such other 
additional powers and duties as are specified In GL Chapter 71, Section 14 to 161, Inclusive, and 
any amendments thereof or additions thereto now or hereafter enacted, or as may be specified 
In any other applicable general law or in any applicable special law. (Note the wording 
"including but not limited to the power to acquire property and/or to enter into leases for land 
and/or buildings" is presumed to be covered within DESE's recommendation.) 

MRSD 6/25/2021 1 



Section III. QUORUMS, VOTES, AND GOVERNANCE 

B. DESE requests that the words "or regulation" added this subsection so that it ends with "...or as 
require by statue or regulation." 

D. Removal of the obsolete example of how the Chairperson will rotate between the two towns in 
the first two years of regionalization, as the standard practice of the rotation is also included 
and remains in this clause. 
DESE recommends the addition in D of the wording: "The chairperson and vice-
chairperson must be elected by ballot." 

Section IV. TYPE OF SCHOOL DISTRICT ANO-T-RANSF-ER-OF-ASSETS (note here the AND TRANSFER OF 
ASSESTS should be deleted as it Is obsolete) 

E. DESE recommends that clarity be added In E that PreK for students with an IEP is not within the 
pp  School Committee's discretion to provide. More appropriate language for E would be "Where 

the term preschool Is mentioned in the Agreement, It is done to recognize the responsibility of 
the District to provide PreK for students with an IEP and to allow the School Committee 
discretion to provide for the addition of universal preschool classes at some future date." 

G. The entire G, referring to the transfer of assets in revolving accounts that are school-related to 
the schools and school-related supplies to the new school district has happened. This entire 
section should be deleted. 

Section V. LOCATION AND OWNERSHIP OF SCHOOLS 

B. Removal of the obsolete clause stating "it is the intend of the member towns to build a new high 
school and to renovate a middle school". Removal of this subsection shifted the lettering of each 
of the following up one position in the alphabet. 

C. The elementary schools are leased by the school district for a term of 20 years, the initial 
Regional Agreement left open when that 20 year term began, and is now defined as beginning 
July 1, 2012. 

D. Now defines that the Town of Chatham leases the land and buildings of its elementary and 
middle school to the district beginning July 1, 2012 (as defined by Section V, C above). 

E. Now defines that the Town of Harwich leases the land and buildings of its elementary to the 
district beginning July 1, 2012 (as defined by Section V, C above). 

Section VII. BUDGET 

C. The Regional District School Committee shall prepare a budget on a fiscal year basis for the 
District in the following manner: 

1. Clarifies that the proposed budget Is submitted to the Boards of Selectmen, Finance 
Committees, and a copy provided to each member's public library and town clerk's 
office for posting. 

2. Budgets shall be detailed and itemized to include: central administration, expenses of 
instruction, transportation, operation of school plant, maintenance of school plant, 
capital outlay, and debt and interest charges and adds future flexibility with the clause 
"unless the Finance Committees and Board of Selectmen from each member town and 
the Regional School Committee subsequently agree to some other methodology." 

5. Add the following subsection under budget to clarify how School Choice revenues are 
used: "The budget will be prepared net of School Choice revenue. School choice 
revenue will be proportionally allocated to offset each school's budget based on 

MRSD 6/25/2021 2 



school's average ratio of enrollment at that school for the preceding three years on 
October 10, as reported to DESE. Each school's ratio of enrollment shall mean the ratio 
that that school's enrollment bears to the total district enrollment." 

6. (Formerly #5) Clarifies budget approval or disapproval by the towns shall be consistent 
with the law and the Regional Agreement; however, "In the event of a conflict between 
any provision of law or regulations and this Agreement, the law and/or regulations shall 
prevail." 

Section VIII. BUDGETARY DEFINITIONS 

B. 1. "Operating Costs" should be stated as "in any of the grades PreK-12, inclusive", not K-12. 

Section IX. METHOD OF AsataING COST OF THE REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
The Administration has recommended that it would be more fiscally equitable if each member town 
payed for its own elementary school. The Administration is proposing that the entire Operating Costs 
section be replaced using wording already approved by DESE for Mount Greylock Regional, which has 
each member town pay for its own elementary school. The following uses Mount Greylock's wording, 
applying the minimum required contribution, then assessing elementary costs to the member towns for 
their elementary schools and splitting the remaining cost by using a three-year rolling average of 
foundation enrollment. 

A, Operating Costs. The District shall apportion operating costs via the following process: 
1. Each member will be assigned the minimum required local contribution to the District as 

determined by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. 
2. Each member's share of that portion of the District's operating costs that exceeds the total 

required local contribution for all members is allocated via the following series of 
calculations: 

a. The District budget will be separated into three parts: a Chatham Elementary School 
building budget, a Harwich Elementary School building budget and a budget for the 
Middle School, High School, and District costs, known as the Regional Budget. Each 
budget will be considered net of general fund revenue and state aid apportioned by 
the District per Section Xi, A, 3. Apportionment of Funds/Revenue. 

b. The District's Foundation Enrollment as reported to the state for the purpose of 
determining Chapter 70 for the given fiscal year will be segmented by town and age 
group (PreK-4 and 5-12). This will be requested from DESE annually. 

c. An above minimum required local contribution for each building will be calculated 
by subtracting the building's portion of the minimum required local contribution 
from the building's budget as presented in (a.) above. The building's portion of the 
minimum local required contribution will be calculated as follows: 

i. Each elementary school's portion of the minimum required local 
contribution will be determined by the member town's minimum required 
local contribution multiplied by the town's PreK-4 Foundation Enrollment 
divided by the town's total Foundation Enrollment. 

11.The Regional Budget's portion of the member towns' minimum required 
local contribution will be determined by calculating the sum of: each 
member town's minimum required local contribution multiplied by the 
town's 512 Foundation Enrollment divided by the town's total Foundation 
Enrollment. 

d, The above minimum required local contribution for each building will be 

MRSD 6/25/2021 3 



apportioned as follows: 
i. Each member town will be apportioned 100% of its local elementary school 

building's above minimum required local contribution. 
ii. Each member town will be apportioned a percentage of the Regional 

Budget's above minimum required local contribution as determined by each 
town's average ratio of pupil enrollment in grades five through twelve for 
the preceding three years. Each town's ratio of pupil enrollment shall mean 
the ratio that each member town's pupil enrollment in grades five through 
twelve bears to the total pupil enrollment in grades five through twelve of 
all the member towns in grades five through twelve for that year on 
October 1, Average ratio of pupil enrollment shall mean the average of the 
annual ratios for each member town over the preceding three years, 

e. Each member's minimum required local contribution shall be added to its total 
above minimum required local contribution to determine its Annual Operating 
Assessment, 

3. Apportionment of Funds/Revenue 
a. General fund revenues and state aid (excluding Regional Transportation Aid) will 

each be applied to each school's budget as follows: 
I. Each elementary school's portion of the revenue will be determined by each 

town's average ratio of foundation enrollment in PreK — 4 for the preceding 
three years. Each town's ratio of foundation enrollment shall mean the 
ratio that each member town's foundation enrollment in grades PreK-4 
bears to the total foundation enrollment of all the member towns. 

ii. The Regional Budget's portion of the revenue will be determined by the 
ratio of the total 5-12 Foundation Enrollment for the preceding three years. 
The ratio of the total 5-12 foundation enrollment shall mean the ratio that 
the total foundation enrollment in grades 5-12 for all member towns bears 
to the total total foundation enrollment for all member towns. 

b. All grant and all other District funds shall be apportioned to school budgets by the 
District at the District's discretion. 

B. Capital Costs. The redline version clarifies what are capital costs, including but not limited to the 
cost of acquiring land, construction, reconstruction, building additions, renovations, and 
extraordinary repairs, furnishings and equipment for schools, architect and consultant fees, and 
borrowing costs. The longstanding intent is that future capital costs at the elementary level will 
be assessed to the member town that owns the elementary school, while future capital costs at 
the middle school and high school would be attributed to the towns using a three-year rolling 
average of each town's foundation enrollment — this was lost in translation within the current 
redline version. 

The last paragraph under Capital Cost should be revised to read: 
1. Capital costs attributable to the high school and middle school will be assess 

to the member towns using the three year rolling average of each town's 
foundation enrollment. That is, the foundation enrollment figures as 
published by DESE for each member town for the most recent past three 
years will be averaged, as will the total of the foundation enrollments of all 
member towns for the most recent past three years. Each member town will 

MRSD 6/25/2021 4 



be assessed the same percentage of high school and middle school capital 
costs as that member's foundation enrollment for the past three years relates 
to the foundation enrollment for the entire District during those three years. 

2. Capital costs attributable to the Districts elementary schools will be assess to 
the member town that owns the building. 

Note adopting this Administrative recommendation clarifies a concern DESE had about Debt 
Service (in D below) that was incurred after July 1, 2017. 

C. Transportation Costs. Clarifies that it Is the three-year rolling average of reported October 1 
enrollment of Harwich and Chatham students that is used, 

D. Debt-Septic-a.. As the only current debt for the district is that of the high school, change this 
subsection to read "Debt Service on the High School. Debt service costs attributable to the 
construction of the high school will be assessed to the member towns using the three year 
rolling average of each town's foundation enrollment as described In Section IX, 13, 1 above." 

E. This clause is deleted in its entirety, as It is obsolete and covers "until such time as there is one 
regional high school and one regional middle school". 

F. This section only clarifies the existing practice of which months Chatham and Harwich will pay 
their assessment to the school district. 

Section Xl. ADMISSION OF ADDITIONAL TOWNS 

DESE recommends that this section Include a statement similar what is required by DESE regulations. "A 
new member may be admitted to the District as of July 1 of any fiscal year, provided that all requisite 
approvals for such admission, including the Commissioner's approval, shall be obtained no later than the 
preceding December 31." This section could conclude with this DESE recommended wording. 

Section XIV. TEACHERS this section is deleted because it is obsolete and describes how teachers with 
professional status will be handled when the District comes into existence. Note deleting this section 
moves INCURRING DEBT up to Section XIV. 

Section XIV. INCURRING DEBT 

The wording in the current draft finds the vote to incur debt to be "by majority vote." As such, DESE 
recommends that the wording be changed to be consistent with MGL C 71, 14 D which requires a 2/3 
vote of the school committee, 

Section XX. TRANSITION PERIOD — this section and all references to it are deleted because it is obsolete 
and the transition from the Interim Regional School Committee to the new District has happened. 

REVISION TO SIGNATORIES 
Finally, DESE requests that the agreement add lines for the Commissioner at the end of the Agreement 
to indicate approval and date (along with any local officials who want to sign off on the document). 

MRSD 6/25/2021 5 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF CHATHAM AND HARWICH WITH 
RESPECT TO THE FORMATION OF A REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Whereas the Towns of Chatham and Harwich, towns in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 
hereinafter referred to as "member towns", des-ife-te-oreatehave created a regional school 
district, hereinafter referred to as "District",  consistent with the terms of Chapter 71 of the 
Massachusetts General Lawsi  (G.L.), as amended, the member towns, in consideration of the 
mutual promises contained herein, agree as follows: 

Section I. MEMBERSHIP OF THE REGIONAL DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

A. Name and Composition.  DuringThe name of the transitien-peried-speken-ef4n-Seetietn4gr, 
herein, tho District shall be named-by-the inteFimMonomov Regional School Cornmitteo, utilizing a 
maj-eFitywete-eansis-tem-with--Seetien4 B-beIew:-District. The Regional District School Committee, 
hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Committee", shall consist of eight (8) members, four 
(4) ofwhom reside in the Town of Chatham and four (4) of whom reside in the Town of 
Harwich. 

B. Weighted Voting. Because of the disparity in the population of the two member  towns, each 
of the four (4) Committee members, hereinafter sometimes referred to as "member towns," from 
Harwich will have one full vote on all matters and each of the four (4) Committee members from 
Chatham will have 50% of a vote on all matters, for a total of six (6) votes. ForUnless otherwise 
required by law or retzulafion., for a motion which requires a majority vote to pass, a majority (i.e., 
greater than 50%) of the six (6) votes (which must be no fewer than 3.5 votes) must be cast in the 
affirmative and at least one Committee member from each of the two member  towns must vote in 
the affirmative, For the passage of a motion requiring a two-thirds vote (such as the passage of the 
annual budget), at least two thirds (i.e., no fewer than 4 votes) of the six (6) total votes must be 
cast in the affirmative. Should a shift in the respective populations of the member towns, based on 
the most recent decennial federal census figures, cause an impermissible disparity based on one-
person, one-vote principles, the Committee will act to address the disparity via the amendment 
process. 

C. Election of Members. Each member must reside in the member  town thatl*hi€-14 she or he 
represents. Each member must be elected consistent with the process for the election of town 
officials in said town and will be elected to open seats during the annual election or special 
election in said town, The term of each elected member will begin on the first business day after 
his or her election and after being sworn in by the respective Town Clerk. A member who has 
not otherwise vacated his or her seat will continue to serve until his or her successor is elected 
and sworn. 

-At every annual election, eKeept-at-the-iftitial leetien-e-f-the-Fvegienal-Seheel-Dis ittee-
when-the-ppeeedufe-Tspee-ifted-below--in-subseetien E- (Initial Staggerint of Terms) will be applied, there 
shall be elected one or two members of the Committee from the Town of Chatham and one or 
two members of the Committee from the Town of Harwich as is necessary to maintain the 
membership of the Committee in accordance with subsection A (Name and Composition) 
above. 

Clienthiatier 28276/000-01/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



D. L-eagth of Tows-.----With-the--selo-exeeption  of the-initial -election-of the  oheol-Piertri  t-
Committee-by the-pr-oezdtife-Sp ee-iffo€143alow-in subseet4on-F4Initial Stag-geFia-, of-T-orrns)3-
theLength of Terms. The term of office of each elected member shall be three years, and a 
member will serve until his/her successor is elected and sworn in by the respective Town 
Clerk,- unless the member has otherwise vacated his or her seat. 

E-.4nit-ial Staggering of Terms. For theimitese-of staggering4he-terms-ef-the4-itial-Regienal Scheol-P-istrie-t-
Genunittee-enly, the-fellewing-preeeflure-will-apply:

In regard te aeh-ef-the-inemlaer-tewnsi-the two (2) candiElates-reeei e-highest-anial-seeenil-h4lest-
rairnb e-eleeted-te-tlaree-(3)-year-tem-sOlie-eaudidate-reeeiving-the-third-higliest-nurnber-ef 
vetes-will-elested-te-a-two (2) year term; and-the-eauflidate-reeeMng-the-feurtk-liieiest-ntimber of votes-v444-
13e-eleeted4e-a-ene-(4)-year term. 

E. 17- - Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring on the Committee-fer any cause shall be filled by 
the local Select Board/Board of Selectmen and the remaining Committee members from the 
member  town where the vacancy occurs. The members of the Select Board/Board of 
Selectmen shall meet in joint session with the remaining members of the Regi-ena-l-Sekeel-
Distrie--Committee from the tewnmember town where the vacancy occurs. A majority vote 
of the members of this joint session shall be required to fill the vacant position. Such 
replacement shall serve until the next annual town election. At that next annual election, a 
person will be elected to serve the balance of the unexpired term, if any, which had become 
vacant. 

F. a -Organization. At the first scheduled meeting of the Committee after the annual 
election of all member towns, the Committee shall organize in accordance with 
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 71, Section 16A, known as "Regional School 
Committee, Organization". In addition, the Committee shall fix the times and place for its 
regular meetings for the new term, provide for the calling of special meetings upon written or 
electronic notice to all its members, and appoint appropriate sub- committees and other 
officers,: 

Section II. POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

The Committee shall possess all of the powers and duties conferred lay-lawand imposed upon 
regional school district committees ,Ae-C34,-.-Ghapter--7-1-Teeetim 16 and-etliefwiseby law, 
including, but not limited to-4he-pewei . those powers and duties as are specified in G.L. c. 71. 
Section 16-161. inclusive, as any such laws maybe amended from time to acquire property and/or_ 
time, subject to enter into leases-feAand-andier-b-uildings,-Dnfing-the-periefl--July 1, 2012 to June 
30, 2013, the-Com+ilittee-sliell-have-thetewer-te-peFfefm-all-ef-the-en€1-e-f-the-yeaFrepei-Iing-
funetiens that normally-would-have-been performed-by the Chatham Seheel-Comnmi-tteeany local 
acceptance requirements, and the Harwich School Committee.by this Agreement. 

Clicnt Mattcr 28276/00001/A7247679,DOCXA7246522.DGCX 



Section HI. QUORUMS, VOTES AND GOVERNANCE 

A. A quorum to conduct business shall consist of five (5) members, with no fewer than two 
members being present from each of the member towns. A number less than the majority may 
vote to adjourn, but shall not take any other action, 

B. On all issues requiring a vote of the Committee, a simple majority vote (i.e., no fewer than 
3,5 of the six (6) votes as spoken to in Section I, subsection B) shall be required to pass all 
motions, except as specified elsewhere in this Agreement, or as required by statute  or regulation. 

C. The Committee shall annually elect officers at the first regularly scheduled meeting held 
after the last of the elections in the member towns. Such officers shall exercise the powers 
expressed and implied in G.L. Chapter 71, section 16A. 

D. A Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by ballot from among the 
Committee's membership. The Committee will have as standard practice that the position of 
Chairperson will rotate annually between the member towns. For exam e-f+r-st-yeex-that-the-

however, the Ch 
sequence will then-be-maintained in future years. By a two-thirds (2/3) vote, and with at least one 
Committee member from each of the member towns voting in the affirmative, the Committee may 
in any given year deviate from this standard practice. The Vice-Chairperson in any given year 
shall be drawn from the members who reside in the member town different from that of the 
Chairperson. 

E. The Committee shall elect a Secretary who may or may not be a member of the Committee's 
membership. 

F. The Committee shall appoint a Treasurer who shall not be a member of the Committee. 

G. Any action voted by the Committee that wilieli directly and specifically affects the 
elementary school(s) in only one member  town will require that three of the four members of the 
Committee from the member town in which the affected elementary school(s) is/are located vote 
in support of that action. 

Section IV. TYPE OF SCHOOL DISTRICT AND TRANSFER OF ASSETS 

A. The Regional Scheel-District shall provide educational programs for public school students 
who reside in the member towns and who are attending grades pre-lcindergarten through and 
including grade 12. The Re-gienal  School District Committee, as established consistent with 
Section I (Membership of the Regien-a-l-School District School Committee) above, is authorized in 
its discretion to establish and maintain other educational programs, including, but not limited to, 
vocational-technical educational programs consistent with G.L Chapter 74, and is authorized in its 
discretion to join or form educational collaboratives consistent with G.L. Chapter 40, s. 4E. 

B. The Regional-geheel-District may, at the Committee's discretion, include pre-kindergarten, 
and shall include all grades from K-12. 

Client Matter 28276/00001/A7247672,D 0 CXA72,16522.D0 CX 



C. The elementary schools shall serve students in grades K-4, and, at the Committee's 
discretion, pre-kindergarten. 

D. The middle school(s)/high school(s) shall serve students in grades 542. 

E. Where the term "presoheolpre-kindergarten" is mentioned in this Agreement, it is done 
in order to permit the Committee, at some future date, the discretion to provide "universal" 
presolieol-elass-espre-kindergarten classes in addition toproviding_pre-kindemarten to 
qualifying students with disabilities. 

F. The Committee may, in its discretion, alter the elementary/secondary grade 
configurationconfiggI  spoken to above. 

GT-At4he4ime of the-or-eat:ion of the Distfietr any-and-all-ffioney-held-in-s-&-eallefl4evoMag-Aani21932-in-gift--
accounts, in grant-accounts, or in student-aetivi-ty-aeeetHalsicunds that are helii-by-the--menalsier-t-emqls-for--tho-
benefit of theiHespective scheel-depeftinenta-will-be-oenveyed-te4hc District to be utilized for educational-
onflier-extfasuffiettlezr-puiteses-een-s-istent-with .thettiveses-fer- s-or-aeeetint&-wer-e 
er-eate4—A-dElitionallyrseheel-reWe eq  nt, inaterial-r and-supplie-s-that eheol-
Elepaftmente-aftlle-niombe e-of-the-or-eatien-ef-the-DistFiet-m411-19e-oenveyed-to-the-Dietfiet7 

Section V. LOCATION AND OWNERSHIP OF SCHOOLS 

A. All Region-al-District schools shall be located within the geographical limits of the District. 
The District school buildings shall be located on sites owned by, or leased to, the District. 

B.  it is-the-intent-of-the member towns to-seek to bui-1421-a-new-liigh-sokieel-and-to-feney.a.to a middle school-
with-ad-due- a I aer-ity7 

G.:—There shall be no less than one elementary school in each member town, Students in the 
elementary grades shall attend schools in their towns of residence, except in special cases as 
defined by the Committee. 

a -c. Each member town shall retain ownership of its elementary school buildings and grounds 
that are in existence at the time of the formation of the District and shall lease the same to the 
District for the sum of one dollar per year. Each lease shall be for a term of up to twenty (20) 
years, with said term to be established by the District-Sehe 
on-the-date- YTT[V 11 e-Committee-completes-the-tfeasitionter-io€1-spolien-te-in-Seetion--)21.-and-eemee-into-
full oxistenci. . The term shall commence July 1. 2012. The leases shall contain provisions for.an 
extension of up to 20 years at the option of the Committee, The leases shall contain provisions 
authorizing the District to repair, improve, alter, remodel and maintain the buildings or any part 
thereof, at the District's expense. Said leases shall not prevent the use of the buildings or 
premises by the respective owner member towns, upon approval of the Regienal-School District 
Committee; such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Each lease involving a member 
town may include such other terms as may be agreed upon by the Select Board/Board of 
Selectmen of that member town and by the Committee, who shall execute the lease for the 
member towns and the District, respectively. 

The Town of Chatham shall lease to the Committee the land and buildings (at the option of 
the Committee) presently known as the Elementary School, as well as the land and/or the 
buildings (at the option of the Committee) comprising the oembined-Middle School/ High Sohoo-1,--. 

Client WINE* 28276/00001/A7247679.000XA724652.2.000X 



The terms expressed in par-affaphSection V, DC shall apply equally to this paragraph. 

47-,E. The Town of Harwich, shall lease to the Corrunittee the land and/or buildings (at the option 
of the Committee) presently known as the Elementary Schoolras-we11-ag-the-leml-andier-the-
Ilaildings-Eat-the-ept ee)-presently known as theNtield-le-gehool,-end the laud and/or the-
1an-i4clings (at the-eptien-e-f-the-Genini-i-ttee)-presently known as the High School. The termsteim
expressed in paragraphSection V,D C shall apply equally to this paragraph. 

G. The leases of all of the abosr,e refeFeneefl-se,heel-bviiklings-shet+1413e-signetEl-by-the-elate-the4)-istficA-
C-efarnit4ee-eeniplet-es-the-tr-ans-iti-en-pefied-speken-te-in-geeti-en-X.X-and conies into full existeRee: 

14,-F. At whatever point in time t- the land and/or buildings that are leased by a member town to 
the Committee ceases to be needed by the District, the District School Committee shall vote to 
declare said land and/or buildings as surplus, and the custody and control of said land and/or 
buildings shall revert to the owner member town. 

Payments from future leases of Districts  property shall be paid to the 
Regional School District. 

Section VI. TRANSPORTATION 

The Committee shall set District transportation policy. School transportation shall be provided 
by the Regional-Sehool-District, and the cost thereof shall be apportioned among the member 
towns as defined in Section LX. 

Section VII. BUDGET. 

A. The Committee shall prepare an annual operating and maintenance budget using accounts 
itemized in conformance with the chart of accounts utilized and required by the Massachusetts 
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) or its successor. 

B. The Regional Scheel-District's budgetary process, and the timing of and method of 
appropriation of funds in regard thereto, shall be governed by the provisions of G. L. c. 71 
§16(m) and c. 71 §1613 and other applicable provisions of G. L. c. 71 and any special laws 
or regulations relating thereto. 

C, The Committee shall prepare a budget on a fiscal year basis for the District in the following 
manner: 

I. The Regional-District budget process shall be initiated annually on or about October 1 
and shall provide opportunity for the  Select BoarcUBoard Of Selectmaen and Finance 
Committee of each member town to have input into its preparation. On or about 
January 156, the Committee shall complete its proposed budget for the ensuing year. 
Said proposed budget shall be approved by majority vote, with at least one 
Committee member from each member town voting in the affirmative. -SeielThe 
District shall submit its proposed budget shall be-posted in to the Town HallSelect 
Board/Board of 14-hc provided le eadi-paenabar town's public library, 
anel-shall-beulani-itle€14o-the-Seleetmen and Finance Committee meinhets-of each 
member town-  and provide a copy to each member town's public library and  tTown 

Client Mattcr 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7216522.DOCX 



6Clerk's office for posting. 

2. Said proposed budget shall contain a notice stating when and where a public hearing 
will be held. The public hearing shall be held in any District school building. The 
notice of the public hearing shall be posted in all member towns and published 
consistent with G,L. c. shape -F-71, section 38N in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the region. 

3. Upon request of the Finance Committed and/or the Select Board/Board of Selectmen 
of any member town, the Committee shall arrange to meet with such Finance 
Committee and/or Select Board/Board of Selectmen for the purpose of discussing 
the proposed budget. Said proposed budget shall be in reasonable detail, itemized at 
least as follows: central administration, expenses of instruction, transportation, 
operation of school plant, maintenance of school plant, capital outlay, and debt and 
interest charges,. unless the Finance Committees and Select Board/-Board of 
Selectmen from each member town and the Committee subsequently agree to some 
other methodology. All non-recurring expenditures shall be itemized. Enrollment, 
staffing, total expenditures and assessments for the past five (5) years shall be 
included, The Finance Committee or the Select Board/Board of Selectmen of a 
member town may request further information. 

4. Consistent with G.L. ce.Glia-pter 71, section 16B the Committee shall adopt by a 
two-thirds (2/3) vote of all its members a budget with such changes as may 
have resulted from conferences and/or the public hearing. Within thirty (30) 
days from the date on which the budget is adopted, the Treasurer of the District 
shall certify and transmit to the Treasurer of each member town that 
tewnmember town's assessed share of such budget. 

5. The budget and assessments shall be so constructed as to show debt service, 
transportation, operating, and capital costs. It shall also list all sources of revenue 
used to reduce operating costs as described in Section IX. 

6. The process and the requirements for the approval or disapproval of the budget by the 
member towns will be consistent with the terms and conditions of chapterChapter 71, 
section -14g18 B, as well as 603 CMR seetien 41.00, et sal', as those terms and 
conditions may be amended. In the event of a conflict between any provision of law 
or regulations and this Agreement, the law and/or regulations shall prevail. 

7. The budget will be prepared net of School Choice revenue. School choice revenue 
will be proportionally allocated to offset each school's budget based on school's 
average ratio of enrollment at that school for the preceding* three years on October 111,
as reported to DESE. Each school's ratio of enrollment shall mean the ratio that that 
school's enrollment bears to the total district enrollment. 

Section VIII. BUDGETARY DEFINITIONS 

The budget for the operation of the District's Schools, including payments of principal and 
interest on bonds and other evidence of indebtedness issued by the District, shall be apportioned 
to the member towns via the method set out in Section IX and subject to the following definitions: 

Ultra thttcr 28276/00001/A72.17679.DOCXA72,16522_DOCX 



A. Budget 

As defined by this document, the budget is the amount of money voted by the Committee to 
finance the District schools. inclusive of aid from the Co and thatwhi-eh will be assessed to the 
member towns. 

B. The budget shall be comprised of various costs, each as herein defined as follows: 

1. "Operating Costs" include all costs not included in capital costs, transportation costs, 
or debt service, as defined below, but operating costs include interest and principal on 
revenue anticipation notes. Operating costs include the net costs of evening, graduate 
and extension courses or any other types of courses, including vocational education 
programs, which are offered by the District to persons other than pupils attending a 
regular district school program in any of the grades pre-K-12, inclusive. 

2. "Capital costs" will include all capital outlay appearing in the 7000 DESE function 
codes. 

3. "Transportation costs" include all costs associated with transporting the District's 
students to and from school, 

4. "Debt service" includes all costs that are used for payment of principal and interest on 
bonds or other obligations issued by the District except revenue anticipation notes. 

Section IX. METHOD OF ASSESSING COSTS OF THE RE-GIONAL-SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

A. Operating Costs.  OperatingThe District shall apportion operating costs needed to 
suppeftvi a the €1istFic-tls--141-1.4get-wi44-13e-reElit6e431*-all-general-ftind-reventies-anfl-state 
ai€1,—Memlaer-tewn-asse&sments- r-efl-as-fell following process:

1. Each member town-will Gentfilattte-tebe assigned the District no loss than its minimum 
required local contribution to the District  as determined by the Goilifaissi*Hier--pursuant-
to G.L. chapter 70DESE. Any excess costs needed-te-stippeft-the-disti-ietls 

2. Each member's share of that portion of the District's operating costs that exceeds the 
total required local contribution for all members is allocated via the following series of 
calculations: 

a. The District budget will be separated into three parts: a Chatham Elementary 
School building budget. a Harwich Elementary School building budget and a 
budget for the Middle School. High School. and District costs, known as the 
Regional Budget. Each budget will be considered net of general fund revenue 
and state aid apportioned by the-  District per Section IXT. A. 3. Apportionment 
of Funds/Revenue. 

b. The District's Foundation Enrollment as reported to the state for the purpose of 
determining Chapter 70 for the given fiscal year will be segmented by 
tevaunember town and age group (PreK-4 and 5-12). This will be requested 
from DESE annually; 

c. An above minimum required local contribution for each building will be 
calculated by subtracting the building's portion of the minimum required local 

Client Matter 28270000010,7247679.DOCXA7246522,150CX 



contribution from the building's budget as presented in (a.) above. The building's 
portion of the minimum local required contribution will be calculated as follows: 
i. Each elementary school's portion of the minimum required local contribution 

will be determined by the member town's minimum required local 
contribution multiplied by the tewarnember town's PreK-4 Foundation 
Enrollment divided by the member town's total Foundation Enrollment. 

ii. The Regional Budget's portion of the member town's! minimum required 
local contribution will .be determined by calculating the sum of: each 
member Ttown's minimum required local contribution multiplied by the 
member  Ttown's 5-12 Foundation Enrollment divided by the member town's 
total Foundation Enrollment. 

d. The above minimum required local contribution for each building will be 
apportioned as follows: 
i. Each member gown will be apportioned 100% of its local elementary 

school building's above minimum required local contribution. 
ii. Each member town will be apportioned a percentage of the Regional 

Budget's above minimum required local contribution as determined by. each 
member Ttown's average ratio of pupil-  enrollment in grades five through 
twelve for the preceding three years. Each member Ttown's ratio of pupil 
enrollment shall mean the ratio that each member town's pupil enrollment in 
gradesfive through twelve bears to the total pupil enrollment in grades five 
through twelve of all the member town's in grades five through twelve for 
that year on October 1. Average ratio of pupil enrollment shall mean the 
average of the annual ratios for each member town over thepreceding three 
years. 

e. Each member town's minimum required local contribution shall be added to its 
total above minimum required local contribution to determine its Annual 
Operating Assessment. 

3 Apportionment of Funds/Revenue 
a. General fund revenues and state aid (excluding Regional Transportation Aid) 

will each be applied to the building or Regional eash-seiteel!s; budget- as follows: 
i. Each elementary school's portion ofthe revenue will be determined by- each 

member town's average ratio of foundation enrollment in PreK — 4 for the 
preceding three years. Each member town's ratio of foundation enrollment 
shall mean the ratio that each member town's foundation enrollment in 
grades PreK-4 bears to the total foundation enrollment of all the member 
towns. 

ii. The Regional Budget's portion of the revenue will be determined by the ratio 
of the total 5-12 Foundation Enrollment for the preceding three years. The 
ratio of the total 5-12 foundation enrollment shall mean the ratio that the 
total foundation enrollment in grades 5-12 for all member towns bears to the 
total foundation enrollment for all member towns. 

b. All grant and all other District funds shall be apportioned to school budgets by 
the Committee -at the Committee's discretion. 

B. Capital Costs. Capital costs shall include all expenses in the nature of capital outlay 
including, but not limited to, the cost of acquiring land, the cost of constructing. 
reconstructing,.or adding to a school building or buildings, the cost of remodeling.or 
making extraordinary repairs to a school building or buildings, the cost of constructing 

Client Matter 28276/00 001 /A724 7679.13 OCXA724 MID° CX 



sewerage systems and sewerage treatment and disposal facilities or the cost of the 
purchase or use of such systems with a municipality. and any other item of capital 
outlay for which a regional school district may be authorized to borrow, or which could 
be categorized as a capital expense in conformance with applicable law and regulation. 
including. without limitation, the cost of original equipment and furnishings for such 
school buildings or additions, plans, architects' and consultants' fees. grading and other 
costs incidental to niacin'g school buildings and additionS, sewerage systems and 
sewerage treatment and disposal facilities, and any premises related to the foregoing-in 
operating condition. Capital costs shall also include payment of principal of and interest 
on bonds, notes and other obligations issued by the District to finance capital costs. 

1. Capital costs attributable to the middle and high schools will be assessed to the member towns 
on the basis of the-teimils-fe.u.nilatien-enr-ellfflent, Excess costs will be ti,se,sed to each merfth 
tewii-on-the49asis-ef-the-c-eoqbined three three—year rolling average of each member town's 
foundation enrollment for each-member-town. That is. foundation enrollment figures. as 
published by.DESE for each member town for the most recent three years will be averaged, as. 
will the total of the foundation enrollments of all member towns for the most recent past three 
Years. Each member town will be assessed the same percentage of middle and high school 
capital costs as that member's foundation enrollment for the past three years relates to the 
foundation enrollment for the Regional District during those three years. 

2. 

3. 
4. B. Capital Costs. Except as expresse4214n-suhsesties-Erbelew-(whieh-pertains to-the assessment 

of capital costs and debt serviee-e-n-faGilities-that-aFe-in-e?ii-stenee n of the-
District until suc-h-titue-that-there-i-s-ene-regiena44i0-wheel-and-ene-regie-u-al-mid€14c school), 
eapital-eosts-shall-be-asseosed-te-the mber--tewns-en-the-bosis-ef-the-thr-ee-yeaf-rellihg-average-- 
ef-eaerh-tewmls-feandetien enrollment as described in Section IX, A, 1  Capital costs attributable 
to the  -District's elementary schools will be assessed to the member town that owns that 
building. 

C. 

D. 
E. Transportation Costs. Transportation costs will be assessed to the member towns based upon the 

number of students residing in each te.,vnmember town who attend the District's schools based 
on the average of the most recent three years' October 1  enrollment figures as reported, 
currently on October 1, to DESE. 

F. Debt Service.  Except as expressed in Notwithstanding the terms of  subsection &be4ew-
(-which pertains to the assessment-of capital costs andB above. debt service on facilities 
that are in existence at the time of creation of the District until such time-mere is one-
regional high school and one regi€41-al-nliddle-seheol), debt service costscosts  -will be 
assessed to the member towns as follows: 

1. Debt service costs attributable to the high school and the middle school will be 
assessed to the member towns using the three year rolling average of each 
towninember town's foundation enrollment as described in Section IX,A,43 
above. 

Ghent Metter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



1. DabtAll other debt service costs attributable to-the-District's elementmy-selieels-will be 
assessed to the 1116140r town&-BasedAlpen-the-mechanism-deseribed in paragraph-B-belew-
whieh-utilize- s the-mest-resent three you -October 1 enrellment-figures:. 

2. &-Netwi-thst-aueliug4he-terius-aud senditieus-efoubsectiens-B-and-D-abever-uutil suelk-
time as there is one-re-gienal high -seheel-eud-ene-regienal-middle-sebeeli-ex-penditures 
en-eapital--items-and-debt-sepAes-which are attributed-to  facilities that are in existence at 
the-time-ef-the-ereatien-ef-tlie-Distriet-and-whieh-are under-tlie-eare-and-eustefly-ef-the-
DistdetTregardless-ef-whether-they-ar-e-ewefi-by-the-Dietriet-er--Iease4-te-the-D-iotrietr
will-he assessed to the-Ffief13heF-tewns-us-ing-the-foliewing-afvreaelh-The-m+m4er-ef-
6-t eaelk-ef-the-fnemb-er--tevms-who-attend4he--faeility-in-qeestion 
based-upen-the-average-ef-the-most recent three-years' October 1 enrollment figures as 
reperted4e-DESE-wi-14-be-identified. Each member town wthbe-esses&ed-a-
percentage of-the capital and debt service expenditures attributable to that facility. This 
percentage will-be-the-sarne-pereentage-as-the-number-ef-students-frem-that-te he-
are-earellefl-in-the-faellity-in-questi-enr uoieg the three-ye average-referenced in this 
paragfaphr beafs-te-the-t3,ve4ewns2-een+bineel-earelinient in that facility. If the 
eenstruction of a new high scheel-is--indertaken after the-creation of the District, the-. • 
eapital-easts-and-debt-sentise-attributed to said constmetien, and the-planning-fer-samer
will be assessed under-subseetiens B and-D-abeyer despite-the--faet4hat-the-eempletien-
e-f-the-new-high-seheel-will-eeeur prior to there being one-regional- Idle-seheel—If a- 

that owns the building-whish-is-knewn-at-the-tioad of 
ereatiell-e-f-tlie-DistFietas-the-Gliatharn-Middle-Seheol/High-gebee ndertaken-fef-
p-urpeses-ef-eenverting-said-building to a Distriot middle scheol-the capital costs and 
debt service attributed to-sa-id-rene-vationladdiion, and the-planning-fer-samer  will-be-
assessed-under-subseetiens-B-and-D-above. However, the capital costs and debt SOrViCe 

at:WM:gab-1C to this-building-sendere-used-as-a-middle-seheel-fer-the Chatham 
students-while-the-Harwieh-Middle-Seheol is still in operation will be-assessed-
eensistent-with-this-paragraph-E7,_ 

G. The payment of the assessed share of costs by each member town, as computed by the 
Committee according to the methods specified in Section IX, shall be made by each 
member town's Treasurer by check or electronic transfer payable to the Regional-Scheel: 
District in fwe--equal installments by the first business day of each August, November, 
February, Mayr-an44une:the month as set forth below: 

Chatham: August, October, December. February. April. May. June 
Harwich: July, September, November, January, March. May. June 

Section X. STABILIZATION FUND. 

The Committee may, consistent with the terms and conditions of G.L. c.chapter 71, section 
16G'/2, establish and maintain a stabilization fund, 

Section XL ADMISSION OF ADDITIONAL TOWNS 

By an amendment to this affeenieutA2reeinent adopted by each member town in accordance with 
Section XVII (Amendments) and in compliance with the provisions therein contained, any other 
town or towns may be admitted to the Regional School District upon adoption of such 
amendment, and also upon compliance with any statutory or regulatory requirement as may be 

elicit Matter 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA7246522DOCX 



applicable. New member towns may be admitted as of July 1 of any fiscal year, provided all 
requisite approvals for such admission, includinu the Commissioner's approval, shall be obtained 
no later than the preceding December 31. 

Section XI I. WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBER TOWNS 

In the event that a member town decides to seek to withdraw from the District, the following 
procedures and requirements will apply: 

A. Vote Expressing Desire to Withdraw. Any member town seeking to withdraw from the 
District shall, by vote at an annual or special town meeting, request the Committee to formulate 
an amendment to this Agreement setting forth the terms under which the tewnmember town 
may withdraw from the District. No withdrawal will take effect on other than July 1 of a given 
year, and the vote spoken of in the preceding sentence, as well as the notification to the District 
consistent with paragraph B below, as well as the submittal of a long range education plan 
consistent with paragraph C below, must all occur no less than two (2) years prior to the desired 
date of withdrawal. 

B. Notice. The clerk of the tewamember town seeking to withdraw shall, within seven (7) days 
of the vote, notify the Committee chairperson as well as the District's superintendent in writing 
that the member town has voted to request the Committee to formulate an amendment to the 
Agreement setting forth the terms for withdrawal. The clerk will provide a certified copy of the 
vote with the notification. 

C. Long Range Education Plan, No less than two (2) full years prior to the desired date of 
withdrawal, the tewnmember town seeking to withdraw, in addition to the other requirements 
spoken to in paragraph A above, will submit to the Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary 
Education (hereinafter "the Commissioner") and to the District a "Long Range Education Plan" 
consistent with 603 CMR 41.02(2). The Long Range Plan will address, in addition to any other 
factor required by the Commissioner, the following: the expected educational benefits of 
reorganization; the current and projected enrollments; an inventory of all educational facilities 
under the jurisdiction of the District; the proposed administrative structure; the fiscal 
ramifications of withdrawal upon the withdrawing tewiamember town as well as the other 
member towns in the District; the geographical and physical characteristics of the area; and the 
effect that withdrawal will have on student transportation. 

D. Requirements. In addition to other terms and requirements which the Committee may 
include in the amendment, the tewnmember town seeking to withdraw will be responsible for the 
following: (1) payment of all operating costs for which it is liable as a member of the District; (2) 
continuing payments beyond the time of withdrawal to the District for the Member town's 
share of the indebtedness of the District which is outstanding at the time of such withdrawal, and 
for interest thereon, to the same extent and in the same manner as though the tewatnember town 
had not withdrawn from the District; and (3) for the costs, including legal fees, that accrue to the 
District as a result of the withdrawal process. 

E. Approval of Withdrawal. A request to withdraw shall become effective only if the 
amendment to the Agreement is approved by vote of the Committee, is approved by the 
Commissioner, and is approved by majority vote at an annual or special town meeting in the 
town seeking to withdraw and in each of the other member towns, and the withdrawal can 
Clint Mauer 28276/00001 /A72,17679.DOCXA1216522.DOCX 



become effective no less than one full year after the completion of these requirements. 

F. In no event shall such withdrawal take place prior to ten (10) years from the effective date of 
this agromentAarcement as defined in Section XVIII (Effective Date and Jurisdiction). 

Section XIII. ANNUAL REPORT 

The Committee shall submit to each member town an annual report containing a detailed 
financial statement and a statement showing methods by which the annual charges assessed 
against each member town were computed, together with such additional information relating to 
the operation and maintenance of the schools as may be deemed necessary by the Regional-
Distict-Committee or by the Select Board/Board of  Selectmen and/or the Finance Committee of 
any member town. 

Section XIV.  TEACHERS

in-accordance-with G.L. chapter 71, section 12B , teachers Genii-fig in the-seheols of a member town at the 
time that the-Distfiet-oe stence and--whe  have-pref-ess-ienal teach 
the District-with that same-status. Teachers who are serving in-the-scheels efa-member-te-wn-at the time that 
the-District comes-inte-existenee-an4-whe-de-net-liave-pfefes-sienal teaehei-status-shal1-be employed by the-
District if there is an available-pesitien-which such person is certified to fill. 

Section XV.  INCURRING OF DEBT 

The District School Committee may vote to incur debt consistent with the terms and conditions 
of G.L. c,heiateff 71, section 16. At the time of taking action to incur debt, and except for the 
incurring of temporary debt in anticipation of revenue, the District School Committee by 
majoritytwo-thirds vote will choose either the process that appears in subsection (d) of 
ohaptefChapter 71, section 16, or the process that appears in subsection (n) of chapterChapter 
71, section 16. 

Section XVI. XV. REVIEW OF AGREEMENT 

At least every five (5) years, the Committee will undertake a review of the terms of this 
Agreement. The first review of this Agreement shall occur no later than in the fifth fiscal year of 
the District's existence. Proposals for amendments to this Agreement will follow the procedure 
contained in Section X-VII-XVI (Am6ndments). 

Section XVII. XVI. AMENDMENTS 

A. Amendments to this Agreement may be initiated by a three-quarters (3/4) vote (i.e.; no fewer 
than 4.5 votes) of the District-Committee or by a petition signed by ten per-c-entpercent (10%) of a 
member town(s) registered voters. Said signatures need to be certified by the Clerk of the 
respective tawamember town who must also certify the fact that the number of signatures 
represents at least 10% of the registered voters of the townmember town. Such amendments to 
the agr-e-ernentAgreement must receive a majority vote of approval by each member town at an 
annual town meeting, and all amendments are subject to the approval of the Commissioner. 

Client Mauer 28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA72.46522.DOCX 



B. No such amendment shall be made which shall substantially impair the rights of the holders 
of any of the District's bonds or notes of the District then outstanding, or the rights of the District 
to procure the means for payments thereof 

Section XVIII.  XVII. EFFECTIVE DATE AND JURISDICTION 

The full jurisdiction of the Committee wi-I-1-commenced on July 1, 2012  at the conclusion of the 
transition pei449-€1-estaliilished in Sectioia--Xgr,----.

Section XLX.  XVIII. SEVERABILITY OF SECTIONS 

Consistent with G.L. Chapter 71, section 161, if any provision of this Regi-onal-Schaal-District 
Agreement shall be held invalid in any circumstance, such invalidity shall not affect any other 
provisions or circumstances. 

Seet4en-XK-TRAXSI-T4ON-P-ERIOD-

As part of the approval of this Agreement, and of th o district created b„ thi . A b  eement' 
the member towns as ,.,ell ac the f
eensistent-vA441-64-3-GMR-4-1-4-3(4- vhieh-will-ex-tend-frein-the-flate-ef-veter-appfeve4-ef-the-44isniet-until-the 
end of the fiscal-year following-the-ffsoal-yeaf4a4vhch the vote-te-appreve-the-Distfiet-was taken  Dori ing 
this4Fansitien-pefiedr the-existing4o. eal-seheel-committees-will-centinue-in-existenee-and-will-eentiffne-te-
eperate-the-seheels-ef-the-member-towns-subject-te-the-r-estrietiens-spoken-te4n-this-Seetien-XJ,(hefeinaller- 
"this section"). Duizing4his-tFansition period, a-nd-ffief-te-the-s ting of the-Regiena-l-Seheel-Gemmittee-en 
Ittly-15-2-0-1-17 en-Interi-m-Regienal--Scheal-C-emncrittee4her-einafter-the e-fenned-oeneistent with 
this-5ectien-which-will-exer-eise-the-pewer-s-expfessed-in-this-seetien. The IRSC will exist until midnight on 
June 30, 2011, at which time the Regionel-Schee-l-Comnaittee-will-be-seated-and-v41,1-seFve-fer-the-belanee-ef-
the-t.faneitien-peFie€1-an€1-thefeafter, 

AC-emoesitieti-ef-the-laterim-Re seen-as-paseible-ofler--the-appfevel-ef-this-
Agreement by the voters, the Interim Regional Scho sist of eight 
(8) members, four (.4) rem each town. Two (2) of such me 
elected by vote of east, of-the two_R-) l ocal school 
also appoint_two (2) addi 

local school committee to setwe-en-the-IRSC-Allie-votes-of-these-membefs-will-be-weightedr and-the-
r-equirements-fer-an-affiffne ete-v4ll-be4he-samer as-is-expr-esseil-in Section I, subsection B of this 
Agreemen4,-Dufing-that-peft-ef-the-transitien-pefied-when-the IRSC  is in a teReer  sketild-any-mealber-en-
the-IRSC--reeign-ffem-rnembefship-en-the4MG-ef-become-iseligible-fef-eentiRued-memberebirp-on4he-IRSC-
(e.g., by leaving the membership of the local scheol-eemmiuee or by moving from their respective town) the 
local school committee will vote a replacement. If the vacancy is cause ecal-
sehool-cemmittee-leaN-ing-the4R-S-C--rthen-the-replacement-shall-be-chesen-from-ameng-the-remeining-
member-s-of-that-lecei-scheel-eammitte-e.--1-f-the-vacaney-is-canscid by one-ef-the-eitizens-lea*isg-the-fR-SC--3-
then the respective local school-cenimittee-shall-appeint-a*ether--eitizen-whe-is-net-a-member-of--the local
comfaittee-as-the-replacemont. 

13)H-efem-r-A-quennmehall-exist-when-a-ce-(-5)-4-the-eight-(8)4-R,SC-memb pfeeentrwith-ne-less-
than-t.,ve-(2)-present from each-of-the-fnembett-tewns:-At-a-meeting4here there- is no-queftwor  the-membeFs-
pfesent-may-vete-te-afljeum-but-shall-net-take-any-ether-aotion. 

Vetesr and-G-evemnc-e-)-ex-c-ep4-that-the IRSC officers so rhos  will serve threughout-that-p-art of the 
transition peFie4-that-the-fR,Sg-is-in-ex-i-s-tenee, 

Client Matter 28276/D0001/A7247679,DOCXA7246522.DOCX 



14-Po,,vors-of-tho-IRS6-aud-the-Regional-Seheet-Gemmittee-14uring  the-Transition-I-e' riod. 
During-the4r-ansitien-periedTthe-IRSC (until-June-30, 2011) and the Regional-gellool-Gemmittee-Etiom-July-
-1-,--20-1-1-40-4une-a0, 201-2)-shall-possess-all-pel,vers, sub jest to the availabil-ity-ef-funds-neee-s-sety-for-the 
ex-ereist of such-powers, neeess-afy-fo lanning-and-i-mplernentation-of-the-regional-selieel-distriet, 
Meluding-but-net-limited-to the folleNvingi-

1. The-power to roe-eive-funds-kom the-Gemmenwealth-as-well-as-appropfiatiensr gratitsr anE1-gifis-
from-other sour,--es This is-net-intended to alter-the-f-act-that-durhig-the-tr-ansition-peried ether-
funds from-the Commenwealt-h-will-oent-inite4o-flow-te-the-member-tevitns-and their individual 
sehooldvartments: 

2. The-power-te-establish and adopt-pelieies-for the-reel li-striet-: 

3. The-power-te-empl upe-rintendent, treesurer--thief-fmanoial-off ter-of-Speei-al--
edueatienTas-well-as4he-pewer4e-e4horize the-stTerintendeftt-40-emple t#c personnel-es-
needed: 

4. The-power to contrae,t-f-ef-Pdadier-purehas-e-geocis-ancl-s-ervi e-pewer-te-enter into 
lease-ar ments with the-member towns, collaborativesr vendersTand-ether-ageneies-
and-parties-,-,with-al-l-the-pew-ers-being-able-to-be-eg ehalf-of-the-regional-seheet-
district. 

5. The-power to adopt-budgets for the regional schael-distpietr and to assess the-member-towns-for-
these budgets: 

6. The power to negotiate-and-to-enter-into collective bargain-ing-agreements, which wi 
no-seener-than the. ineeptiewefthe-R-egional-Seheol District. 

7. The-} b'  el-Bui44ing-Cemmitt-ee: 

8. The-power to develop-a-nd-adept-a-strategje-plart-far the-Regional School District. 

9. The-power -appoint suboommitteesr 

E. Relatioaship-bePween-the--tPAC--aud the-Local School-Gemna,itteas-and-Retween-t enal-Seheel-
Committee-and the-Local Sehool-C-ommittees During tho Transition Period. During the transition period, the
local-selieel-eommittees of the-meraber-towne-may-not-make-desisiens4ha naneial ligate or 
legally encumber the regional-Seheel-distriet ation-hy-majo rrefter-June-
3-07-2-0-1-1-Tby-m*rity-vete-ef-the-Regienal--Seheel-Gemmittee,-In-addition, the local school-eoraraittee&-shell-
eomply- ring-the4r-ansition-peried+ 

1. Nobuildiag-p, r*sts will be-undertalEen-end-no-builkagrelesufe ed-by-
majerity-vate-of-the4R-SC or, after June 30, 201-1, by majori te-of--the-Regi el-
Cornriaittee:

2. P-Fegram offerings will remain es-ame-

3. N-o-selteel-eheiee-epenings fllcd  except-with-the appr-eval by majority vote of the IRSC 
or, after June 30, 2011, by majority-vote of the-R-egional-Sehool Committee; 

4. The-seheel-administation of the leea-l-seheol districts shall-eeeperate with the Regional
Administration in terms of information sharing and in terms of the transfer contFol-during-the-
transition-per-iod, 

CI icnt M aticr 28276/00001/A7247619.DOCX.A7246522,DOCX 



5. During the-period July 1, 2011 to June-3-05-20-1-2rthe-Regional-Scheel l-l-assuine-
responsibility-f-er the-trauspectatien-ef-there-gulap-educatien-stuflents (i.e., not-the-special-
education students or the-vecational student6)-whe-feside-in-C-hatham and Harwicla-cad-whe-ur-e-
eFwel-lcd in the Chatham or Harwich-Public-Soh-eels. Dialing 2011 

nl,all ray[ an as

 of-an-aueunt-equcl-te-the-eest-ef- ef4-atieu-fetheir-r-e-speetive-r-evlar-
studens:--The-Reg4-eeal-Schee4-Gomnaittee-wi44-have-the-ept-ion-efdesig-nating the Chatham 

cheel-PtepaFt e-I4eiwieli-Selleal--DepeFtnienti-er-both, as its financial agents(s) for 
puPpeses-ei-pfeeessing-inveiees-and-peyfaents-fer--sai4-tcFansper-tatien, 

the-Reg.ienel-Sehee4-C-enifaittee.*ill-assurne-j-u:r-isclic-tien-ef-the-Regional School District for the 
balance-of--the-tr-an.sitien-pefied-an44hefeafter,--The-Regienal-Schael-GeEnnlittee-will-bc-deenied-
to be the legal successer-te-the-IRSC--fer-pufposes-of-all-contactsrcellective-befgainin-g 
agr-e-ementsr ether agreementsr and-leases-that-hai-e-he• en-entered-into by the IRSC. 

Dated this- day of  , 2021. 

Chatham Select Board Harwich Board of Selectmen 

Peter Cocolis, Chair 

Shareen Davis, Vice Chair 

Cory Metters, Clerk 

Dean Nicastro, Member 

Jeffrey S. Dykens, Member 

Monomoy Regional School Committee 

Nancy Scott. Chair 

Nancy Scott, Chair 

Clitnt Mniter28276/00001/A7247679.DOCXA72.16522.DOCX 

Michael D. MacAskill, Chair 

Mary E. Anderson, Clerk 

Larry G. Ballantine, Member 

Donald F. Howell, Member 

Meredith Henderson, Vice Chair 



Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 

Jeffrey Riley, Commissioner 

Clint HM1428276/00001 //0217679.DOCXA7246522.00CX 



Joseph Auciello, Member 
Tina Games, Member 

Danielle Tolley, Member 
Terry Russell, Member 

Jackie Zibrat-Long, Member 
Sharon Stout, Member 

Client Maticr 28276/00001/A7247679.D0CXA72A6522.DOCX 



■ 
• 

WHEREAS 

WHEREAS 

WHEREAS 

A PROCLAMATION 
Two years ago the Grade 8 Blue Team D-block Civics class at 
Monomoy Regional High School chose veterans issues as their 
topic for Project Citizen. Project Citizen is a national program 
where a class takes on an issue, researches it, develops a class 
policy, and tries to get the policy enacted. 

The class met with Rob Mador of Bridges for the Fallen, a local 
organization that has worked to honor veterans all over the 
country. 

The class chose to pursue the naming of the Route 6/137 bridge in 
Harwich as the Hidden Wounds Memorial Bridge, in honor and 
recognition of all those who have suffered from Post-Traumatic 
Stress Disorder, Traumatic Brain Injury, Depression, Anxiety, and 
other unseen ailments, especially as a result of service in the 
military and public safety occupations. 

NOW, 
THEREFORE, do hereby urge all the residents of our community to join with us in 

proclaiming our appreciation of Mr. John Dickson's, Grade 8 
Team D-block Civics class and Mr. Mador of the Bridges for the 
Fallen Organization for their commitment to those suffering and 
who have suffered from hidden wounds; and increasing awareness 
of these wounds through increased education and awareness and 
that the Route 137 bridge will be a reminder to all of their 
sacrifice. 

Given this day of: 

Harwich Board of Selectmen 



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
Phone (508) 430-7513 

Fax (508) 432-5039 

Joseph F. Powers, Town Administrator 
Meggan M. Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 

MEMO 
TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

RE: 

732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 

Board of Selectmen 

Joseph F. Power own Administrator 

Meggan M. Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 
Carol Coppola, Finance Director 

Rate increases for snow plow contractors 

DATE: Monday, November 22, 2021 

This memorandum serves as a cover memo ahead of the Public Work Director's memo 
(attached) on increasing plow rates for the 2021-2022 season. 

I met with the DPW Director and Finance Director to review and discuss the proposed rate 
increases. I recommend the Board adopt the proposed rate schedule as outlined by the Director. 

Thank you. 



TOWN OF HARWICH 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

273 Queen Anne Road • P.O. Box 1543 • Harwich, MA 02645 
Telephone (508) 430-7555 

Fax (508) 430-7598 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Joe Powers, Town Administrator 

FROM: Lincoln S. Hooper, Director 

DATE: November 15, 2021 

RE: Request for an Increase in Private Plow Rates 

As we prepare for the upcoming winter each year we contact the private contractors that 
worked for Harwich the past year to see if they are interested in returning. As a result of 
that exercise, staff has brought to my attention that our private plow rates are 
significantly lower than surrounding communities (see attached 2021 — 2022 Snow 
Removal Hired Contractors Rate Comparison). Further, the last increase in plow rates 
was voted by the Board at my request in November 2017. Base on this information, I 
recommend that the Board of Selectmen vote the attached Snow Removal Proposed 
Hourly Rates 2021-2022 schedule. 

As you have probably heard in the news, there is currently a plow driver shortage. I 
attribute that fact to many reasons including the milder winters we are having (less work), 
the increased insurance requirements (more money) and the increased price of fuel (more 
money). Although increasing the rates will not address these systemic problems, it should 
help retain most of our current contractors. Thus far we appear to be down five 
contractors, but won't know the actual number until the rates are set for the season and 
we have contracts in place. 

I cannot stress the importance of our private plow fleet enough. Although we handle 
sanding calls entirely in-house with staff, it would be impossible for us to plow 482 
public roads (142 miles) and 360 private roads (approximately 60 miles) without our 
hired plow fleet. I believe this rate increase would be a signal to them that the Town 
values the job they do and wants to retain their services in the future. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Attachments: Snow Removal Hired Contractors Rate Comparison 2021 — 2022 Season 
Snow Removal Proposed Hourly Rates 



TOWN OF HARWICH 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

273 Queen Anne Road • P.O. Box 1543 • Harwich, MA 02645 

Telephone (508) 430-7555 

Fax (508) 430-7598 

TOWN OF HARWICH 
SNOW REMOVAL PROPOSED HOURLY RATES 2021-2022 

PLOWS 
CURRENT PROPOSED PROPOSED 

CATEGORY DESCRIPTION RATE INCREASE RATE 

A PICKUP W/ 8' PLOW $78.00 +$12.00 $90.00 

B 1 TON W/ 8' PLOW $80.00 +$15.00 $95.00 

C 1 TON W/ 9' PLOW $90.00 +$10.00 $100.00 

D F600/F800= 10' PLOW $97.00 +$18.00 $115.00 

E F800= 11' PLOW $111.00 +$9.00 $120.00 

F TEN WHEELER $122.00 +$13.00 $135.00 

LOADERS 
CURRENT PROPOSED PROPOSED 

CATEGORY RATE INCREASE RATE 

I BOBCAT/U N I LOADER $ 86.00 +$14.00 $100.00 

J LOADER 1.5 YD $ 110.00 +$15.00 $125.00 

K LOADER 2.5 YD $ 130.00 +$15.00 $145.00 

L LOADER 3 YD $ 140.00 +$10.00 $150.00 

M LOADER 4 YD $ 145.00 +$15.00 $160.00 

N LOADER 5 YD $ 150.00 +$10.00 $160.00 



SNOW REMOVAL HIRED CONTRACTORS RATE COMPARISON 
2021-2022 SEASON 

VEHICLE 
PLOW 

SIZE 

BARNSTABLE 

HOURLY RATE 

BREWSTER 

HOURLY RATE 

CHATHAM 

HOURLY RATE 

DENNIS 

HOURLY RATE 

AVERAGE 

HOURLY RATE 

PROPOSED 

RATE 

HARWICH 

HOURLY RATE 

RECOMMEND 

INCREASE 

PICKUP TRUCK 8' $90.00 $90.00 $85.00 $95.00 $90.00 $90.00 $78.00 $12.00 

1 TON 8' $90.00 $90.00 $85.00 $100.00 $91.25 $95.00 $80.00 $15.00 

1 TON 9' $99.00 $95.00 $92.00 $105.00 $97.75 $100.00 $90.00 $10.00 

SKID STEER 
% A $100.00 $110.00 $86.00 $103.00 $99.75 $100.00 $86.00 $14.00 

6 WHEEL 10' $120.00 $110.00 $98.00 $115.00 $110.75 $115.00 $97.00 $18.00 

6 WHEEL 11' $126.00 $110.00 $107.00 $120.00 $115.75 $120.00 $111.00 $9.00 

LOADER 1.5 CY * $107.00 $145.00 // , $126.00 $125.00 $110.00 $15.00 

10 WHEEL 11'-12' $143.50 $130.00 $124.00 $136.00 $133.38 $135.00 $122.00 $13.00 

LOADER 2.5 CY * $137.50 $145.00 / / $160.00 $147.50 $145.00 $130.00 $15.00 

LOADER 3 CY $125.50 $160.00 $151.00 $160.00 $149.13 $150.00 $140.00 $10.00 

LOADER 4 CY * $162.50 $160.00 $151.00 $160.00 $158.38 $160.00 $145.00 $15.00 

LOADER 5 CY * $162.50 $160.00 $151.00 $160.00 $158.38 $160.00 $150.00 $10.00 

* Barnstable Loader Rates = loader rate + addition of plow 



PLEASE CHECK 

ROAD RACE 

I 

FORM #7 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTMEN 

732 MAIN STREET 
HARWICH, MA 02645 

Telephone: (508) 430-7513 

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE/PERMIT 

Gn v w►i_`.`tck. 
 CRAFT FAIR )( OTHER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE STATUTES RELATING THERETO, APPLICATION 
AS STATED ABOVE IS HEREBY MADE BY: 

NAME OF BUSINESS  tilt/Lb ck etyaysayrd GyrryNeiz_e__ pHoi\TR5Ds-LIKA \tab-
BUSINESS ADDRESS I 16 ,17)01 h e oC tOtnit)IC •tYLIA-1 CAA LL lQ
MAILING ADDRESS I S rovoicct_ -ft. 14-1 /NIP% 4-(014,i3O

PLEASE STATE THE PURPOSE FOR WHICH LICENSE/PERMIT IS REQUESTED 

oncL3htvu &d.  , zecaid, ab-a,1 .egasimiA T{.Le LW\ nCt
uLA  Dt+91111\ rc`ati_Vttr, LCciSe tianact ettotuditt iAbttiA p-et  (ins_ 
akviccroy\o -60._ 4),11-01&cc crtctl  41arci ( N.-r(r\e_P6rck 6r-
Li (Liam, ecioeis - (ppm- 41) - ricalocfcratty\ eon& -Cster, 

AnPuat c.66 is t urn ot+ Pi \grim CL\ tOral Charch 
LbccttNty. ky- iitrc\de%,& tfr ftLtd. intf-r. katv_ioci Lot 

.st e attitthiL, otv..0- LAIC\ mil ithz[vyLicalt5 
st(1 a.)1, &tier\ Nii/UetCri—J 
(please use v rse side if necessary) 

Lcit • LOAratairiLL) 
Signature of Applicant 

Social Security Number of Federal Identification Number 

1.--%)LeCCAllt-e—, 100716r 
Title 

ig-44,40 
Tax Exempt ID(for non-profit organizations) 

Signature of Individual or Corporate Name By Corporate Officer (if applicable) 



***REGULATORY COMPLIANCE FORM*** 

THE EVENT(S) TO BE LICENSED AS DESCRIBED HEREIN HAVE BEEN REVIEWED AND APPROVED 
BY: 

anon & Youth Commission Date 

Building Commissioner Date 

di\lat 1)11((in?( 
Board of Health Date 

Fire Department Date 

***Required signatures are to be obtained by the Applicant prior to submission of application with the 
Selectmen's Office. 

For Office Use Only 

FEE CASH CHECK 

FOR 

REVIEWED BY 

DATE LICENSE ISSUED 

2 



2021 HARWICH HAPPENINGS 

Caroling ST Tree Lighting - Doane Park 
Featuring the Harwich Elementary Chorus - 5:30 pm 

Santa Arrives on Fire Truck Visit with Santa - Sponsor Regalcare 
Outside Visitor Information Center 6:00 pm Outside Visitor Information Center 6:00 - 8 pm 

Homeless for the Holidays 
Harwich Fire & Police collecting toys, food, and cash/gift cards for Toys. 6 - 9 pm 

Regency Brass Band Concert Sponsored by William Ravies 
On the Porch of William Raveis 6:00 - 8:00 pm 

Harwich Town Band Concert 
TD Bank 6:00 - 8 pm 

Christmas Stroll - Harwich Port 
Stroll through Harwich Port businesses for holiday dining, fun, and shopping! 

5:30 - 9 pm 

Annual Cookie Sale 
Outside Pilgrim Congregational Church 5:30 - 8:30 pm 

Guild of Harwich Artists Annual Ornament Sale 
Guild of Harwich Artists 5:30 - 9:00 pm 

Harwich Garden Club Holiday Boutique 
Harwich Community Center 9 am - 1 pm 

Free Advent Christmas Concert 
First Congregational Church - 3 pm 

Trolley to Christmas Town - Sponsor The Family Pantry 
Departing Harwich Chamber arriving at The Tern Inn 5 pm - 8 pm 

Cape Cod Lighthouse Charter School 
Civil War Exhibit - 12 - 2 pm 

Trolley to Christmas Town - Sponsor The Family Pantry 
Departing Harwich Chamber arriving at The Tern Inn 5 pm - 8 pm 

• • . • •• • " " " 
. . 

. • .: • • 
,&44 ° •. • -int. .*; 

Visit www.harwichcc.com for more details 





 
 

 November 15, 2021 
 

 

Dear Mr. Joseph Powers, 

 
 

Congratulations! I am pleased to notify you that the Town of Harwich has been awarded a 

Recycling Dividends Program grant of $9,900 through the Sustainable Materials Recovery 

Program. I want to thank you for your commitment to reducing waste and increasing recycling 

for the benefit of our communities and the environment. 

 

Enclosed you will find further instructions from the Department of Environmental Protection on 

next steps. Please feel free to contact Wilfred Mbah if you have any questions. 
 

 

 

Governor Charles D. Baker Lt. Governor Karyn E. Polito 

  

mailto:wilfred.mbah@mass.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Charles D. Baker 
Governor 

 
Karyn E. Polito 
Lieutenant Governor 

Kathleen A. Theoharides 

Secretary 
 

Martin Suuberg 
Commissioner 

 
 

November 15, 2021 

Joseph Powers 
Interim Town Administrator 
Town of Harwich 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 

Dear Mr. Powers, 

Congratulations! It is my pleasure to inform you that the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) 
has awarded the Town of Harwich Recycling Dividends Program funds under the Sustainable Materials Recovery Program. The 
Town of Harwich has earned 9 points and will receive $9,900. 

The Sustainable Materials Recovery Program (SMRP) was created under 310 CMR 19.300-303 and the Green Communities 
Act, which directs a portion of the proceeds from the sale of Waste Energy Certificates to recycling programs approved by 
MassDEP. The Recycling Dividends Program (RDP) provides payments to municipalities that have implemented specific 
programs and policies proven to maximize reuse, recycling, and waste reduction. We are awarding over $3.1 million in RDP 
payments to 226 municipalities in this round of funding. The next application for SMRP funding will be released in April 2022. 

Recycling programs play a vital role in limiting our dependence on landfills and incinerators, reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions and supporting economic activity in the Commonwealth. Recycling Dividend Program funds foster investment in 
local programs including recycling equipment, organics diversion, outreach and education, pilot programs, school recycling, 
toxics reduction and more. MassDEP has invested in developing nationally recognized tools to assist municipalities with 
reducing recycling contamination and improving public awareness of smart recycling practices. We encourage you to utilize 
the Recycling IQ Kit and Recycle Smart MA website and to consult with your MassDEP Municipal Assistance Coordinator for 
assistance in implementing these best practices. 

To accept your Recycling Dividends Program (RDP) award, please sign and return the attached RDP Contract via email before 
January 15, 2022. After we receive your signed contract, funds will be sent to your community. Should you have any 
questions, please email Wilfred Mbah at Wilfred.Mbah@mass.gov. 

The increased challenge of maintaining our vital solid waste and recycling programs during a pandemic underscores the 
critical role of local government in keeping our communities safe and clean. Thank you for your continued commitment to 
recycling and waste reduction in Massachusetts. 

Sincerely, 
 

 
Martin Suuberg 
Commissioner 

cc: Lincoln Hooper, DPW Director 
 

 

This information is available in alternate format. Contact Michelle Waters-Ekanem, Director of Diversity/Civil Rights at 617-292-5751. 
TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 

MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 

https://www.mass.gov/how-to/get-the-massdep-recycling-iq-kit
https://recyclesmartma.org/
https://www.mass.gov/guides/massdep-municipal-assistance-coordinators
mailto:Janine.bishop@mass.gov
http://www.mass.gov/dep


 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 

Bureau of Waste Prevention 

Sustainable Materials Recovery Program 

 

Checklist for Recycling Dividends Program Grant Award 

This document contains important grant deadlines and requirements 
 

 

STEP ONE: EXECUTING THE CONTRACT 

It is the responsibility of the municipal Recycling Contact to ensure that the RDP Contract is 

signed by an individual currently holding one of the Titles listed on the Authorized Signatory 

Listing form, which your municipality filed with MassDEP in the spring of 2017. If the person(s) 

listed on the form has changed (for example, a new Mayor has been elected), the municipal 

official with the same title may sign the RDP Contract and a new Authorized Signatory Listing 

form IS NOT REQUIRED. 

Please sign and email the RDP Contract to wilfred.mbah@mass.gov for processing of payment 

no later than January 15, 2022 or funds may be forfeited. Acceptable forms of signature are: 

1. Traditional “wet signature” (ink on paper, scan and email); 

2. Electronic signature that is either a hand drawn signature using a mouse or finger if 

working from a touch screen device; or 

3. Electronic signatures affixed using a digital tool such as Adobe Sign or DocuSign. 
 

STEP TWO: TRACK EXPENDITURES BY APPROVED EXPENSE CATEGORY 

- This is not a reimbursement-based grant. Your award payment will be processed as soon 

as the RDP Contract is returned. 

- However, you are required to keep track of approved expenditures, by expense 

categories. Pre-approved spending of RDP grant funds is listed in the Grant Guidelines. 

Please follow this list of approved spending; a municipality is allowed one special spending 

request per year for an item not found on the approved spending list. If your municipality 

intends to spend its grant funds on an item or service not listed, you must contact Wilfred 

Mbah. 

- Be prepared to be audited. 

STEP THREE: REPORT EXPENDITURES AND REMAINING BALANCE 

- The municipality is required to report all expenditures from the previous calendar year no 

later than February 15th. 

 

Contact Wilfred Mbah with any questions. 
 
 
 

 

Checklist for Recycling Dividends Program Grant Award Page 1 of 1

mailto:wilfred.mbah@mass.gov
mailto:wilfred.mbah@mass.gov


S I G N  A N D  R E T U R N  T H I S  D O C U M E N T  T O  M A S S D E P  V I A  E M A I L  
 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

RECYCLING DIVIDEND PROGRAM CONTRACT (“RDP Contract”) 
BETWEEN THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (“MassDEP”) 
AND THE Town of Harwich (“Municipality”) 

 

Pursuant to the Green Communities Act, relevant provisions of which are codified at M.G.L. c. 25A, Section 
11F(d) and the regulations promulgated thereunder at 310 CMR 19.300 and in support of the Massachusetts 
Solid Waste Master Plan developed pursuant to M.G.L. c. 16, Section 21, MassDEP has awarded the 
Municipality a Sustainable Materials Recovery Program grant under the Recycling Dividends Program 
(“RDP”).  The Municipality has earned a payment of $9,900.   
 

The Recycling Dividends Program provides payments to municipalities that have implemented specific 
programs and policies proven to maximize reuse, recycling and waste reduction.  Municipalities receive 
payments according to the number of criteria points their program earns based on the 2021 Grant Guidelines 
and number of residents served as described below.  RDP provides an incentive for municipalities to 
improve their recycling programs by implementing best practices and rewards communities with model 
recycling and waste reduction programs.   
 
Duration:  The term of this Contract shall be in effect until the municipality has expended all RDP funds 
and reported to MassDEP on use of funds. 
  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MUNICIPALITY 
 

1.   Authority:  The Signatory of this RDP Contract is authorized by the governing body of the Municipality 
to enter into this Contract on behalf of the Municipality and apply for and accept funds on behalf of the 
Municipality. 

  

2. Commonwealth Terms and Conditions:  The Municipality shall comply with the Commonwealth Terms 
and Conditions and other requirements set forth in the Municipality’s executed Master Agreement. 
 

3. Failure to Comply:  If, in the judgment of MassDEP, the Municipality fails to comply with any of its 
responsibilities identified in this Contract, then, at the election of MassDEP, (a) the Municipality shall 
repay the RDP funds to MassDEP within 90 days; and/or (b) title to all materials purchased with the 
RDP funds immediately and without any further steps shall be transferred to MassDEP; and/or (c) 
MassDEP may find the Municipality not eligible to seek another Sustainable Materials Recovery 
Program Grant for up to three years.  MassDEP may provide written notice to the Municipality of any 
such failure to comply.  Such notice may provide a time period and manner for the Municipality to cease 
or remedy the failure.  Such notice from MassDEP of any such failure by the Municipality is not a 
precondition to MassDEP’s right to select options (a), (b), and/or (c) above.  The Municipality shall 
follow the instructions of MassDEP regarding possession of the materials purchased with RDP funds.  
The Parties hereby agree to execute any and all documents necessary to accomplish said transfer.  
Furthermore, the Municipality shall transfer or arrange to transfer actual possession of said materials to 
an authorized representative of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or its designee. 

 
4. Recycling in Practice:  The Municipality has established paper, bottle and can recycling in all municipal 

buildings, offices and meeting spaces, including schools. The Municipality shall continue such paper, 
bottle and can recycling during the term of the RDP Contract.  

 

5.   Notification of Buy Recycled Policy:  The Grantee has established a written policy which promotes a 
preference for the purchase of recycled products in lieu of non-recycled products and distributes an 
annual notification of the Buy Recycled Policy, ordinance or by-law to all staff, department heads and 
employees with purchasing authority. This notice should be sent from the Mayor, Board of Selectmen, 
Town Manager, Town Administrator, or Chief Purchasing or Procurement Officer; and should include 
specific language encouraging the purchase of recycled products as it supports municipal recycling 
collection programs, recycling markets, and supports closed loop recycling. The Grantee shall continue 
to send an annual notification during the term of the Grant 

 



S I G N  A N D  R E T U R N  T H I S  D O C U M E N T  T O  M A S S D E P  V I A  E M A I L  
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

6. RDP Payment Calculation:  MassDEP has calculated the RDP Payment using the table below which 
shows payment brackets based on the number of households served by the municipal solid waste 
program and the point value for each bracket.  Section 7 – Program Criteria and the 2021 Grant 
Guidelines describe in detail the conditions for earning points.   

 

 
  

7. Program Criteria:  The Municipality, through its RDP application, certifies that all points earned are for 
programs that were in place no later than June 30, 2021 and that these programs fully meet the 
performance standard set forth in the 2021 Grant Guidelines.  Section 13 – RDP Payment Calculation 
lists the program criteria for which the Municipality has earned points, and upon which the 
Municipality’s payment was calculated. 

 

8. Use of Funds:  RDP Payments shall be expended on Approved Expenses listed in the Grant Guidelines 
to enhance the performance of the Municipality’s waste reduction programs.  Use of a dedicated account 
or revolving account is recommended but not required.  Funds may be carried over to future years and 
accumulated to fund a larger eligible expense or project.  Planned use of funds shall be noted on the 
Annual RDP Spending Report. However, MassDEP may delay future RDP payments if municipality is 
not expending funds.   

   
9. Record Keeping:  The Municipality shall be responsible for keeping documentation (i.e. proof of 

purchase in the form of an invoice which lists the vendor name and address, item purchased, item price, 
number of items purchased and shipping costs if any) by calendar year, of how RDP funds were 
expended and the remaining balance of RDP funds.  MassDEP may conduct record audits to ensure 
compliance with this Contract.  
 

10. Reporting:  By February 15th of each year, for the duration of the Contract, the Municipality shall submit 
the annual Recycling and Solid Waste survey and the RDP Spending Report through its ReTRAC 
Connect™ account.  Failure to comply with these reporting requirements will jeopardize future grant 
awards and RDP payments. 
 

11. Environmental Compliance:  The Municipality understands receipt of RDP funds from MassDEP does 
not in any way imply that the Municipality is in compliance with applicable environmental regulations.  
This Municipality shall not be construed as, nor operate as, relieving the Municipality or any other 
person of the necessity of complying with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations and 
approvals. The Municipality’s facility(ies) are subject to inspection at any time by MassDEP and 
noncompliance with applicable environmental regulations may result in formal enforcement actions, 
including penalties. 
 

12. Addendums:  Should MassDEP award additional RDP funds, an addendum to the Contract shall be 
provided to the Municipality.  The same terms and conditions apply to the addendum. 



S I G N  A N D  R E T U R N  T H I S  D O C U M E N T  T O  M A S S D E P  V I A  E M A I L  
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
13. RDP Payment Calculation:    

The Municipality’s payment has been calculated as follows: 
(Value of each point) x (Total RDP Points)  

 
a. Solid Waste Program     0 
b. Organics      0 
c. Bulky Items      2 
d. ReUse Points      0 
e. Yard Waste      2 
f. Household Hazardous Waste    2 
g. Center for Hard to Recycle Materials   2 
h. Comprehensive Hauler Regulation Adopted  0 
i. Enforced Residential Curbside Recycling  0 
j. Outreach and Education     0 
k. Recycling Center Access    1 
l. Textile       0 

  
 

TOTAL RDP POINTS     9 
 
 

VALUE OF EACH POINT $1,100 

RDP PAYMENT AMOUNT $9,900 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, MassDEP and the Municipality hereby execute this Contract. 

 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 
By: _________________________________________________________ ___________ 

John Fischer, Deputy Division Director      (Date) 
Bureau of Air and Waste 
Department of Environmental Protection 

 
Town of Harwich 
VC6000191822 
 
 
By: _________________________________________________________ ___________ 

(Signature and Title)       (Date) 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
(Print Name) 



 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
Phone (508) 430-7513 

Fax (508) 432-5039 

Joseph F. Powers, Town Administrator 732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 

Meggan M. Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 

MEMO 
TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

Board of Selectmen 

Joseph F. Powers, own Administrator 

Meggan M. Eldredge, Assistant Town Administrator 

RE: Update on various town properties 

DATE: Monday, November 22, 2021 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the Board of Selectmen with a status update 
relating to several town-owned properties, including: 

1. 5 Bells Neck Road 
2. 203 Bank Street 
3. 0 Seth Whitefield Road 
4. 77 Willow Street 
5. Pleasant Lake Avenue Project 
6. 276 Queen Anne Road 

5 Bells Neck Road 
The town as informed that the sole bidder, after consultation within its organization, has declined 
the opportunity to move forward to a negotiated purchase price. I will seek further direction 
from the Board. 

203 Bank Street 
The town is still seeking appraisal services to ascertain the value of the main parcel comprised 
of roughly .24 acres and containing the present structure. This step is necessary for the town to 
determine the value of the property for purposes of establishing the request for proposals (RFP). 

0 Seth Whitefield Road 
I am working with Attorney Katie Klein at KP Law on this matter. She was able locate 
information sent previously to the town regarding the status of this project and recommend next 
steps. The town is seeking surveyor services related to this property due to the fact that a prior 
effort to examine tax title issues determined that there is no conclusive findings without the 
benefit of survey work. 

-age 



70 Willow Street 
I am working with staff to determine whether the town has "clean title" to the property prior to 
offering it for sale with the sale proceeds to benefit affordable housing. 

Pleasant Lake Avenue project 
I am working with Attorney Klein to establish next steps for the town to take on the eminent 
domain taking that was authorized at the October 18, 2021 Special Town Meeting. Additionally, 
the town is seeking appraisal services for a second opinion appraisal. 

276 Queen Anne Road 
I received confirmation from a separate town department that they do not have a use for that 
property. As such, there are presently no town departments which have declared a municipal 
use, the Cemetery Committee previously declared surplus as not needed for their purposes. 
Therefore, I seek direction from the Board as to whether and how this surplus land should be 
disposed. 

Additional update not listed 
Attorney Klein has provided a draft eed document for the Board's review on November 29, 2021 
parcels to be conveyed to the Affordable Housing Trust in accordance with the vote of Town 
Meeting under Article 61 at the 2019 Annual Town Meeting. 

Thank you. 

2IPage



 

 

 

CONTRACTS 



HARWICH FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

David J. LeBlanc, Chief of Department 
Craig W. Thornton, Deputy Fire Chief 

Date November 10, 2021 

To: Procurement 

From: Craig Thornton, Deputy Fire Chief 

Subject: CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program(Police Radios) 

Project: The CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program is part of the Commonwealth's strategic 
plan to improve and expand its statewide public safety radio system to become a 
modern, digital, P25-compliant system. Funded by the State 911 Department, the grant 
program provides financial assistance to eligible public safety entities to replace and/or 
upgrade their existing, P25 non-compliant CoMIRS radios. 

The Police Department requested Portable and Mobile replacements through CoMIRS 
that was approved. 

This procurement request is for the Police Department to purchase these radios for the 
department's use. 

Description: 

40 APX6000 700/800 Portable Bundles - $100,745.20 

29 APX6500 Mobile Radios - $76,655.70 

Total: $177,400.90 

Vendor: Motorola Solutions 
Contact: Jim McCone motorep1062Cdgmaii.com

Procurement Method: OSD MA ITT-57 

Based on the pricing requested, and the funds that are available in the article, the 
department would like to make the purchases listed above that are in the attached 
quotes from Motorola Solutions. 

Additional Information: The CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program will reimburse the Town 
$150,873.79 after the Town pays for the equipment and submits documentation. After 
the reimbursement, the cost to the town for this procurement will be $26,527.11. 
HARWICH FIRE DEPARTMENT 175 SISSON ROAD HARWICH, MA 02645 



Explanation of the reimbursement and the Towns' share; 

The total grant award shall not exceed $163,023.79 as stated in the attached award 
letter. 

The award letter provides an allowance for programing portables ($2,000.00), mobiles 
($1,450.00) and installation of mobiles ($8,700.00). These three items total 
$12,1.54.00,' 

The $1'2,_150.0,(? is deducted from the $163,023.79 
that will be reimbursed to the Town for the radios. 

. This leave a balance of $150,873.79 

The total of the two attached Motorola invoices are $177,400.90, subtract the grant 
amount of $150,873.79 leaves a balance of $26,527.11. 

Contact/Signatory: 
Motorola Solutions, INC. 

Jim McCone motorep1062@gmail.com (617)-413-0500 
Motorola Manufacturers Representative 

Included documentation: 
Procurement Checklist and approval form 
Motorola Solutions Quotes 2 Pages 
CoMIRS Radio Grant Program Award Letter 
Harwich Fire CoMIRS Contract 
KP Law Form Contract 

Funding: $223,204.00 

Source: 21 ATM Article 18(Public Safety Radios) 

Total Funding: $26,527.11 after reimbursement. 

HARWICH FIRE DEPARTMENT 175 SISSON ROAD HARWICH, MA 02645 



MCOTCIPIRICIII.,A SOLUTIONS 

 OP/IN, 

Jim McCone 
MOTOROLA MANUFACTURERS REPRESENTATIVE 
Motorola Solutions, Inc 
Phone: 617-413-0500 
motorep1062 qmail.com 

November 9, 2021 

CoMIRS RADIO UPGRADE GRANT PROGRAM 
All terms and conditions AS PER MA ITT-57 

Submitted to: 
Company: 
Address: 
City, State Zip: 
TEL 

DEPUTY CHIEF CRAIG THORNTON FOR 
HARWICH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
183 Sisson Road 
Harwich MA 02645 
508-430-7541 

CoMIRS PR/CE
Item Description Part # APC QTY CoMIRS PRICE 

EXT 

1 - APX6500 MOBILE RADIOP25 CoMIRS BUNDLE 

02 CONTROL HEAD HARDWARE CONFIGURATION 
Remote mount, Mid power, SZ, P25,TDMA OTAP, 
Radio Authentication,3 yr Essential Service,Antenna, STD Palm 
Mic, 13 Watt Aux Speaker,Control Head Software 

M25URS9PWA N 29 $2,559.02 $74,211.58 

APX6500 REMOTE MOUNT E5 CONTROL HEAD MOBILE 
RADIO 

4 SUBSTITUTE E5 DUAL KNOB CONTROL HEAD GA01670AA $84.28 29 $84.28 $2,444.12 
OPTIONS NOT INCLUDED 

3 SUBSTITUTE DASH MOUNT CONFIGURATION G66 ($70.52) 0 $0.00 $0.00 

5 NO ENCRYPTION CLEAR RADIO QA05751 $498,50 0 $0.00 $0.00 
6 NO DVRS MSU INTERFACE SOFTWARE INCLUDED GA00631 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 

Total - Mobile Radios to Operate on Barnstable County Trunking System DISC. TOTAL $76,655.70 

Notes: RADIO WILL BE SUPPLIED AS A CLEAR RADIO WITH NO AES OR ADP ENCRYPTION UNLESS AN ENCRYPTION OPTION IS REQUESTED 
INSTALLATION AND PROGRAMMING SERVICES ARE NOT INCLUDED 
NOTE!! NO DVRS MSU SOFTWARE IS QUOTED DVRS REQUIRES A REMOTE MOUNT RADIO CONFIGURATION 
ONLY THE MOBILE RADIO CONNECTED TO THE DVRS REQUIRES MSU ACTIVATION SOFTWARE 
MSU SOFTWARE CAN BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE WHEN YOU PURCHASE YOUR DVRS UNITS 

Sales Terms and Conditions: 

Payment Terms: 

Price & Terms: 

Warranty Period: 

Shipping: 

45 days after the equipment is shipped from our factories, items are billed as shipped. 

All prices, terms, & conditions in this quotation are based on Motorola's / Mass. ITT 57 Contract 

Motorola's standard warranty is one year on parts and labor, from the date of shipment unless extended 

warranty is purchased. 

4-6 weeks from receipt of a purchase order. 



16011C071V,FICIPL-Al SOLUTIONS 

Jim McCone 
MOTOROLA MANUFACTURERS REPRESENTATIVE 
Motorola Solutions, Inc 
Phone: 617-413-0500 
motorep1062 qmail.com 

  • - 

Submitted to: 
Company: 
Address: 
City, State Zip: 
Tel 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

CoMRS RADIO UPGRADE GRANT PROGRAM 
All terms and conditions AS PER MA ITT-57 

 , . 
Deputy Chief Craig Thornton for 
Harwich Police Department 
183 Sisson Road 
Harwich MA02645 
508-430-7541 

• . • 

Item Description Part # APC PRICE QTY PRICE CoMIRS Price 
CoMIRS Exit

• Price 
1 APX6000 7001800 MODEL 2.5 PORTABLE 

UPGRADE PACKAGE INCLUDES: 

SmartZone, Digital CAI, P25 Phase I&II, TDMA, OTAP

UL Battery, 3 Year Ess Svc, P25 Link Authentication 

Single Unit Charger, Antenna & Standard Carry Holder 

H98UCF9PW6BN 40 $2,518.63 $100,745.20 

APX6000 PORTABLE RADIO BLACK HOUSING 
OPTIONAL ITEMS NOT INCLUDED 

2 SPARE BATTERY PMNN4547 $69.29 0 $0.00 $69.29 $0.00 

3 REMOTE SPEAKER MIC PMNN4062AL $66.52 0 $0.00 $66.52 $0.00 

4 DVRS FUTURECOM SYSTEM QA00631 $76.00 0 $0.00 $76.00 $0.00 

NO ENCRYPTION CLEAR RADIO NO ENCRYPTION $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Notes: 

Total Portable Radios to 0 erate on Barnstable Count Trunkin S stern CoMIRS DISC. TOTAL $100,745.201

RADIO WILL BE SUPPLIED AS A CLEAR RADIO WITH NO AES OR ADP ENCRYPTION UNLESS ENCRYPTION OPTION IS REQUESTED. 
NO INSTALLATION, ENGRAVING OR PROGRAMMING SERVICES ARE INCLUDED. 
DVRS ACTIVATION SOFTWARE IS NOT INCLUDED AS REQUESTED 

Sales Terms and Conditions: 

Payment Terms: 

Price & Terms: 

Warranty Period: 

Shipping: 

45 days after the equipment is shipped from our factories, items are billed as shipped. 

All prices, terms, & conditions in this quotation are based on Motorola's / Mass. ITT 57 Contract 

Motorola's standard warranty is one year on parts and labor, from the date of shipment unless extended 

warranty is purchased. 

4-6 weeks from receipt of a purchase order. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA823C4F-4901-42C0-9B61-9F13D0E45A7B 

PROCUREMENT CHECKLIST & APPROVAL FORM 

STAFF LEAD: Thornton / Consodine DEPARTMENT:  Police Department 

FUNDING SOURCE:  21 ATM Article 18 (Public Safety Radios) 

Appropriated amount:  $223,204.00

PROCUREMENT METHOD: 

Estimated cost: $177,400.90 Actual cost:  $26,527.11

OSD MA ITT-57 CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Interoperable Radio System (CoMIRS) Radio Upgrade Grant Program 

PURCHASE DESCRIPTION: 

'The Police Department is required to upgrade radios as part of the State Radio system upgrade. The State 
secured large discounts due to the quantity of radios being purchased. This procurement is using State 
contract pricing under the CoMIRS program. Commonwealth of Massachusetts Interoperable Radio System 
(CoMIRS) is a statewide radio system that provides operable and interoperable communications. 

'This procurement is for the purchase of the following: 

• 40 Motorola APX Portables - $100,745.20 
29 Motorola APX Mobile Radios - $76,655.70 

!The CoMIRS upgrade grant program will reimburse the Town the cost of the requested Portable and 
Mobiles in the amount of $150,873.79. The Town's obligation under this purchase will be $26,527.11. 

01220A2/621018 

PROCUREMENT MAY PROCEED ONLY IF SIGNATURES PROVIDED BELOW 
DocuSigned by: 

Funds Available: Finance Director: L°A-4*1 aff 4-i&- Account # 
48C32039D33D434... 

 DocuSigned by: 

Lyooe,ph,e. POWeitek 
Approved to proceed: Town Administrator or Designee: 

0623C005799644E... 



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA823C4F-4901-42C0-9B61-9F13D0E45A7B 

HARWICH FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

David J. LeBlanc, Chief of Department 
Craig W. Thornton, Deputy Fire Chief 

Date November 10, 2021 

To: Procurement 

From: Craig Thornton, Deputy Fire Chief 

Subject: CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program(Police Radios) 

Project: The CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program is part of the Commonwealth's strategic 
plan to improve and expand its statewide public safety radio system to become a 
modern, digital, P25-compliant system. Funded by the State 911 Department, the grant 
program provides financial assistance to eligible public safety entities to replace and/or 
upgrade their existing, P25 non-compliant CoMIRS radios. 

The Police Department requested Portable and Mobile replacements through CoMIRS 
that was approved. 

This procurement request is for the Police Department to purchase these radios for the 
department's use. 

Description: 

40 APX6000 700/800 Portable Bundles - $100,745.20 

29 APX6500 Mobile Radios - $76,655.70 

Total: $177,400.90 

Vendor: Motorola Solutions 
Contact: Jim McCone motorep1062@gmail.com 

Procurement Method: OSD MA ITT-57 

Based on the pricing requested, and the funds that are available in the article, the 
department would like to make the purchases listed above that are in the attached 
quotes from Motorola Solutions. 

Additional Information: The CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program will reimburse the Town 
$150,873.79 after the Town pays for the equipment and submits documentation. After 
the reimbursement, the cost to the town for this procurement will be $26,527.11. 
HARWICH FIRE DEPARTMENT 175 SISSON ROAD HARWICH, MA 02645 



DocuSign Envelope ID: AA823C4F-4901-4200-9B61-9F13D0E45A7B 

Explanation of the reimbursement and the Towns' share; 

The total grant award shall not exceed $163,023.79 as stated in the attached award 
letter. 

The award letter provides an allowance for programing portables ($2,000.00), mobiles 
($1,450.00) and installation of mobiles ($8,700.00). These three items total 
$12,150.00. 

The $12,150.00 is deducted from the $163,023.79. This leave a balance of $150,873.79 
that will be reimbursed to the Town for the radios. 

The total of the two attached Motorola invoices are $177,400.90, subtract the grant 
amount of $150,873.79 leaves a balance of $26,527.11. 

Contact/Signatory: 
Motorola Solutions, INC. 

Jim McCone motorep1062@gmail.com (617)-413-0500 
Motorola Manufacturers Representative 

Included documentation: 
Procurement Checklist and approval form 
Motorola Solutions Quotes 2 Pages 
CoMIRS Radio Grant Program Award Letter 
Harwich Fire CoMIRS Contract 
KP Law Form Contract 

Funding: $223,204.00 

Source: 21 ATM Article 18(Public Safety Radios) 

Total Funding: $26,527.11 after reimbursement. 

HARWICH FIRE DEPARTMENT 175 SISSON ROAD HARWICH, MA 02645 



1114107"COFICOL,Al S QL L TIONS 

11-3  -
Jim McCone 
MOTOROLA MANUFACTURERS REPRESENTATIVE 
Motorola Solutions, Inc 
Phone: 617-413-0500 
motorep1062@qmail.com 

• 

Submitted to: 
Company: 
Address: 
City, State Zip: 
TEL 

November 9, 2021 

CoMIRS RADIO UPG 'I DE GRANT PROGRAM 
All terms and conditions AS PER MA ITT-57 

DEPUTY CHIEF CRAIG THORNTON FOR 
HARWICH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
183 Sisson Road 
Harwich MA 02645 
508-430-7541 

Item Description Part # APC QTY CoMIRS PRICE 
CoMIRS PRICE 

EXT 

1 APX6500 MOBILE RADIOP25 CoMIRS BUNDLE 

02 CONTROL HEAD HARDWARE CONFIGURATION 

Remote mount, Mid power, SZ, P25,TDMA OTAP, 
Radio Authentication,3 yr Essential Service,Antenna, STD Palm 
Mic, 13 Watt Aux Speaker,Control Head Software 

M25URS9PWA N 29 $2,559.02 $74,211.58 

APX6500 REMOTE MOUNT E5 CONTROL HEAD MOBILE 
RADIO 

4 SUBSTITUTE E5 DUAL KNOB CONTROL HEAD GA01670AA $84.28 29 $84.28 $2,444.12 

OPTIONS NOT INCLUDED 

3 SUBSTITUTE DASH MOUNT CONFIGURATION G66 ($70.52) 0 $0.00 $0.00 

5 NO ENCRYPTION CLEAR RADIO QA05751 $498,50 0 $0.00 $0.00 

6 NO DVRS MSU INTERFACE SOFTWARE INCLUDED GA00631 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 
Total - Mobile Radios to Operate on Barnstable County Trunking System DISC. TOTAL $76,655.70 

Notes: RADIO WILL BE SUPPLIED AS A CLEAR RADIO WITH NO AES OR ADP ENCRYPTION UNLESS AN ENCRYPTION OPTION IS REQUESTED 
INSTALLATION AND PROGRAMMING SERVICES ARE NOT INCLUDED 
NOTE!! NO DVRS MSU SOFTWARE IS QUOTED DVRS REQUIRES A REMOTE MOUNT RADIO CONFIGURATION 
ONLY THE MOBILE RADIO CONNECTED TO THE DVRS REQUIRES MSU ACTIVATION SOFTWARE 
MSU SOFTWARE CAN BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE WHEN YOU PURCHASE YOUR DVRS UNITS 

Sales Terms and Conditions: 

Payment Terms: 

Price & Terms: 

Warranty Period: 

Shipping: 

45 days after the equipment is shipped from our factories, items are billed as shipped. 

All prices, terms, & conditions in this quotation are based on Motorola's / Mass. ITT 57 Contract 

Motorola's standard warranty is one year on parts and labor, from the date of shipment unless extended 

warranty is purchased. 

4-6 weeks from receipt of a purchase order. 

D
ocuS

ign E
nvelope ID

: A
A

823C
4F

-4901-42C
0-9B

61-9F
13D

0E
45A

7B
 



114C07-COPICNIL,A1 SOLUTIONS 

aIMPNMMN1C====_ 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

CoMIRS RADIO UPGRADE GRANT PROGRAM 
All terms and conditions AS PER MA ITT-57 

Jim McCone 
MOTOROLA MANUFACTURERS REPRESENTATIVE 
Motorola Solutions, Inc 
Phone: 617-413-0500 
motorep1062 qmail.com 

Submitted to: 
Company: 
Address: 
City, State Zip: 
Tel 

Deputy Chief Craig Thornton for 
Harwich Police Department 
183 Sisson Road 
Harwich MA02645 
508-430-7541 

Item Description Part # APC PRICE QTY PRICE CoMIRS Price 
CoMIRS Ext 

Price 
1 APX6000 700/800 MODEL 2.5 PORTABLE 

UPGRADE PACKAGE INCLUDES: 

SmartZone, Digital CAI, P25 Phase l&II, TDMA, OTAP 

UL Battery, 3 Year Ess Svc, P25 Link Authentication 

Single Unit Charger, Antenna & Standard Carry Holder 

H98UCF9PW6BN 40 $2,518.63 $100,745.20

APX6000 PORTABLE RADIO BLACK HOUSING 
OPTIONAL ITEMS NOT INCLUDED 

2 SPARE BATTERY PMNN4547 $69.29 0 $0.00 $69.29 $0.00 
3 REMOTE SPEAKER MIC PMNN4062AL $66.52 0 $0.00 $66.52 $0.00 
4 DVRS FUTURECOM SYSTEM QA00631 $76.00 0 $0.00 $76.00 $0.00 
5 NO ENCRYPTION CLEAR RADIO NO ENCRYPTION $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

J Total - Portable Radios to Operate on Barnstable County Trunking System CoMIRS DISC. TOTAL $100,745.20 

Notes: 
RADIO WILL BE SUPPLIED AS A CLEAR RADIO WITH NO AES OR ADP ENCRYPTION UNLESS ENCRYPTION OPTION IS REQUESTED. 
NO INSTALLATION, ENGRAVING OR PROGRAMMING SERVICES ARE INCLUDED. 
DVRS ACTIVATION SOFTWARE IS NOT INCLUDED AS REQUESTED 

Sales Terms and Conditions: 

Payment Terms: 

Price & Terms: 

Warranty Period: 

45 days after the equipment is shipped from our factories, items are billed as shipped. 

All prices, terms, & conditions in this quotation are based on Motorola's / Mass. ITT 57 Contract 

Motorola's standard warranty is one year on parts and labor, from the date of shipment unless extended 

warranty is purchased. 

Shipping: 4-6 weeks from receipt of a purchase order. 

D
ocuS

ign E
nvelope ID

: A
A

823C
4F

-4901-42C
0-9661-9F

13D
0E

45A
7B

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 07EF735E-2799-4EC2-AFB9-57D651357B0E 

AGREEMENT FOR TOWN OF HARWICH 

The following provisions shall constitute an Agreement between the Town of Harwich, acting by 
and through its Board of Selectmen, hereinafter referred to as "Town," and Motorola Solutions, 
with an address of Motorola Solutions 500 W Monroe St Ste 4400, Chicago, IL 60661, 
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor", effective as of the 15th day of _November, 2021. In 
consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1: SCOPE OF WORK: 

The Contractor shall provide the Town with _Motorola Mobile and Portable Radios as 

listed in the attached quotes, including the scope of services set forth in Attachment A. 

ARTICLE 2: TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 

The Contractor shall complete all work and services required hereunder as the products in 

Quotes become available for delivery. 

ARTICLE 3: COMPENSATION: 

The Town shall pay the Contractor for the performance of the work outlined in Article 1 

above the contract sum of $177,400.90. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the 

Town for services rendered, which will be due 30 days following receipt by the Town. 

ARTICLE 4: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

The following documents form the Contract and all are as fully a part of the Contract as if 

attached to this Agreement or repeated herein: 

1. This Agreement. 
2. Amendments, or other changes mutually agreed upon between the parties. 
3. All attachments to the Agreement. 

In the event of conflicting provisions, those provisions most favorable to the Town shall 

govern. 

R:\Admin Sharc\Procurcment\APX CoMIRS Procurment - Police\KP Law Harwich - Form Contract Radios - 
Police.doc 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 07EF735E-2799-4EC2-AFB9-57D651357B0E 

ARTICLE 5: CONTRACT TERMINATION: 

The Town may suspend or terminate this Agreement by providing the Contractor with ten 

(10) days written notice for the reasons outlined as follows: 

1. Failure of the Contractor, for any reason, to fulfill in a timely and proper manner 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

2. Violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the Contractor. 
3. A determination by the Town that the Contractor has engaged in fraud, waste, 

mismanagement, misuse of funds, or criminal activity with any funds provided by 
this Agreement. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience by providing the 

other party written notice specifying therein the termination date which shall be no sooner than 

thirty (30) days from the issuance of said notice. Upon receipt of a notice of termination from 

the Town, the Contractor shall cease to incur additional expenses in connection with the 

Agreement. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all 

satisfactory work completed prior to the termination date as determined by the Town. Such 

payment shall not exceed the fair value of the services provided hereunder. 

ARTICLE 6: INDEMNIFICATION: 

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its officers, 

agents, and all employees from and against claims arising directly or indirectly from the contract. 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for all local taxes or contributions imposed or required 

under the Social Security, Workers' Compensation, and income tax laws. Further, the Contractor 

shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town with respect to any damages, expenses, or 

claims arising from or in connection with any of the work performed or to be performed under 

2 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 07EF735E-2799-4EC2-AFB9-57D651357BOE 

this Agreement. This shall not be construed as a limitation of the Contractor's liability under the 

Agreement or as otherwise provided by law. 

ARTICLE 7: AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

The compensation provided by this Agreement is subject to the availability and 

appropriation of funds. 

ARTICLE 8: APPLICABLE LAW: 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, 

regulations and orders relating to the completion of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

ARTICLE 9: ASSIGNMENT: 

The Contractor shall not make any assignment of this Agreement without the prior 

written approval of the Town. 

ARTICLE 10: AMENDMENTS: 

All amendments or any changes to the provisions specified in this Contract can only 

occur when mutually agreed upon by the Town and Contractor. Further, such amendments or 

changes shall be in writing and signed by officials with authority to bind the Town. No 

amendment or change to the contract provisions shall be made until after the written execution of 

the amendment or change to the Contract by both parties. 

3 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 07EF735E-2799-4EC2-AFB9-57D651357B0E 

ARTICLE 11: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 

The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is acting as an independent contractor for 

all work and services rendered pursuant to this Agreement and shall not be considered an 

employee or agent of the Town for any purpose. 

ARTICLE 12: INSURANCE: 

The Contractor shall be responsible to the Town or any third party for any property 

damage or bodily injury caused by it, any of its subcontractors, employees or agents in the 

performance of, or as a result of, the work under this Agreement. The Contractor and any 

subcontractors used hereby certify that they are insured for workers' compensation, property 

damage, personal and product liability. The Contractor and any subcontractor it uses shall 

purchase, furnish copies of, and maintain in full force and effect insurance policies in the 

amounts here indicated. 

1) General Liability of at least $1,000,000 Occurrence/$3,000,000 General 
Aggregate. The Municipality should be named as an "Additional 
Insured". Products and Completed Operations should be maintained for 
up to 3 years after the completion of the project. 

2) Automobile Liability (applicable for any contractor who has an 
automobile operating exposure) of at least $1,000,000 Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage per accident. The Municipality should be named as an 
"Additional Insured". 

3) Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by law. Include Employers Liability Part 
B with a limit of $1,000,000 

4) Builders' Risk Property Coverage for the full insurable value. It should 
include "All Risk" insurance for physical loss or damage including theft. 

5) Property Coverage for materials and services being transported by the 
contractor, as the Town's Property Contract provides coverage for 
personal property within 1000 feet of the premises. 

6) Umbrella Liability of at least $2,000,000/ occurrence, 
$2,000,000/aggregate. The Municipality should be named as an 
Additional Insured. 

7) Architects and Engineers Professional Liability (applicable for any 
architects or engineers involved in the project) of at least 
$1,000,000/occurrence, $3,000,000 aggregate. 

4 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 07EF735E-2799-4EC2-AFB9-57D651357B0E 

Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 

Town with Certificates of Insurance which include the Town as an additional named insured and 

which include a thirty day notice of cancellation to the Town. 

ARTICLE 13: SEVERABILITY: 

If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent 

be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by the court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, 

legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be 

deemed affected thereby unless one or both parties would be substantially or materially 

prejudiced. 

ARTICLE 14: ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 

This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the 

entire integrated agreement between the parties with respect to the matters described. This 

Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either written or 

oral, and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by the 

parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 15: COUNTERPARTS: 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be a counterpart original. 

5 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 07EF735E-2799-4EC2-AFB9-57D651357B0E 

CERTIFICATION AS TO PAYMENT OF STATE TAXES 

Pursuant to Chapter 62C of the Massachusetts General Laws, Section 49A(b), I, 
Michael Sheridan 

 , authorized signatory for the Contractor do hereby certify under the 

pains and penalties of peljury that said Contractor has complied with all laws of the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and 

withholding and remitting child support. 

,. -DocuSigned by: 

361115800 Ilkiduka SluxikuA, 
Social Security Number or SignatiiiileOrrtfonidual or 
Federal Identification Number Corporate Name 

By: 
Corporate Officer 
(if applicable) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 

day and year first above written. 

CONTRACTOR • TOWN OF HARWICH 
By 

DocuSigned by: 
by its Board of Selectmen Over $50,000 

c--- 

S-6rioGuA, 
\--AD81-1- 0032E52422... 

Michael Sheridan Area Sales Manager 

Printed Name and Title 

Approved as to Availability of Funds: 
r—DocuSigned by: 01220A2/621018 

($ 

Finatia-MfeUPW"...

by its Town Administrator Up to $50,000 

Contract Sum Town Administrator 

6 



MIC171-COFICPLAI SOLUTIONS 
November 9, 2021 

CoMERS RADIO UPGRADE GRANT PROGRAM 

C 0 
C)

CD
Co C 

All terms and conditions AS PER MA ITT-57 C 
co 

Jim McCone Submitted to: DEPUTY CHIEF CRAIG THORNTON FOR CO

0

MOTOROLA MANUFACTURERS REPRESENTATIVE Company: HARWICH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Motorola Solutions, Inc Address: 183 Sisson Road 
Phone: 617-413-0500 City, State Zip: Harwich MA 02645 rr. m 
motorep1062 qmail.com TEL 508-430-7541 

rn 
CoMIRS PRICE 

Item Description Part # APC QTY CoMIRS PRICE 
EXT 

1 APX6500 MOBILE RADIOP25 CoMIRS BUNDLE 

02 CONTROL HEAD HARDWARE CONFIGURATION 

Remote mount, Mid power, SZ, P25,TDMA OTAP, 
Radio Authentication,3 yr Essential Service,Antenna, STD Palm 
Mic, 13 Watt Aux Speaker,Control Head Software 

M25URS9PWA N 29 $2,559.02 $74,211.58 

APX6500 REMOTE MOUNT E5 CONTROL HEAD MOBILE 
RADIO 

4 SUBSTITUTE E5 DUAL KNOB CONTROL HEAD GA01670AA $84.28 29 $84.28 $2,444.12 

OPTIONS NOT INCLUDED 

3 SUBSTITUTE DASH MOUNT CONFIGURATION G66 ($70.52) 0 $0.00 $0.00 

5 NO ENCRYPTION CLEAR RADIO QA05751 $498,50 0 $0.00 $0.00 

6 NO DVRS MSU INTERFACE SOFTWARE INCLUDED GA00631 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 

Total - Mobile Radios to Operate on Barnstable County Trunking System DISC. TOTAL $76,655.70 

Notes: RADIO WILL BE SUPPLIED AS A CLEAR RADIO WITH NO AES OR ADP ENCRYPTION UNLESS AN ENCRYPTION OPTION IS REQUESTED 
INSTALLATION AND PROGRAMMING SERVICES ARE NOT INCLUDED 
NOTE!! NO DVRS MSU SOFTWARE IS QUOTED DVRS REQUIRES A REMOTE MOUNT RADIO CONFIGURATION 
ONLY THE MOBILE RADIO CONNECTED TO THE DVRS REQUIRES MSU ACTIVATION SOFTWARE 
MSU SOFTWARE CAN BE ADDED AT A LATER DATE WHEN YOU PURCHASE YOUR DVRS UNITS 

Sales Terms and Conditions: 

Payment Terms: 

Price & Terms: 

Warranty Period: 

Shipping: 

45 days after the equipment is shipped from our factories, items are billed as shipped. 

All prices, terms, & conditions in this quotation are based on Motorola's / Mass. ITT 57 Contract 

Motorola's standard warranty is one year on parts and labor, from the date of shipment unless extended 

warranty is purchased. 

4-6 weeks from receipt of a purchase order. 

CD
CD 

-r, 
- Co 
CD 01

- 
C • a: 

 10
W -c 



MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS 
DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

CoMIRS RADIO UPGRADE GRANT PROGRAM 
All terms and conditions AS PER MA ITT-57 

Jim McCone 
MOTOROLA MANUFACTURERS REPRESENTATIVE 
Motorola Solutions, Inc 
Phone: 617-413-0500 
motorep1062 qmail.com 

Submitted to: 
Company: 
Address: 
City, State Zip: 
Tel 

Deputy Chief Craig Thornton for 
Harwich Police Department 
183 Sisson Road 
Harwich MA02645 
508-430-7541 

Item Description Part # APC PRICE QTY PRICE CoMIRS Price 
CoMIRS Ext 

Price 
1 APX6000 700/800 MODEL 2.5 PORTABLE 

UPGRADE PACKAGE INCLUDES: 

SmartZone, Digital CAI, P25 Phase l&II, TDMA, OTAP 

UL Battery, 3 Year Ess Svc, P25 Link Authentication 

Single Unit Charger, Antenna & Standard Carry Holder 

H98UCF9PW6BN 40 $2,518.63 $100,745.20 — 

APX6000 PORTABLE RADIO BLACK HOUSING 
OPTIONAL ITEMS NOT INCLUDED 

2 SPARE BATTERY PMNN4547 $69.29 0 $0.00 $69.29 $0.00 

3 REMOTE SPEAKER MIC PMNN4062AL $66.52 0 $0.00 $66.52 $0.00 

4 DVRS FUTURECOM SYSTEM QA00631 $76.00 0 $0.00 $76.00 $0.00 

5 NO ENCRYPTION CLEAR RADIO NO ENCRYPTION $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Total - Portable Radios to Operate on Barnstable County Trunking System CoMIRS DISC. TOTAL $100,745.20 

Notes: 
RADIO WILL BE SUPPLIED AS A CLEAR RADIO WITH NO AES OR ADP ENCRYPTION UNLESS ENCRYPTION OPTION IS REQUESTED. 
NO INSTALLATION, ENGRAVING OR PROGRAMMING SERVICES ARE INCLUDED. 
DVRS ACTIVATION SOFTWARE IS NOT INCLUDED AS REQUESTED 

Sales Terms and Conditions: 

Payment Terms: 

Price & Terms: 

Warranty Period: 

45 days after the equipment is shipped from our factories, items are billed as shipped. 

All prices, terms, & conditions in this quotation are based on Motorola's I Mass. ITT 57 Contract 

Motorola's standard warranty is one year on parts and labor, from the date of shipment unless extended 

warranty is purchased. 

Shipping: 4-6 weeks from receipt of a purchase order. 

D
o

cu
S

ig
n

 E
n
ve

lo
p
e
 ID

: 0
7
E

F
7
3
5
E

-2
7
9
9
-4

E
C

2
-A

F
B

9
-5

7
D

6
5
1
3
5
7
B

O
E

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: DF97C213-49B7-42F6-8B7C-CE9C3F3F3FEA 2021 ATM Art 18 Appropriation: $223,204ATM 

Low Bidder: Motorola Bid Price: $177,400.90(OSD MA ITT-57) 

Please complete checklist below for contracts requiring Selectmen* signature '

in order to get sign-off approval from the Town Administrator or the Assistant Town Administrator. 
*Note: contracts (not grants) below $50,000 can be signed by Town Administrator. 

NI 

1. Please provide a separate page titled "Summary of Project" which includes: 
a. Provide how many bidders there were, the range of bids, and apparent low bidder. 
b. Identify the funding source, such as article number and amount approved. 01220A2/621018 

c. Include what you feel is pertinent, but keep this section to 4 sentences or less. 
DocuSigned by: 

eofp-at- Account # 

11

2. Finance Director has signed that funds are available: 

3. Please provide a single copy of the bid packet along 
4. Please use 1<-P Law provided standardized contracts. 

Written spec sheet. 
Advertised for two weeks on Central Register 
and COMMBUYS. 

❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 
C3. If construction over $25,000 you need C1, C2, 

as well as: 
a. Show project was in the Capital Plan. 
b. Low bidder provides 50% payment bond after 

Selectmen's countersignature. 
C4. If construction over $50,000 you need C1, C2, 

C3, as well as: 
a. Bid Bond of 5% of total value. 
b. Sealed Bids. 
c. End of Public Works construction requirements 

C5. If Building estimated construction costs are 
over $300,000 and estimated design costs are 
over $30,000 you'll need to follow the 
Designer Selection RFQ process: 

❑ a. Advertise in Central Register and local 
newspaper for two weeks. 

El b. Set a designer fee or price ceiling. 
[1] c. Use Standard Designer Application Form 
C6. If Building construction over $150,000 you'll 

need C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, as well as: 
El a. 100% payment bond was in bids. 
❑ b. 100% performance bond was in bids. 
❑ c. DCAMM certified bidders. 

DCAMM certified sub-bids if over $25,000. 

C7. If Building construction over $10,000,000 
you'll need Cl, C2, C3, C4, C5, C6, as well as: 
a. Solicit qualifications prior to sealed bids. 

Buildings and Public Works 
Cl. Please show Prevailing Wage was used. 
C2. If construction is near $10,000 you also need: 
❑ a. 
El b. 

CI Original for Accounting El OriginalD r
igned 

fo P curement 
f-ocuS 

Procurement 
by: 

(90aelah,Signature of Town Administrator: 

40 2n131513tting documents. 

GS1. 
a. 

Post Procurement Checklist 

DeTore vveanesaay morning ** 

Goods and Services 
If procured using the State Bid List: 
Over $25,000 please show project was on the 
Capital Plan. 

GS2. If project is over $5,000: 
❑ a. Please provide written spec sheet used and 

who it was sent to. 
111 b. Maximum contract length is three years. 

GS3. If project is over $50,000: 

El a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 
a newspaper and on COMMBUYS. 

Li b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 
❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 

GS4. If project is over $100,000: 
❑ a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

COMMBUYS and Goods and Services Bulletin. 
El b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 

Note 1: If lowest bidder was found to be either 
not responsive or not responsible, the Town may 
begin negotiations with next lowest bidder. 

Note 2: Bids may be negotiated downwards but 
never higher than original quote. 

Note 3: Municipalities shall not provide a down 
payment, deposit, or provide funding before 
possession of purchased item. 

❑ Original for Vendor El Contract to Treasurer's 

 0623C005799644E... 

**Aintp. to nnin .siren-off before Wednesday at noon results in the contract beina delayed to the next meetina. 



Town of Harwich Water Department 
 

196 Chatham Road, Harwich, MA 02645 USA * www.harwichwater.com 

P. 508-432-0304 * F. 888-774-3557 * commissioners@harwichwater.com 

 

 

 

 

To: Harwich Board of Selectmen 

From: Dan Pelletier, Superintendent of Water & Wastewater 

RE: Route 28 Sewer Design Agreement & CWMP Revision Agreement with GHD 

Date: November 19, 2021 
 

 

Included with this memo are two agreements between the Town of Harwich and GHD for professional services 

relative to the positive action take under Article 1: Fund Costs Related To Updating the Comprehensive 

Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP) and Article 4: Fund Costs Related To Route 28 Wastewater Collection 

System Design at Special Town Meeting on October 18th 2021. The proposed contract price for both 

agreements is under town meeting appropriation and the Finance Director has signed off as to the availability of 

funds. As such, I recommend the Board take favorable action on the following agreements between the Town of 

Harwich and GHD for the Route 28 Sewer Design and CWMP update.  

http://www.harwichwater.com/
mailto:commissioners@harwichwater.com


 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 

BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF HARWICH, MASSACHUSETTS 

AND GHD 

FOR CWMP UPDATE   

 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made this ____ day of _______________, 2021 between GHD, 

with a usual place of business at 1545 Iyannough Road, Hyannis, MA 02601, hereinafter called 
the “ENGINEER,” and the Town of Harwich, MA, acting by its Board of Selectmen, with a 
usual place of business at Harwich Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645, hereinafter 
called the “TOWN”. 
 

The ENGINEER and the TOWN, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as 
follows: 
 
1. Scope of Work 
 

The ENGINEER shall perform the work set forth in the Scope of Services attached hereto 
as Exhibit A. 
 
2. Contract Price 
 

The TOWN shall pay the ENGINEER for services rendered in the performance of this 
Agreement a not to exceed amount of Two Hundred Twenty Nine Thousand Dollars and Zero 
Cents ($229,000.00), subject to any additions and deductions provided for herein at the hourly 
rates set forth in Exhibit B.  The amount to be paid to the ENGINEER shall not exceed 
$229,000.00 without the prior written consent of the TOWN. 
 
3. Commencement and Completion of Work 
 

A. This Agreement shall commence on ____________ and shall expire on 
_______________, unless terminated sooner in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
B. Progress and Completion:  ENGINEER shall commence work promptly upon 

execution of this Agreement and shall prosecute and complete the work regularly, 
diligently, and uninterruptedly at such a rate of progress as will insure completion 
in a timely manner. 

 
4. Performance of the Work 
 

The ENGINEER shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skills and attention, 
which shall not be less than such state of skill and attention generally rendered by the 
engineering/design profession for projects similar to the Project in scope, difficulty and location.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 

\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP 
Updates\Agreement\Harwich Agreement.doc 

2 

 
A. Responsibility for the Work:   

 
(1) The ENGINEER shall be responsible to the TOWN for the acts and 

omissions of his employees, subcontractors and their agents and 
employees, and other persons performing any of the Work under a 
contract with the ENGINEER.  Consistent with the standard of care 
referenced above, the ENGINEER shall be responsible for the 
professional and technical accuracy for all work or services furnished 
by him or his consultants and subcontractors.  The ENGINEER shall 
perform his work under this Agreement in such a competent and 
professional manner that detail checking and reviewing by the TOWN 
shall not be necessary. 

 
(2) The ENGINEER shall not employ additional consultants, nor sublet, 

assign or transfer any part of his services or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior approval and written consent of the 
TOWN.  Such written consent shall not in any way relieve the 
ENGINEER from his responsibility for the professional and technical 
accuracy for the work or services furnished under this Agreement. 

 
(3) All consultants must be registered and licensed in their respective 

disciplines if registration and licensor are required under the 
applicable provisions of Massachusetts law. 

 
(4) The ENGINEER and all consultants and subcontractors shall conform 

their work and services to any guidelines, standards and regulations of 
any governmental authority applicable to the type of work or services 
covered by this Agreement. 

 
(5) The ENGINEER shall not be relieved from its obligations to perform 

the work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement either 
by the activities or duties of the TOWN in its administration of the 
Agreement, or by inspections, tests or approvals required or performed 
by persons other than the ENGINEER. 

 
(6) Neither the TOWN's review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment 

for any of the work or services performed shall be construed to 
operate as a waiver of any rights under the Agreement or any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of the Agreement. 

 
B. Deliverables, Ownership of Documents:  One (1) reproducible copy of all 

drawings, plans, specifications, and other documents prepared by the ENGINEER 
shall become the property of the TOWN upon payment in full therefor to the 
ENGINEER.  Ownership of stamped drawings and specifications shall not 
include the ENGINEER's certification or stamp.  Any re-use of such documents 
without the ENGINEER's written verification of suitability for the specific 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 

\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP 
Updates\Agreement\Harwich Agreement.doc 

3 

purpose intended shall be without liability or legal exposure to the ENGINEER or 
to the ENGINEER's independent professional associates, subcontractors or 
consultants.  Distribution or submission to meet official regulatory requirements 
or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as an 
act in derogation of the ENGINEER's rights under this Agreement. 

 
C. Compliance With Laws:  In the performance of the Work, the ENGINEER shall 

comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, including 
those relating to workplace and employee safety.   

 
5. Site Information Not Guaranteed; Contractor's Investigation 
 

The TOWN shall furnish to the ENGINEER available surveys, data and documents 
relating to the area which is the subject of the Scope of Work.  All such information, including 
that relating to subsurface and other conditions, natural phenomena, existing pipes, and other 
structures is from the best sources at present available to the TOWN.  All such information is 
furnished only for the information and convenience of the ENGINEER and is not guaranteed.  It 
is agreed and understood that the TOWN does not warrant or guarantee that the subsurface or 
other conditions, natural phenomena, existing pipes, or other structures will be the same as those 
indicated in the information furnished, and the ENGINEER must reasonably satisfy himself as to 
the correctness of such information.  If, in the opinion of the ENGINEER, such information is 
inadequate, the ENGINEER may request the TOWN's approval to verify such information 
through the use of consultants or additional exploration.  In no case shall the ENGINEER 
commence such work without the TOWN's prior written consent.  Such work shall be 
compensated as agreed upon by TOWN and ENGINEER. 
 
6. Payments to the Contractor 
 

A. Cost incurred on this project shall be billed monthly on an hourly basis as outlined 
in the attached Exhibit B.  Payment shall be due 30 days after receipt of an 
invoice by the TOWN. 

 
B. If there is a material change in the scope of work, the TOWN and the ENGINEER 

shall mutually agree to an adjustment in the Contract Price.   
 
C. If the TOWN authorizes the ENGINEER to perform additional services, the 

ENGINEER shall be compensated in an amount mutually agreed upon, in 
advance, in writing.  Except in the case of an emergency, the ENGINEER shall 
not perform any additional services until such compensation has been so 
established. 

 
7. Reimbursement 
 

Except as otherwise included in the Contract Price or otherwise provided for under this 
Agreement, the ENGINEER shall be reimbursed by the TOWN: (a) at 1.0 times the actual cost to 
the ENGINEER of consultants retained to obtain information pursuant to Article 5 hereof or 
otherwise.  No such reimbursement shall be made unless the rates of compensation have been 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 

\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP 
Updates\Agreement\Harwich Agreement.doc 

4 

approved, in advance, by the TOWN; or (b) at 1.0 times the actual cost of additional or specially 
authorized expense items, as approved by the TOWN.  
 
8. Final Payment, Effect 
 

The acceptance of final payment by the ENGINEER shall constitute a waiver of all 
payment-related claims by the ENGINEER arising under the Agreement. 
 
9. Terms Required By Law 
 

This Agreement shall be considered to include all terms required to be included in it by 
the Massachusetts General Laws, and all other laws, as though such terms were set forth in full 
herein. 
 
10. Indemnification 
 

A. General Liability:   The ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
TOWN, to the proportionate extent of its liability, from and against claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, to the extent 
directly related to the performance of this Agreement and to the extent the same 
relate to matters of general commercial liability, when such claims, damages, 
losses, and expenses are caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or wrongful 
acts or omissions of the ENGINEER or his employees, agents, subcontractors or 
representatives. 

 
B. Professional Liability:   The ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the 

TOWN, to the proportionate extent of its liability, from and against claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, directly 
related to the performance of this Agreement and to the extent the same relate to 
the professional competence of the ENGINEER's services, when such claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses are caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
acts, negligent errors or omissions of the ENGINEER or his employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives. 

 
Limitation of Liability:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
neither party to this Agreement shall be liable to the other for any consequential, special, 
indirect, incidental or punitive damages arising from this Agreement including but not 
limited to loss of use, revenue, profits and goodwill.  The foregoing disclaimer of liability 
shall apply regardless of whether such liability is based on breach of contract, tort 
(including without limitation negligence), strict liability, breach of a fundamental term, 
fundamental breach, or otherwise. 
 

11. Insurance 
 

A. The ENGINEER shall at his own expense obtain and maintain a Professional 
Liability Insurance policy for errors, omissions or negligent acts directly related to 
the performance of this Agreement in a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 

\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP 
Updates\Agreement\Harwich Agreement.doc 

5 

 
B. The coverage shall be in force from the time of the agreement to the date when all 

construction work for the Project is completed and accepted by the TOWN.  If, 
however, the policy is a claims made policy, it shall remain in force for a period 
of three (3) years after completion.   

 
Since this insurance is normally written on a year-to-year basis, the ENGINEER 
shall notify the TOWN should coverage become unavailable.   

 
C. The ENGINEER shall, before commencing performance of this Agreement, 

provide by insurance for the payment of compensation and the furnishing of other 
benefits in accordance with M.G.L. c.152, as amended, to all its employees and 
shall continue such insurance in full force and effect during the term of the 
Agreement. 

 
D. The ENGINEER shall carry insurance in a sufficient amount to assure the 

restoration of any plans, drawings, computations, field notes or other similar data 
relating to the work covered by this Agreement in the event of loss or destruction 
until the final fee payment is made or all data are turned over to the TOWN. 

E. The ENGINEER shall also maintain public liability insurance, including property 
damage, bodily injury or death, and personal injury and motor vehicle liability 
insurance against claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any 
person or damage to property. 

 
F. Evidence of insurance coverage and any and all renewals substantiating that 

required insurance coverage is in effect shall be filed with the Agreement.  Any 
cancellation of insurance, whether by the insurers or by the insured, shall not be 
valid unless written notice thereof is given by the party proposing cancellation to 
the other party and to the TOWN at least fifteen days prior to the intended 
effective date thereof, which date shall be expressed in said notice.   

 
G. Upon request of the ENGINEER, the TOWN reserves the right to modify any 

conditions of this Article. 
 
H. Liability is limited to the proceeds of the applicable insurance policies taken out 

by ENGINEER under this Agreement, but not to exceed the minimum amounts of 
those policies specified in this Agreement. 

 
12. Notice 
 

All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered to, or mailed 
first class to, the parties' respective addresses stated above.  In the event that immediate notice is 
required, it may be given by telephone or facsimile, but shall, to the extent possible, be followed 
by notice in writing in the manner set forth above. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 

\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP 
Updates\Agreement\Harwich Agreement.doc 

6 

13. Termination 
 

A. Each party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in the event of a 
failure of the other party to comply with the terms of the Agreement.  Such 
termination shall be effective upon seven days' notice to the party in default and 
the failure within that time of said party to cure its default. 

 
B. The TOWN shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without cause, upon 

ten (10) days' written notice to the ENGINEER.  In the event that the Agreement 
is terminated pursuant to this subparagraph, the ENGINEER shall be reimbursed 
in accordance with the Agreement for all work performed up to the termination 
date.   

 
14. Miscellaneous 
 

A. Assignment:   The ENGINEER shall not assign or transfer any of its rights, duties 
or obligations under this Agreement without the written approval of the TOWN.   

 
B. Governing Law:   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 

\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP 
Updates\Agreement\Harwich Agreement.doc 

7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals, the TOWN by its 
authorized representative who, however, incurs no personal liability by reason of the execution 
hereof or of anything herein contained, as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
ENGINEER: 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Marc Drainville, P.E.  
 
Title:  Vice President  
 

 

 
TOWN OF HARWICH:  
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Larry G. Ballantine   
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen  
 

TOWN OF HARWICH:  
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Mary E. Anderson  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen  
 

 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Michael D. MacAskill  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen  
 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Julie E. Kavanagh  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen 
 
 
 
Approved as to Availability of Funds:   
 
______________       ($____________ )      
Finance Director        Contract Sum 

 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Donald F. Howell  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



 
 
 
 

  The Power of Commitment 1 
\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\CWMP Updates\Agreement\Harwich Exhibit A - 
CWMP Update - November 18 Update.docx 

This is EXHIBIT A, referred to in and part of the 
Agreement between Town and Engineer for 
Professional Services. 

Engineer’s Services 
The Scope of Work section of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the 
parties.   

General Project Information 

Title: CWMP Update 

Description: The Town of Harwich has requested an update to their Comprehensive Wastewater Management 
Plan (CWMP), dated March 2016. The update to this plan would be done in coordination with the 
Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA) office, the State entity that oversaw and provided an approval 
certificate for the original plan.  

The Town of Harwich has made significant investments in achieving nutrient reduction requirements in its 
watersheds.  This includes approval of a CWMP in 2016 and initial implementation of sewering in the Pleasant 
Bay watershed. However, community questions have been raised regarding the appropriateness of growth 
assumptions in the CWMP and whether those assumptions will lead to more sewering than needed to achieve 
regulatory removal requirements or community supported growth. In addition, there are questions about 
whether the CWMP includes adequate assessment of alternate technologies. In light of these concerns, Town 
Meeting voted funds to review and update various components of the CWMP including growth assumptions, 
enhanced innovative alternatives (I/A) systems, septic system, regionalization opportunities, project cost and 
project timeline. The updated CWMP would seek to: 

1) Ensure protection of coastal and freshwater resources through compliance with regulatory nutrient 
removal thresholds and,  

2) Seek community consensus on the degree to which wastewater control facilities called for under the 
revised CWMP should support new wastewater flow from future growth, with consideration given to 
cost, regulatory compliance and other environmental and community interests. 

Based on discussions with the Town to date, the CWMP updates are proposed to include: 

– Review of growth assumptions in the CWMP (this will impact the wastewater flow projections in various 
watersheds). 

– Evaluate the impact that enhanced I/A systems (provisional approval of 11 mg/L) may have on the existing 
TMDL compliance plan. 

– Evaluate regionalization and Inter-Municipal Agreement (IMA) options (including the potential for nitrogen 
trading) with neighboring towns, as applicable. 

– Update project costs based on the above updates and assist the Town in developing a financial plan with 
consideration given to affordability, limiting debt exclusion/large tax increases, and other Town capital 
projects. 

– Continue public presentations. 
– Document findings in a report (expected to be in a document that is referred to as “Notice of Project 

Change”).  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



       |  Exhibit A 2 
 

The following scope of services identifies the tasks as part of this Agreement. The existing Town of Harwich 
Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan is proposed to be updated in a targeted manner as detailed in 
the following tasks. 

GHD shall provide Basic Services as set forth below. 

PART 1 – Basic Services 

A1.01 Task 1 – Growth and Wastewater Flow Review 

A. GHD shall review growth assumptions and evaluate impacts on wastewater flows. The first task 
includes a review of growth assumptions and subsequent impacts on wastewater flows (primarily 
shown in portions of Sections 3, 7, 8, and 12 of the CWMP). Chapter 12 is anticipated to be updated 
for wastewater flows only. This task will include meetings with applicable Town staff and subsequent 
development of anticipated future flows for the established planning period, by watershed (or 
subwatershed where applicable). Specific sub tasks include: 

1. Kickoff meeting with Town. 

2. Review available planning materials and conduct a consistency review with Pleasant Bay 
Alliance materials 

3. Coordinate with buildout work to be done for the Pleasant Bay watershed. 

4. Conduct a planning workshop with Town staff including planning staff. 

5. With Town input, estimate growth assumptions and develop revised wastewater flows. 

6. Develop a revised growth projection and wastewater flow memorandum. 

7. Incorporate necessary flow changes into the existing GIS model. 

8. Develop a Draft Needs Assessment revisions memorandum. 

9. Develop a Final Needs Assessment revisions memorandum. 

10. Attend up to two (2) public meetings for public guidance and input.   

A1.02 Task 2 – Wastewater Treatment Scenarios 

A. GHD shall review the wastewater scenarios for consistency with Task 1 and current needs. The 
second task includes an update to the Wastewater Treatment Scenarios, primarily shown in portions 
of Chapter 10 (for the management of the wastewater flows developed in Task 1). This task shall 
include the following proposed subtasks: 

1. Kickoff meeting with Town to review  

a. Collaborate with Town to identify areas to target for non-traditional technologies. 

b. Identify up to four (4) alternative plans for TMDL compliance (future conditions), regional 
approaches (Dennis, Brewster, and Harwich only), and potential areas for I/A 
implementation. 

c. Consider options for subwatersheds in which existing or designed capacity of sewers 
provides significantly more or significantly less removal than needed to meet regulatory 
targets and community supported growth. 

2. Conduct a technology screening of I/A Systems, including Pilot/Provisional. 

3. Conduct up to two (2) progress meetings with the Town. 

4. Develop a Draft Wastewater Treatment Scenarios revisions memorandum.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



       |  Exhibit A 3 
 

a. Scenarios shall consider separating out current and proposed future flow and those 
related costs by subwatershed. 

b. Consider data needed for nitrogen trading including flow related to growth, sewer service 
area, and treatment and disposal costs 

5. Develop a Final Wastewater Treatment Scenarios revisions memorandum. 

6. Attend up to two (2) public meetings for public guidance and input. 

7. Conduct one (1) virtual meeting with MEPA. This meeting will be conducted to discuss the 
impacts that Tasks 1 and 2 may have on the Recommended Plan and MEPA will provide 
guidance on the format of the CWMP changes.  The result of the MEPA review is expected to 
include review by DEP, but this process will be defined once the MEPA meeting is held.  

A1.03 Task 3 – Notice of Project Change 

A. Develop Notice of Project Change. The final task includes the development of a final report and an 
update to the Recommended Plan, primarily shown in portions of Chapters 2 and 13. This task shall 
include the proposed subtasks outlined below. 

1. Kickoff meeting with Town. 

2. Develop draft program cost estimates and implementation schedule. This shall include: 

a. Sewer cost estimate updates are anticipated to be developed based on the layouts 
developed in the GHD SewerCAD model (which is being developed under a separate 
agreement). 

b. Review previously developed cost estimates for treatment and effluent disposal. Provide 
recommendations for modifications (if applicable). 

c. Develop a draft implementation schedule. 

3. Conduct up to two (2) progress meetings with the Town to review updated costs and 
implementation schedule. 

4. Develop a Draft Wastewater Implementation Financial Plan and Notice of Project Change 
Report. 

5. Develop a Final Wastewater Implementation Financial Plan and Notice of Project Change 
Report. 

6. Attend up to two (2) public meetings for public guidance and input. 

PART 2 – Town Responsibilities 

A2.01 Services Required by Town 

A. Schedule and attend public meetings. 

B. Help to assemble a group within Town to assist engineer. 

C. Comments: Town shall provide comments on submittals within fourteen (14) days of receipt. 

PART 3 – Out of Scope Work 

A3.01 The following is considered out of scope work, but may be added by amendment: 

A. Environmental Impact Report (this is not likely to require an update but will not be known until work 
has begun). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



       |  Exhibit A 4 
 

B. Updating the Pleasant Bay Watershed TWMP and Permit. 

C. A number of common CWMP tasks that are not anticipated in the effort outlined above include the 
following:  

– SMAST modeling. 
– Groundwater modeling. 
– Additional effluent recharge site identification. 
– Additional treatment evaluations. 
– Field work (borings, survey, etc.). 

PART 4 – Payments to GHD for Services 

Town shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A as follows: 

A. Town shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth herein, as follows: 

1. An amount equal to Engineer’s Salary Costs times a factor of 2.40 for all Basic Services by 
principals and employees engaged directly on the Project, plus Reimbursable Expenses. 

2. Engineer’s Reimbursable Expenses Schedule (mileage, printing, production, etc.). 

3. The total compensation is based on the distribution of labor effort shown in Exhibit B.  

4. The total compensation for services is estimated to be Two Hundred Twenty Nine Thousand Dollars 
and Zero Cents ($229,000.00) based on the tasks shown in Exhibit B. 

B. GHD shall submit invoices on a monthly basis.  

C. It is understood and agreed that the costs shown in Exhibit B are estimates of the level of effort for each 
task. It is understood and agreed that GHD may adjust the values of individual phases or tasks without 
exceeding the total value of this Agreement. Exceedance of the total value of this agreement may only 
take place through an amendment.  

Part 5 - Period of Service 

The compensation amount stipulated above for all project tasks is anticipated to be completed within 270 
calendar days of authorization. However, this schedule can be impacted by the timing of public input meetings 
and the MEPA process. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



1 Growth and Wastewater Flow Review 13 13 47 254 65 15 407 $73,294 $73,294

2 Wastewater Treatment Scenarios 12 8 40 240 25 15 340 $60,885 $60,885

3 Notice of Porject Change 24 4 70 376 20 25 519 $94,822 $94,822

TOTAL 49 25 157 870 110 55 1266 $229,000 $229,000

Notes:

1. Mileage based on rate as issued by Federal Government

2. Hourly rates are estimated as follows:

   Project Director / QA/QC   $240 - $275
   Sr. Project Manager   $190 - $220

   Project Manager   $150 - $200
   Staff Engineer   $110 - $150

   Managing GIS Designer   $150 - $190
   Designer   $130 - $150

   Admin   $70 - $90

Sr
. P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
   

   
   

   
   

 
R

u
s
s
e
ll 

K
le

e
k
a
m

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

A
dm

in
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Exhibit B
Proposed Budget for

CWMP UPDATE
Town of Harwich, Massachusetts 

TASK Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
M

a
rc

 D
ra

in
v
ill

e
, 

P
.E

.,
 B

C
E

E
  

  
  

Q
A

/Q
C

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
J
e
ff

 G
re

g
g
, 

P
.E

.,
 B

C
E

E
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
A

n
a
s
ta

s
ia

 R
u
d
e
n
k
o
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

M
an

ag
in

g 
G

IS
 D

es
ig

ne
r  

   
   

  
J
a
m

e
s
 O

'B
ri
e
n

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
H

D
 C

os
t

G
H

D
 T

ot
al

 C
os

t

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1E3554CC-8EE8-4BDD-91D4-BB575D9CC3EE



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 

BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF HARWICH, MASSACHUSETTS 

AND GHD 

FOR ROUTE 28 SEWER MAIN DESIGN   

 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made this ____ day of _______________, 2021 between GHD, 

with a usual place of business at 1545 Iyannough Road, Hyannis, MA 02601, hereinafter called 
the “ENGINEER,” and the Town of Harwich, MA, acting by its Board of Selectmen, with a 
usual place of business at Harwich Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645, hereinafter 
called the “TOWN”. 
 

The ENGINEER and the TOWN, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as 
follows: 
 
1. Scope of Work 
 

The ENGINEER shall perform the work set forth in the Scope of Services attached hereto 
as Exhibit A. 
 
2. Contract Price 
 

The TOWN shall pay the ENGINEER for services rendered in the performance of this 
Agreement a not to exceed amount of One Hundred Ninety Two Thousand Five Hundred Forty-
Six Dollars and Zero Cents ($192,546.00), subject to any additions and deductions provided for 
herein at the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit B.  The amount to be paid to the ENGINEER shall 
not exceed ($192,546.00) without the prior written consent of the TOWN. 
 
3. Commencement and Completion of Work 
 

A. This Agreement shall commence on ____________ and shall expire on 
_______________, unless terminated sooner in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
B. Progress and Completion:  ENGINEER shall commence work promptly upon 

execution of this Agreement and shall prosecute and complete the work regularly, 
diligently, and uninterruptedly at such a rate of progress as will insure completion 
in a timely manner. 

 
4. Performance of the Work 
 

The ENGINEER shall supervise and direct the Work, using his best skills and attention, 
which shall not be less than such state of skill and attention generally rendered by the 
engineering/design profession for projects similar to the Project in scope, difficulty and location.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich 
Agreement.doc 

2 

 
A. Responsibility for the Work:   

 
(1) The ENGINEER shall be responsible to the TOWN for the acts and 

omissions of his employees, subcontractors and their agents and 
employees, and other persons performing any of the Work under a 
contract with the ENGINEER.  Consistent with the standard of care 
referenced above, the ENGINEER shall be responsible for the 
professional and technical accuracy for all work or services furnished 
by him or his consultants and subcontractors.  The ENGINEER shall 
perform his work under this Agreement in such a competent and 
professional manner that detail checking and reviewing by the TOWN 
shall not be necessary. 

 
(2) The ENGINEER shall not employ additional consultants, nor sublet, 

assign or transfer any part of his services or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior approval and written consent of the 
TOWN.  Such written consent shall not in any way relieve the 
ENGINEER from his responsibility for the professional and technical 
accuracy for the work or services furnished under this Agreement. 

 
(3) All consultants must be registered and licensed in their respective 

disciplines if registration and licensor are required under the 
applicable provisions of Massachusetts law. 

 
(4) The ENGINEER and all consultants and subcontractors shall conform 

their work and services to any guidelines, standards and regulations of 
any governmental authority applicable to the type of work or services 
covered by this Agreement. 

 
(5) The ENGINEER shall not be relieved from its obligations to perform 

the work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement either 
by the activities or duties of the TOWN in its administration of the 
Agreement, or by inspections, tests or approvals required or performed 
by persons other than the ENGINEER. 

 
(6) Neither the TOWN's review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment 

for any of the work or services performed shall be construed to 
operate as a waiver of any rights under the Agreement or any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of the Agreement. 

 
B. Deliverables, Ownership of Documents:  One (1) reproducible copy of all 

drawings, plans, specifications, and other documents prepared by the ENGINEER 
shall become the property of the TOWN upon payment in full therefor to the 
ENGINEER.  Ownership of stamped drawings and specifications shall not 
include the ENGINEER's certification or stamp.  Any re-use of such documents 
without the ENGINEER's written verification of suitability for the specific 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich 
Agreement.doc 

3 

purpose intended shall be without liability or legal exposure to the ENGINEER or 
to the ENGINEER's independent professional associates, subcontractors or 
consultants.  Distribution or submission to meet official regulatory requirements 
or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as an 
act in derogation of the ENGINEER's rights under this Agreement. 

 
C. Compliance With Laws:  In the performance of the Work, the ENGINEER shall 

comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, including 
those relating to workplace and employee safety.   

 
5. Site Information Not Guaranteed; Contractor's Investigation 
 

The TOWN shall furnish to the ENGINEER available surveys, data and documents 
relating to the area which is the subject of the Scope of Work.  All such information, including 
that relating to subsurface and other conditions, natural phenomena, existing pipes, and other 
structures is from the best sources at present available to the TOWN.  All such information is 
furnished only for the information and convenience of the ENGINEER and is not guaranteed.  It 
is agreed and understood that the TOWN does not warrant or guarantee that the subsurface or 
other conditions, natural phenomena, existing pipes, or other structures will be the same as those 
indicated in the information furnished, and the ENGINEER must reasonably satisfy himself as to 
the correctness of such information.  If, in the opinion of the ENGINEER, such information is 
inadequate, the ENGINEER may request the TOWN's approval to verify such information 
through the use of consultants or additional exploration.  In no case shall the ENGINEER 
commence such work without the TOWN's prior written consent.  Such work shall be 
compensated as agreed upon by TOWN and ENGINEER. 
 
6. Payments to the Contractor 
 

A. Cost incurred on this project shall be billed monthly on an hourly basis as outlined 
in the attached Exhibit B.  Payment shall be due 30 days after receipt of an 
invoice by the TOWN. 

 
B. If there is a material change in the scope of work, the TOWN and the ENGINEER 

shall mutually agree to an adjustment in the Contract Price.   
 
C. If the TOWN authorizes the ENGINEER to perform additional services, the 

ENGINEER shall be compensated in an amount mutually agreed upon, in 
advance, in writing.  Except in the case of an emergency, the ENGINEER shall 
not perform any additional services until such compensation has been so 
established. 

 
7. Reimbursement 
 

Except as otherwise included in the Contract Price or otherwise provided for under this 
Agreement, the ENGINEER shall be reimbursed by the TOWN: (a) at 1.0 times the actual cost to 
the ENGINEER of consultants retained to obtain information pursuant to Article 5 hereof or 
otherwise.  No such reimbursement shall be made unless the rates of compensation have been 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich 
Agreement.doc 

4 

approved, in advance, by the TOWN; or (b) at 1.0 times the actual cost of additional or specially 
authorized expense items, as approved by the TOWN.  
 
8. Final Payment, Effect 
 

The acceptance of final payment by the ENGINEER shall constitute a waiver of all 
payment-related claims by the ENGINEER arising under the Agreement. 
 
9. Terms Required By Law 
 

This Agreement shall be considered to include all terms required to be included in it by 
the Massachusetts General Laws, and all other laws, as though such terms were set forth in full 
herein. 
 
10. Indemnification 
 

A. General Liability:   The ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
TOWN, to the proportionate extent of its liability, from and against claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, to the extent 
directly related to the performance of this Agreement and to the extent the same 
relate to matters of general commercial liability, when such claims, damages, 
losses, and expenses are caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or wrongful 
acts or omissions of the ENGINEER or his employees, agents, subcontractors or 
representatives. 

 
B. Professional Liability:   The ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the 

TOWN, to the proportionate extent of its liability, from and against claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, directly 
related to the performance of this Agreement and to the extent the same relate to 
the professional competence of the ENGINEER's services, when such claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses are caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
acts, negligent errors or omissions of the ENGINEER or his employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives. 

 
Limitation of Liability:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
neither party to this Agreement shall be liable to the other for any consequential, special, 
indirect, incidental or punitive damages arising from this Agreement including but not 
limited to loss of use, revenue, profits and goodwill.  The foregoing disclaimer of liability 
shall apply regardless of whether such liability is based on breach of contract, tort 
(including without limitation negligence), strict liability, breach of a fundamental term, 
fundamental breach, or otherwise. 
 

11. Insurance 
 

A. The ENGINEER shall at his own expense obtain and maintain a Professional 
Liability Insurance policy for errors, omissions or negligent acts directly related to 
the performance of this Agreement in a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich 
Agreement.doc 

5 

 
B. The coverage shall be in force from the time of the agreement to the date when all 

construction work for the Project is completed and accepted by the TOWN.  If, 
however, the policy is a claims made policy, it shall remain in force for a period 
of three (3) years after completion.   

 
Since this insurance is normally written on a year-to-year basis, the ENGINEER 
shall notify the TOWN should coverage become unavailable.   

 
C. The ENGINEER shall, before commencing performance of this Agreement, 

provide by insurance for the payment of compensation and the furnishing of other 
benefits in accordance with M.G.L. c.152, as amended, to all its employees and 
shall continue such insurance in full force and effect during the term of the 
Agreement. 

 
D. The ENGINEER shall carry insurance in a sufficient amount to assure the 

restoration of any plans, drawings, computations, field notes or other similar data 
relating to the work covered by this Agreement in the event of loss or destruction 
until the final fee payment is made or all data are turned over to the TOWN. 

 
E. The ENGINEER shall also maintain public liability insurance, including property 

damage, bodily injury or death, and personal injury and motor vehicle liability 
insurance against claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any 
person or damage to property. 

 
F. Evidence of insurance coverage and any and all renewals substantiating that 

required insurance coverage is in effect shall be filed with the Agreement.  Any 
cancellation of insurance, whether by the insurers or by the insured, shall not be 
valid unless written notice thereof is given by the party proposing cancellation to 
the other party and to the TOWN at least fifteen days prior to the intended 
effective date thereof, which date shall be expressed in said notice.   

 
G. Upon request of the ENGINEER, the TOWN reserves the right to modify any 

conditions of this Article. 
 
H. Liability is limited to the proceeds of the applicable insurance policies taken out 

by ENGINEER under this Agreement, but not to exceed the minimum amounts of 
those policies specified in this Agreement. 

 
12. Notice 
 

All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and delivered to, or mailed 
first class to, the parties' respective addresses stated above.  In the event that immediate notice is 
required, it may be given by telephone or facsimile, but shall, to the extent possible, be followed 
by notice in writing in the manner set forth above. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich 
Agreement.doc 

6 

13. Termination 
 

A. Each party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in the event of a 
failure of the other party to comply with the terms of the Agreement.  Such 
termination shall be effective upon seven days' notice to the party in default and 
the failure within that time of said party to cure its default. 

 
B. The TOWN shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without cause, upon 

ten (10) days' written notice to the ENGINEER.  In the event that the Agreement 
is terminated pursuant to this subparagraph, the ENGINEER shall be reimbursed 
in accordance with the Agreement for all work performed up to the termination 
date.   

 
14. Miscellaneous 
 

A. Assignment:   The ENGINEER shall not assign or transfer any of its rights, duties 
or obligations under this Agreement without the written approval of the TOWN.   

 
B. Governing Law:   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



\\ghdnet\ghd\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich 
Agreement.doc 

7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals, the TOWN by its 
authorized representative who, however, incurs no personal liability by reason of the execution 
hereof or of anything herein contained, as of the day and year first above written. 
 
ENGINEER: 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Marc Drainville, P.E.  
 
Title:  Vice President  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TOWN OF HARWICH:  
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Larry G. Ballantine   
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen  
 

TOWN OF HARWICH:  
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Mary E. Anderson  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen  
 
 

By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Michael D. MacAskill  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen  
 
TOWN OF HARWICH:  
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Julie E. Kavanagh  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Availability of Funds:   
 
______________       ($____________ )      
Finance Director        Contract Sum 

By:  _________________________________ 
 
Name:  Donald F. Howell  
 
Title:  Board of Selectmen 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



 
 
 
 

  The Power of Commitment 1 
N:\US\Hyannis\General\HYA Services\Service Groups\Admin\_Proposals\2021 Proposals\Harwich\Route 28 Sewer Main\Harwich Exhibit A - Route 28 Sewer 
Main.docx 

This is EXHIBIT A, referred to in and part of the 

Agreement between Town and Engineer for 
Professional Services. 

Engineer’s Services 
The Scope of Work section of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following agreement of the 

parties.   

General Project Information 

Title: Final Design of Route 28 Sewer Main 

Description: To develop final design plans suitable for public bidding for a new sewer main on Route 28. 

Project boundaries shall be from the Harwich/Dennis town line to the Herring River Bridge, approximately 3,400 

feet. 

The following items shall be considered as part of the final design: 

– The design shall consider necessary sewer infrastructure (gravity and force mains) based upon results of 

the previously performed Town-Wide sewer model. 

– Project will be included with the planned MassDOT repaving project and bid as a non-participatory item. 

– Sewer laterals will be extended to the limits of the Commonwealth owned right-of–way for future 

connection. 

– Required utility relocation(s) as part of the new sewer main will be included as part of the final design, but 

additional utilities (drainage or other) beyond the sewer main will not be designed as part of this 

agreement. 

– Final design plans shall include construction plans, required MassDOT traffic management plans, and 

standard construction details.  

The following scope of services identifies the tasks as part of this Agreement.  

GHD shall provide Basic Services as set forth below. 

PART 1 – Basic Services 

A1.01 Task 1 – Survey 

A. Review existing conditions plan provided by the Town of Harwich. Review shall include both desktop 

and field reconnaissance of provided survey. Advise Town of additional requirements needed for 

gravity sewer design such as first floor elevation of abutting structures and other requirements as 

identified by GHD. Town shall provide additional survey as required.   

A1.02 Task 2 – Develop Preliminary (50%) Plans and Specifications 

A. Develop 50% plans. Design shall incorporate current Town of Harwich regulations for sewer 

materials. Develop 50% project specifications including front end and technical sections for the 

above scope of work. Perform required soil borings as part of this Task. It is estimated that a total of 

eight (8) soil borings will need to be performed. 

A1.03 Task 3 – Progress Meeting No. 1 

A. Prepare for and attend a progress meeting with project partners to discuss the 50% design. Prepare 

and distribute minutes. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



       |  Exhibit A 2 
 

A1.04 Task 4 – Develop Permit (75%) Plans, Cost Estimate, and Specifications 

A. Develop 75% plans based on the results of Progress Meeting No. 1. Develop 75% project 

specifications including front end and technical sections for proposed work. Develop 75% 

construction cost estimates.  

A1.05 Task 5 – Progress Meeting No. 2  

A. Prepare for and attend a progress meeting with project partners to discuss the 75% design. Prepare 

and distribute minutes. 

A1.06 Task 6 – Permitting 

A. Develop and submit required DEP permitting including either a Notice of Intent or Request for 

Determination of Applicability. Develop and submit a DEP WM 16 and WP 68 (Treatment Works 

Plan Approval, without Permit Modification).   

A1.07 Task 7 – Develop Final (100%) Plans, Cost Estimate, and Specifications. Develop 100% Plans 

A. Develop 100% project specifications including front end and technical sections for proposed work. 

Develop 100% construction cost estimates. All bid documents to be stamped by a licensed 

Massachusetts Professional Engineer. 

A1.08 Task 8 – Additional Meetings 

A. Prepare for and attend up to eight (8) additional project meetings that may include Harwich Board of 

Selectmen meetings, site meetings, or miscellaneous design meetings with project stakeholders. 

PART 2 – Town Responsibilities 

A2.01 Services Required by Town 

A. Design Criteria:  Town shall provide standard material specifications. 

B. Record Drawings of the existing utility systems, if available. 

C. Comments:  Town shall provide comments on submittals within five (5) days of receipt. 

D. Survey. 

PART 3 – Out of Scope Work 

A3.01 The following is considered out of scope work: 

A. Permitting beyond what is included in the project scope. 

B. Any SRF-related materials including applications for the Intended Use Plan or State Revolving Fund loan 

applications. 

C. Bid phase services. 

D. Construction phase services. 

E. Resident project representative services. 

PART 4 – Payments to Engineer for Services 

Town shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A as follows: 

A. Town shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth herein, as follows: 

1. An amount equal to Engineer’s Salary Costs times a factor of 2.40 for all Basic Services by 

principals and employees engaged directly on the Project, plus Reimbursable Expenses. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



       |  Exhibit A 3 
 

2. Engineer’s Reimbursable Expenses Schedule (mileage, printing, production, etc.). 

3. The total compensation is based on the distribution of labor effort shown in Exhibit B.  

4. The total compensation for services is estimated to be One Hundred Ninety Two Thousand Five 

Hundred and Forty-Six Dollars ($192,546.00) based on the tasks shown in Exhibit B. 

B. GHD shall submit invoices on a monthly basis.  

C. It is understood and agreed that the costs shown in Exhibit B are estimates of the level of effort for each 

task. It is understood and agreed that GHD may adjust the values of individual phases or tasks without 

exceeding the total value of this Agreement. Exceedance of the total value of this agreement may only 

take place through an amendment.  

Part 5 - Period of Service 

The compensation amount stipulated above for all project tasks is anticipated to be completed within 365 

calendar days of authorization.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



1 Survey 0 0 8 24 24 0 56 $8,760 $500 $9,260

2 50% Design, Specifications, Soil Borings 8 24 38 160 100 16 346 $54,644 $20,250 $74,894

3 Progress Meeting #1 0 0 4 4 4 2 14 $2,188 $100 $2,288

4 Develop 75% Permit Level Plans, Specifications, Cost Estimate 8 24 20 80 100 24 256 $41,536 $250 $41,786

5 Progress Meeting #2 0 0 4 4 4 2 14 $2,188 $100 $2,288

6 Permitting 2 0 2 28 20 1 53 $7,924 $0 $7,924

7 Develop 100% Plans, Specifications, Cost Estimate 8 24 20 80 100 16 248 $40,864 $250 $41,114

8 Meetings 0 0 24 24 24 8 80 $12,792 $200 $12,992

TOTAL 26 72 120 404 376 69 1067 $170,896 $21,650 $192,546

Notes:

1. Mileage based on $0.61 per mile

2. Hourly rates are as follows:

   Project Director / QA/QC   $240 - $275
   Sr. Project Manager   $190 - $220

   Project Manager   $150 - $200
   Staff Engineer   $110 - $150

   Managing Designer   $150 - $170
   Designer   $130 - $150

   Admin   $84

Q
A

/Q
C

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
a
n
d
y
 T

ri
p
p
, 

P
.E

.,
 B

C
E

E
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

A
dm

in
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Exhibit B
Proposed Budget for
Route 28 Sewer Main

Town of Harwich, Massachusetts 

TASK Pr
oj

ec
t D

ire
ct

or
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
M

a
rc

 D
ra

in
v
ill

e
, 

P
.E

.,
 B

C
E

E
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Sr
. P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
u
s
s
e
ll 

K
le

e
k
a
m

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Pr
oj

ec
t E

ng
in

ee
rs

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ra

ig
 C

u
rt

in
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

M
an

ag
in

g 
D

es
ig

ne
r  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

J
a
m

e
s
 F

o
s
d
ic

k

To
ta

l H
ou

rs

G
H

D
 L

ab
or

 C
os

t

G
H

D
 E

xp
en

se
s

G
HD

 T
ot

al
 C

os
t

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91FEB31B-6EB0-40B4-8913-32AD3C04D473



 

 

 

TOWN 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 

REPORT 



DocuSign Envelope ID: C627BD64-058C-48E2-81313-5808F63CAA13 _TM 21 art. 13 Appropriation: $378,257 

Low Bidder: n/a-contract HGAC Bid Price: $378,257 

Post Procurement Checklist 

Please complete checklist below for contracts requiring Selectmen* signature before Wednesday morning** 

in order to get sign-off approval from the Town Administrator or the Assistant Town Administrator. 
*Note: contracts (not grants) below $50,000 can be signed by Town Administrator. 

1. Please provide a separate page titled "Summary of Project" which includes: 
❑ a. Provide how many bidders there were, the range of bids, and apparent low bidder. 

b. Identify the funding source, such as article number and amount approved. 
Include what you feel is pertinent, but keep this section to 4 sentences or less. 

DocuSigned by: 

661111-6-11,Finance Director has signed that funds are available: 

Please provide a single copy of the bid packet along w 
Please use K-P Law provided standardized contracts. 

11

11

I 

11

Buildings and Public Works 
C1. Please show Prevailing Wage was used. 
C2. If construction is near $10,000 you also need: 
❑ a. Written spec sheet. 
❑ b. Advertised for two weeks on Central Register 

and COMMBUYS. 
❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 
C3. If construction over $25,000 you need C1, C2, 

as well as: 
❑ a. Show project was in the Capital Plan. 
El b. Low bidder provides 50% payment bond after 

Selectmen's countersignature. 
C4. If construction over $50,000 you need C1, C2, 

C3, as well as: 
D a. Bid Bond of 5% of total value. 
❑ b. Sealed Bids. 

c. End of Public Works construction requirements 

C5. If Building estimated construction costs are 
over $300,000 and estimated design costs are 
over $30,000 you'll need to follow the 
Designer Selection RFQ process: 

EI a. Advertise in Central Register and local 
newspaper for two weeks. 

❑ b. Set a designer fee or price ceiling. 
❑ c. Use Standard Designer Application Form 
C6. If Building construction over $150,000 you'll 

need C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, as well as: 
❑ a. 100% payment bond was in bids. 
IEI b. 100% performance bond was in bids. 
El c. DCAMM certified bidders. 

• DCAMM certified sub-bids if over $25,000. 
C7. If Building construction over $10,000,000 

you'll need C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, C6, as well as: 
a. Solicit qualifications prior to sealed bids. 

04420A2/621013 

Account # 

43gurpolPting documents. 

GS1. 
a. 

GS2. 

111 

GS3. 
D a. 

❑ b. 
❑ c. 

GS4. 
❑ a. 

El b. 

Goods and Services 
If procured using the State Bid List: 
Over $25,000 please show project was on the 
Capital Plan. 

If project is over $5,000: 
a. Please provide written spec sheet used and 

who it was sent to. 
b. Maximum contract length is three years. 

If project is over $50,000: 
Show project was advertised for two weeks in 
a newspaper and on COMMBUYS. 
Show project utilized sealed bids. 
Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 
If project is over $100,000: 
Show project was advertised for two weeks in 
COMMBUYS and Goods and Services Bulletin. 
Show project utilized sealed bids. 

Note 1: If lowest bidder was found to be either 
not responsive or not responsible, the Town may 
begin negotiations with next lowest bidder. 

Note 2: Bids may be negotiated downwards but 
never higher than original quote. 

Note 3: Municipalities shall not provide a down 
payment, deposit, or provide funding before 
possession of purchased item. 

ElOriginal for Accounting El Original for Procurement ❑ Original for Vendor 
(--DocuSigned by: 

200,74 'P. PO t41 Signature of Town Administrator: 

D Contract to Treasurer's 

•---0623C005799644E 

**Note: Failure to gain sign-off before Wednesday at noon results in the contract being delayed to the next meeting. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: OABC2D77-35EC-43AD-9949:71951522766. _le#: n/a grant Appropriation: $67,500 

Low Bidder: n/a-state contract ITS75 Bid Price: $ 82,400.00 (excess paid from IT budget) 

Post Procurement Checklist 

Please complete checklist below for contracts requiring Selectmen* signature before Wednesday morning** 
in order to get sign-off approval from the Town Administrator or the Assistant Town Administrator. 
*Note: contracts (not grants) below $50,000 can be signed by Town Administrator. 

1. Please provide a separate page titled "Summary of Project" which includes: 
ki a. Provide how many bidders there were, the range of bids, and apparent low bidder. 

b. Identify the funding source, such as article number and amount approved. 
c. Include what you feel is pertinent, but keep this section to 4 sentences or less. 

DocuSigned by: 

2. Finance Director has signed that funds are available:   Account # 

Ig 3. Please provide a single copy of the bid packet along -i-t-h8alloscipporting documents. 
4. Please use K-P Law provided standardized contracts. 

13011492/530902/002 
0 
011552/530902 

Buildings and Public Works Goods and Services 
Cl. Please show Prevailing Wage was used. 

,7 

GS1. If procured using the State Bid List: , t' 
 C2. If construction is near $10,000 you also need: ❑ a. Over $25,000 please show project was on the 

. a. Written spec sheet. Capital Plan. 
❑ b. Advertised for two weeks on Central Register GS2. If project is over $5,000: 

and COMMBUYS. ❑ a. Please provide written spec sheet used and 
❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. who it was sent to. 

 C3. If construction over $25,000 you need C1, C2, 
as well as: L 

❑ b. Maximum contract length is three years. 

GS3. If project is over $50,000: 
❑ a. Show project was in the Capital Plan. ❑ a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

• b. Low bidder provides 50% payment bond after a newspaper and on COMMBUYS. 

Selectmen's countersignature. ❑ b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 

 C4. If construction over $50,000 you need C1, C2,  
C3, as well as: 

❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 

GS4. If project is over $100,000: 

❑ a. Bid Bond of 5% of total value. ❑ a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

❑ b. Sealed Bids. COMMBUYS and Goods and Services Bulletin. 

c. End of Public Works construction requirements . ❑ b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 

 C5. If Building estimated construction costs are Note 1: If lowest bidder was found to be either 
over $300,000 and estimated design costs are not responsive or not responsible, the Town may 
over $30,000 you'll need to follow the begin negotiations with next lowest bidder. 
Designer Selection RFQ process: 

0 a. Advertise in Central Register and local Note 2: Bids may be negotiated downwards but

newspaper for two weeks. never higher than original quote. 

❑ b. Set a designer fee or price ceiling. Note 3: Municipalities shall not provide a down 
 ❑ c. Use Standard Designer Application Form 

 C6. If Building construction over $150,000 you'll 
need C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, as well as: 

payment, deposit, or provide funding before 
possession of purchased item. 

❑ a. 100% payment bond was in bids. 
❑ b. 100% performance bond was in bids. 
❑ c. DCAMM certified bidders. 

0 i. DCAMM certified sub-bids if over $25,000. 

 C7. If Building construction over $10,000,000 
you'll need C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, C6, as well as: 
a. Solicit qualifications prior to sealed bids. 

El Original for Accounting El Original for Procurement ❑ Original for Vendor El Contract to Treasurer's 

Signature of Town Administrator: 
 DocuSigned by: 

tr104-epA, POttle44,

 0623C005799644E 

**Note: Failure to gain sign-off before Wednesday at noon results in the contract being delayed to the next meeting. 



TOWN OF HARWICH 
OFFICE OF THE TREASURER/COLLECTOR 

732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 
TEL:  508-430-7501   FAX:  508-430-7504 

Amy Bullock           Nancy Knepper 
Treasurer / Collector                Assistant Treasurer/Collector 
 

Monthly Report to the Board of Selectmen 
 

October 2021 
 
Along with our regular weekly duties and responsibilities, which include but are not 
limited to processing payroll, receiving, reporting and depositing tax/water payments and 
departmental receipts, processing accounts payable checks, assisting Taxpayers and 
Employees with any requests and other various customer service, the following took 
place: 

Collections  
FY 2022 FY 2021

Tax/Water Collections: $9,611,707.27 $9,123,769.73

Tax lien Collections: $110,191.13 $2,814.44

Departmental turnovers: $1,597,067.98 $4,158,569.75
 
Total: $11,318,966.38 $13,285,153.92  

 
Disbursements 

FY 2021 FY 2020
Accounts Payable $1,794,927.36 $2,618,215.35
 
Payroll $1,790,382.33 $1,785,742.70

Total: $3,585,309.69 $4,403,958.05  
 

TAX LIENS 

 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Amy Bullock  
Treasurer/Collector 

TAX LIENS PRINCIPAL INTEREST FEES TOTAL DUE % OF TOTAL
TOTAL 2,609,637.13 3,151,044.26 933,346.62 6,694,028.01 
OWNERS UNKNOWN 275,712.57    412,961.53    147,103.56 835,777.66    0.12               
MISC PARCESL 190,630.96    361,988.04    258,195.76 810,814.76    0.12               



DocuSign Envelope ID: 161DF619-7C1313-45B2-1338A-E4D4AB4B83A6 

Funds Available: Finance Director: 

PROCUREMENT CHECKLIST & APPROVAL FORM 

STAFF LEAD:  Thornton / Consodine DEPARTMENT:  Police Department 

FUNDING SOURCE:  21 ATM Article 18 (Public Safety Radios) 

Appropriated amount:  $223,204.00

PROCUREMENT METHOD: 

Estimated cost:  $19,609.80  Actual cost: 

OSD MA ITT-57 CoMIRS Radio Upgrade Program 

$19,609.80

PURCHASE DESCRIPTION: 

The Police Department is required to upgrade radios as part of the State Radio system upgrade. The State 

secured large discounts due to the quantity of radios being purchased. This procurement is using State 

contract pricing under the CoMIRS program. The following accessories are not reimbursable under the 

CoMIRS grant program.. 

This procurement is for the purchase of the following accessories: 

41 Receive-only Extra Loud Earpiece- $3,394.80 

41 Audio Accessory, Microphone with audio jack - $9,760.05 

2 Bank Chargers(6 Radios) - $1,814.70 

2 Bank Charger wall mount kit - $28.98 

41 High Capacity Batteries - $4, 611.27 

Total $19,609.80 

01220A2/621018 

PROCUREMENT MAY PROCEED ONLY IF SIGNATURES PROVIDED BELOW 
r---DocuSigned by: 

Parpsia Account # 
•---48.032039D33D434... 

Approved to proceed: Town Administrator or Designee: 

r---DocuSigned by: 

200, 4  f. PO ito 0241, 
623C005799644E.. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-B4E6-4069D4A0147B 

AGREEMENT FOR TOWN OF HARWICH 

The following provisions shall constitute an Agreement between the Town of Harwich, acting by 
and through its Board of Selectmen, hereinafter referred to as "Town," and Motorola Solutions, 
with an address of Motorola Solutions 500 W Monroe St Ste 4400, Chicago, IL 60661„ 
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor", effective as of the 15th day of November, 2021. In 
consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1: SCOPE OF WORK: 

The Contractor shall provide the Town with _Motorola accessories as listed in the 

attached quote, including the scope of services set forth in Attachment A. 

ARTICLE 2: TIME OF PERFORMANCE: 

The Contractor shall complete all work and services required hereunder as the products in 

quote become available for delivery. 

ARTICLE 3: COMPENSATION: 

The Town shall pay the Contractor for the performance of the work outlined in Article 1 

above the contract sum of $19,609.80. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the 

Town for services rendered, which will be due 30 days following receipt by the Town. 

ARTICLE 4: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

The following documents form the Contract and all are as fully a part of the Contract as if 

attached to this Agreement or repeated herein: 

1. This Agreement. 
2. Amendments, or other changes mutually agreed upon between the parties. 
3. All attachments to the Agreement. 

In the event of conflicting provisions, those provisions most favorable to the Town shall 

govern. 

Admin Share TrocurementkAPX CoMIRS Procurment - Pohce \Procurement - Accesso es \KP Law Harwich -
Form Contract Accessories - Police.doc 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-B4E6-4069D4A0147B 

ARTICLE 5: CONTRACT TERMINATION: 

The Town may suspend or terminate this Agreement by providing the Contractor with ten 

(10) days written notice for the reasons outlined as follows: 

1. Failure of the Contractor, for any reason, to fulfill in a timely and proper manner 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

2. Violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the Contractor. 
3. A determination by the Town that the Contractor has engaged in fraud, waste, 

mismanagement, misuse of funds, or criminal activity with any funds provided by 
this Agreement. 

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience by providing the 

other party written notice specifying therein the termination date which shall be no sooner than 

thirty (30) days from the issuance of said notice. Upon receipt of a notice of termination from 

the Town, the Contractor shall cease to incur additional expenses in connection with the 

Agreement. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all 

satisfactory work completed prior to the termination date as determined by the Town. Such 

payment shall not exceed the fair value of the services provided hereunder. 

ARTICLE 6: INDEMNIFICATION: 

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its officers, 

agents, and all employees from and against claims arising directly or indirectly from the contract. 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for all local taxes or contributions imposed or required 

under the Social Security, Workers' Compensation, and income tax laws. Further, the Contractor 

shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town with respect to any damages, expenses, or 

claims arising from or in connection with any of the work performed or to be performed under 

2 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-B4E6-4069D4A014713 

this Agreement. This shall not be construed as a limitation of the Contractor's liability under the 

Agreement or as otherwise provided by law. 

ARTICLE 7: AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: 

The compensation provided by this Agreement is subject to the availability and 

appropriation of funds. 

ARTICLE 8: APPLICABLE LAW: 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, 

regulations and orders relating to the completion of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

ARTICLE 9: ASSIGNMENT: 

The Contractor shall not make any assignment of this Agreement without the prior 

written approval of the Town. 

ARTICLE 10: AMENDMENTS: 

All amendments or any changes to the provisions specified in this Contract can only 

occur when mutually agreed upon by the Town and Contractor. Further, such amendments or 

changes shall be in writing and signed by officials with authority to bind the Town. No 

amendment or change to the contract provisions shall be made until after the written execution of 

the amendment or change to the Contract by both parties. 

3 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-B4E6-4069D4A0147B 

ARTICLE 11: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 

The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is acting as an independent contractor for 

all work and services rendered pursuant to this Agreement and shall not be considered an 

employee or agent of the Town for any purpose. 

ARTICLE 12: INSURANCE: 

The Contractor shall be responsible to the Town or any third party for any property 

damage or bodily injury caused by it, any of its subcontractors, employees or agents in the 

performance of, or as a result of, the work under this Agreement. The Contractor and any 

subcontractors used hereby certify that they are insured for workers' compensation, property 

damage, personal and product liability. The Contractor and any subcontractor it uses shall 

purchase, furnish copies of, and maintain in full force and effect insurance policies in the 

amounts here indicated. 

General Liability of at least $1,000,000 Occurrence/$3,000,000 General 
Aggregate. The Municipality should be named as an "Additional 
Insured". Products and Completed Operations should be maintained for 
up to 3 years after the completion of the project. 

2) Automobile Liability (applicable for any contractor who has an 
automobile operating exposure) of at least $1,000,000 Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage per accident. The Municipality should be named as an 
"Additional Insured". 

3) Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by law. Include Employers Liability Part 
B with a limit of $1,000,000 

4) Builders' Risk Property Coverage for the full insurable value. It should 
include "All Risk" insurance for physical loss or damage including theft. 

5) Property Coverage for materials and services being transported by the 
contractor, as the Town's Property Contract provides coverage for 
personal property within 1000 feet of the premises. 

6) Umbrella Liability of at least $2,000,000/ occurrence, 
$2,000,000/aggregate. The Municipality should be named as an 
Additional Insured. 

7) Architects and Engineers Professional Liability (applicable for any 
architects or engineers involved in the project) of at least 
$1,000,000/occurrence, $3,000,000 aggregate. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-B4E6-4069D4A014713 

Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 

Town with Certificates of Insurance which include the Town as an additional named insured and 

which include a thirty day notice of cancellation to the Town. 

ARTICLE 13: SEVERABILITY: 

If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent 

be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by the court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, 

legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be 

deemed affected thereby unless one or both parties would be substantially or materially 

prejudiced. 

ARTICLE 14: ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 

This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the 

entire integrated agreement between the parties with respect to the matters described. This 

Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either written or 

oral, and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by the 

parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 15: COUNTERPARTS: 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be a counterpart original. 

5 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-B4E6-4069D4A0147B 

CERTIFICATION AS TO PAYMENT OF STATE TAXES 

Pursuant to Chapter 62C of the Massachusetts General Laws, Section 49A(b), I, 
Michael Sheridan 

 , authorized signatory for the Contractor do hereby certify under the 

pains and penalties of per ury that said Contractor has complied with all laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and 

withholding and remitting child support. 

361115800 

Social Security Number or 

DocuSigned by: 

El/tigUktt Sttlikka ,

Signa 49fITOWAtal or 
Federal Identification Number Corporate Name 

By: 
Corporate Officer 
(if applicable) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 

day and year first above written. 

CONTRACTOR 
By 

DocuSigned by:E
hvitzui, stmottuA, 

AD8FFD032E52422... 

Michael sheri dan Area sales Manager 

Printed Name and Title 

Approved as to Availability of Funds: 
DocuSigned by: ($ 

indriceFORMor Contract Sum 
01220A2/621018 

) 

TOWN OF HARWICH 
by its Board of Selectmen Over $50,000 

by its Town Administrator Up to $50,000 
( ---DocuSigned by: 

(904,04 P0141G4.4,

TowrikdiiiiPfiEgtilifbr 

6 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 20C016A9-6F17-4FAB-64E6-406904A014713 

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS 

Bill-To: 
HARWICH POLICE DEPT, TOWN OF 

183 SISSON RD 

HARWICH, MA 02645 

United States 

Attention: 

Name: DEPUTY THORNTON 

Phone: 508-430-7541 

Contract Number: 

Freight terms: 
Payment terms: 

ITT57 MA STATE 

FOB Destination 

Net 45 

Quote Number: QU0000526749 

Effective: 09 NOV 2021 

Effective To: 08 JAN 2022 

Sales Contact: 
Name: DEPUTY THORNTON 

Email: myjimmv@gmail.corn 

Phone: 5084307541 

Item Quantity Nomenclature Description List price Your price Extended Price 

I 41 RLN6424BXL RX ONLY EXTRA LOUD EARPIECE $120.00 $82.80 $3,394.80 

WITH TRANSLUCENT TUBE 

2 41 HMN410313 AUDIO ACCESSORY,IMPRES RSM $345.00 $238.05 $9,760.05 
DSPLY W JACK, NO CHNL 

3 2 NNTN8844A CHARGER, MULTI-UNIT, IMPRES 2, 
6-DISP, NA/LA-PLUG, ACC USB CHGR 

$1,315.00 $907.35 $1,814.70 

4 2 NLN7967A MULTI-UNIT CHARGER WALL $21.00 $14.49 $28.98 
MOUNT KIT 

5 41 PMNN4486A BATT IMPRES 2 MON R IP67 3400T $163.00 $112.47 $4,611.27 

Total Quote in USD $19,609.80 

ACCESSORIES REVISION 2 
CHANGE EARPIECE MODEL AS PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER 

I. Terms subject to ITT57 as modified by the clarifications and terms/conditions. For a full list of terms/conditions please contact you 

Motorola representative. 

2. PO Issued to Motorola Solutions Inc. must: 

>Be a valid Purchase Order (P0)/Contract/Notice to Proceed on Company Letterhead. Note: Purchase 
>Have a PO Number/Contract Number & Date 
>Identify "Motorola Solutions Inc." as the Vendor 
>Have Payment Terms or Contract Number 
>Be issued in the Legal Entity's Name 
>Include a Bill-To Address with a Contact Name and Phone Number 
>Include a Ship-To Address with a Contact Name and Phone Number 
>Include an Ultimate Address (only if different than the Ship-To) 
>Be Greater than or Equal to the Value of the Order 
>Be in a Non-Editable Format 
>Identify Tax Exemption Status (where applicable) 
>Include a Signature (as Required) 

3. Quotes are exclusive of all installation and programming charges (unless expressly stated) and all applicable taxes. 

Requisitions cannot be accepted 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 161DF619-2C3B-45B2-1338A-E4D4AB4B133A6 2021 ATM Art 18 Appropriation: $223,204ATM 

Low Bidder Motorola Bid Price: $19,609.80(05D MA ITT-57) 

Post Procurement Checklist 

Please complete checklist below for contracts requiring Selectmen* signature before Wednesday morning** 
in order to get sign-off approval from the Town Administrator or the Assistant Town Administrator. 
*Note: contracts (not grants) below $50,000 can be signed by Town Administrator. 

X 1. Please provide a separate page titled "Summary of Project" which includes: 

* a. Provide how many bidders there were, the range of bids, and apparent low bidder. 

I b. Identify the funding source, such as article number and amount approved. 
c. Include what you feel is pertinent, but keep this section to 4 sentences or less. 

❑ 2. Finance Director has signed that funds are available:  Account if 

3. Please provide a single copy of the bid packet along with all supporting documents. 

4. Please use K-P Law provided standardized contracts. 

Buildings and Public Works 
C1. Please show Prevailing Wage was used. 
C2. If construction is near $10,000 you also need: 
❑ a. Written spec sheet 
❑ b. Advertised for two weeks on Central Register 

and COMM BUYS. 
❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to. Town website. 
C3. If construction over $25,000 you need C1, C2, 

as well as: 
O a. Show project was in the Capital Plan. 
❑ b. Low bidder provides 50% payment bond after 

Selectmen's countersignature. 
C4. If construction over $50,000 you need C1, C2, 

C3, as well as: 
❑ a. Bid Bond of 5% of total value, 
❑ b. Sealed Bids. 

c, End of Public Works construction requirements 
CS. If Building estimated construction costs are 

over $300,000 and estimated design costs are 
over $30,000 you'll need to follow the 
Designer Selection RFQ process: 

❑ a. Advertise in Central Register and local 
newspaper for two weeks. 

❑ b. Set a designer fee or price ceiling. 
❑ c. Use Standard Designer Application Form 
C6 If Building construction over $150,000 you'll 

need Cl, C2, C3, C4, CS, as well as: 
❑ a. 100% payment bond was in bids, 
❑ b. 100% performance bond was in bids. 
❑ c. DCAMM certified bidders. 

DcAMM certified sub-bids if over $25,000. 
C7. If. Building construction over $10,000,000 

you'll need C1, C2, C3, C4, CS, C6, as well as: 
a. Solicit qualifications prior to sealed bids. 

n 

Goods and Services 
GS1, If procured using the State Bid List: 

❑ a: Over $25,000 please show project was on the 
Capital Plan..

GS2. If project is over $5,000: 
X a. Please provide written spec sheet used and 

who it was sent to. 
O b. Maximum contract length is three years. 

GS3. If project is over $50,000: 
❑ a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

a newspaper and on COMMBUYS. 
❑ b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 
❑ c. Apparent low bidder posted to Town website. 

GS4. If project is over $100,000: 
❑ a. Show project was advertised for two weeks in 

COMMBUYS and Goods and Services Bulletin. 
❑ b. Show project utilized sealed bids. 

Note 1: If lowest bidder was found to be either 
not responsive or not responsible, the Town may,
begin negotiations with next lowest bidder. 

Note 2: Bids may be negotiated downwards but 
never higher than original quote. 

Note 3: Municipalities shall not provide a down 
payment, deposit, or provide funding before 
possession of purchased item. 

❑ Original for Accounting ❑Original for Procurement 0 Original for Vendor ❑ Contract to Treasurer's 

Signature of Town Administrator: 

**Note: Failure to gain sign-off before Wednesday at noon results in the contract being delayed to the next meeting. 



 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 



From: Charles Gruszka [mailto:charlesgruszka@hotmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2021 8:41 PM 
To: Michael D. MacAskill <mmacaskill@townofharwich.us>; Larry Ballantine 
<lballantine@townofharwich.us>; Don Howell <dhowell@townofharwich.us>; Mary Anderson 
<manderson@townofharwich.us>; Julie Kavanagh <jkavanagh@townofharwich.us>
Cc: Joe Powers <jpowers@town.harwich.ma.us>
Subject: Proposed amendments to the Monomoy Regional Agreement assessment formula 

6 Teaberry Avenue 
Harwich, MA 02645 

October 26, 2021 

Dear Members of the Harwich Board of Selectmen, 

A couple of years back, I interviewed before the Board as a candidate for the open Harwich seat 
on the Monomoy Regional School Committee. Mr. Howell posed a question to the candidates 
seeking to determine which, if any of us, were aware of the extent to which Harwich 
assessments for the schools had increased since the decision was made to regionalize with 
Chatham to form the Monomoy Regional School District (MRSD). I was not able to provide the 
answer to the question posed. I thought it was a very important question for any member of 
the community to be able to answer. I, therefore, set about to determine the answer and to 
also find out what the fiscal differences were between Harwich and Chatham as a result of 
regionalization. I can say with confidence that I have reflected upon and researched MRSD 
funding in greater depth than any Harwich resident not serving in an official capacity. 

The main results of my research and reflections were summarized in a guest editorial which I 
submitted to The Chronicle and which appeared in the July 8, 2021 issue. I believe that editorial 
is very relevant to the Board's current deliberations on proposed amendments to the 
assessment formula contained within the Regional Agreement. I have included it at the end of 
this letter and encourage you to reread it in light of the current deliberations or read it, if you 
did not have an opportunity to do so when it first appeared. I believe it frames the key points 
and significant facts on these matters as well and concisely as any existing document. 

I am well informed regarding the matter before you. A major portion of the proposed changes 
in the funding formula recommended by the School Committee are based on elements of the 
existing Agreement of the Mt. Greylock Regional School District. I brought that Agreement to 
the attention of the school department after it was brought to my attention by my son-in-law 
who owns his own company, which contracts out business management and other services to 
school systems on a contractual basis. His company was involved with the Mt. Greylock District 

at the time that Agreement was being considered, and he thought that it was quite relevant to 
the situation in the Monomoy District, whereby each member town had its own elementary 
school. 



The same reason why I believe that, in the interest of fairness, Harwich should approve the 
amended formula recommended by the School Committee, is also the source of my greatest 
fear regarding this matter. From surveys and inputs at community forums, folks in Chatham 
appear adamant that the section of the Regional Agreement calling for elementary students in 
each town to be able to attend school within their town remains in place. (I personally believe 
and have publicly expressed that the best educational interests of the District elementary 
students would be for the two elementary school buildings to be divided by grade levels and 
serve all of the students of the District at their respective grade levels. This thinking is 
supported by the District Administration, a substantial majority of the educators in the District, 
and has strong support among Harwich parents. The main objection comes from 
Chatham. However, such a reconfiguration of the elementary schools cannot happen under the 
current Regional Agreement and is not being recommended in the proposed amendments.) 

As you are aware, the current arrangement results in a much higher per pupil expenditure for 
Chatham Elementary School (CES) than for Harwich Elementary (HES), and the difference will 
continue to expand significantly into the foreseeable future if current enrollment projections 
play out. Since Harwich currently funds approximately 75% of the costs of operating CES, it is, 
in effect, subsidizing Chatham to enable Chatham students to obtain their elementary grades 
education in a school within their town. If Chatham remains adamant about this, it is only fair 
that it pick up the full cost of maintaining a separate elementary school for its town. In turn, 
Harwich should do the same re HES. A fair agreement, in my opinion. 

I believe that the proposed amendment to the funding formula before you has a very good 
chance of obtaining approval at Chatham Town Meeting because Chatham has been so vocal 
about its desire for their children to be able to obtain their elementary grades education at 
CES. Passage of the amended formula would take away any argument and incentive to 
Chatham for the situation to be otherwise. For Harwich, the subsidizing of the separate 
operation of CES for the benefit of Chatham students would discontinue. (If Harwich approves 
the change and Chatham does not, I believe that Harwich should then move to amend the 
Regional Agreement to eliminate the wording that elementary students be guaranteed the 
ability to attend school in their town of residence, and move toward regionalizing the 
elementary school buildings into a grades PreK-2 school in one town and a grades 3-4 
configuration in the other.) 

My fear is that, if the amended funding formula is adopted by both towns and approved by 
DESE, this will satisfy the strongest desire of Chatham and end any interest on its part to 
consider a more radical set of amendments to the funding formula to deal with the fiscal crisis 
that has already entered its initial stages in the MRSD and which threatens the ability to 
maintain the high quality status it has achieved. 

Mr. Howell's comments at the last two meetings of the Board sounding the alarm regarding 
these matters are right "on the mark" in my opinion based on what I have experienced in the 
regional school district in which I served and, as relayed by the Superintendent to the School 



Committee in the Lincoln-Sudbury District in which he served prior to coming to Monomoy. I 
point out the data supporting my statement that there is a crisis in my July 8 editorial. 

The FY22 MRSD budget represents less than a 1% increase over FY21, yet generates an 
assessment increase of just over 2% for Harwich (and 4.21% decrease for Chatham!) That 
budget does not include over $620,000 of needs identified by the District Administration that 
were held back from inclusion. That is, the FY22 school budget had a $620,000 shortfall of 
meeting the District's needs when it was passed by the School Committee and sent to the 
towns for approval. 

I was dismayed that at this week's meeting, the Board did not have the calculations sheet for 
the FY22 Monomoy budget if the proposed amended funding formula based heavily (but not 
fully) on the Mt. Greylock approach, was in effect. As a result, it once again had to delay 
deliberations on this matter. I received a copy from Jon Chorey, Harwich FinCom Chair, who 
requested it from a member of the School Committee. He asked me to go over it with him prior 
to your Oct. 12 Board meeting, so that he understand it as best he could, which I did. Those 
calculations would have led to a shift in assessment from Harwich to Chatham of $612,830 for 
FY22. (Note: Harwich would have had to apply somewhere in the area of $450,000, roughly 3/4 
of that assessment shift to its school assessment if it wanted to fund the $620,000 shortfall in 
the school budget.) 

I note that, with the assessment shift of $612,830, Harwich's assessment would still be more 
than $6.6 million above its FY11 school assessment, the last year it operated its own separate 
school system. Despite the analagous assessment increase, Chatham's assessment would still 
be more than $800,000 below its FY11 pre-Regionalization assessment under the proposed 
amended funding formula. 

Common sense dictates that maintaining a school budget increase of under 1% during an 
inflationary period is unrealistic, given the fiscal situation of Harwich. Even level funded school 
budgets will generate assessment increases for Harwich that will skyrocket under current 
enrollment projections. As the factors which are foundational to the quality of the educational 
experience provided by Harwich (small class sizes, important support services, broad curricular 
offerings, a wealth of activities, adequate instructional materials and equipment, etc.) erode 
and more students begin to consider school choice and charter schools, as was the case until 
recently, Harwich and Chatham families will begin to demand more robust school 
budgets. However, Harwich will not be able to afford them without substantial Prop 2 1/2 
overrides and still be able to adequately fund all other important town services. Chatham will 

be well able to afford higher school assessments and will want them. However, the current 
funding formula will prohibit higher contributions by Chatham. (I saw this scenario played out 
in the regional district in which I served, which many years ago entered the stage at which I 

currently see Monomoy. It was very frustrating for the towns in the five-town district to not be 
able to contribute more to funding the schools because of the restrictions of the funding 
formula in their regional agreement.) 



(I am confused by Mr. MacAskill's comment at the last two Board Meetings that Chatham 
voluntarily contributed $500,000 to Harwich this year. I was not aware of this and don't 
understand how this could be allowable under the current Regional Agreement. Mr. MacAskill, 
could you please provide me details of this contribution from Chatham to Harwich? Thank 
you.) 

When I was in the business many years ago now, the Nauset Regional District was known to us 
inland as one of the "gold standard" districts in the State. I am pleased to tell you that, as a 
career educator, I am thrilled that two of my grandchildren who live in the Nauset district 
attend Monomoy under school choice! The Monomoy school budget is foundational to the 
quality of educational experience students receive in its schools. It enables high quality, 
dedicated educators and support staff to maximize the outcome of their efforts on behalf of 
their students! I want to see that continue. In addition to affordable housing, a quality school 
system is a critical factor in attracting young families to want and be able to stay and/or move 
into Harwich and Chatham. 

Personal and property wealth are supposed to be factors taken into consideration in the 
formula which generates each town's minimum required contribution to the school budget. It 
was just this year that I found out that there is a ceiling in the formula that both Harwich and 
Chatham meet, thereby cancelling out these factors. Any greater wealth and affordability 
above the ceiling that Chatham enjoys over Harwich is therefore negated, and student 
enrollment becomes the primary factor in calculating minimum required contribution. 

There can be a funding formula worked out by the two towns which would take wealth and 
affordability into consideration. Chatham has roughly 55% of the equalized property valuation 
of the two towns as of FY21 figures and makes up roughly 33% of the total population as per 
the 2020 Federal Census. These two factors are primary drivers in the level of taxation a 
community can assess, and property taxation is the primary source of funding for the schools 
and every other critial municipal service. Without Regionalization, each town would have to,
operate its own school system and assume all associated costs regardless of student 
enrollment. Is it fair that, given the above figures, Harwich assumes roughly 75% of school 
costs and Chatham roughly 25%? I doubt that anyone would have projected that those 
percentages could grow well into the 80's for Harwich and drop into the teens for Chatham in 
the not too distant future when the District was being formed. 

While the proposed Monomoy funding amendment draws heavily from the Mt. Greylock 
Agreement, there are key differences. Mt. Greylock utilizes equalized valuation figures in its 
calculation of capital costs and in determining the percentage of Chapter 70 aid to be applied to 
each of the three school budgets under their formula. 

The Agreement between the towns of Manchester-by-the-Sea and Essex utilizes average 
equalized valuation and total town population as per latest Federal Census to determine 
assessment splits for capital costs. They use the same two factors in determining the 
assessment splits for non-instructional operating costs. They utilize average equalized 



valuation and 3-year rolling foundation enrollment to determine assessment splits for 
instructional operating costs. As you can see, student enrollment data is only utilized as part of 
the determination of assessments for operating costs. I think this formula is a strong effort to 
be certain that wealth and affordability factors are taken into consideration in an assessment 
formula aimed at fairness and a goal that the District can maintain a high level of quality in a 
way that matches the affordability of each of the member towns. 

I urge the Board to support the amended funding formula in the Regional Agreement brought 
forward by the School Committee in the interest of financial fairness to Harwich, and to urge 
the School Committee to suggest an amendment in the future to regionalize the elementary 
schools which the Board would support, if Harwich approves the current proposed 
amendments and Chatham does not. 

As importantly, I urge the Board to not delay in urging Chatham to work with it to examine the 
long term budgetary future of the Monomoy Regional School District and the ramifications if 
the current enrollment projections for the two towns continue to play out. At a minimum, the 
current Working Group involving the two towns should vigorously pursue the work of attaining 
a long term solution to funding the schools in a way which keeps the high quality of the 
educational experience for students in the Monomoy District viable. Change in that area will be 
slow and difficult and, as a result, this is a matter that should not be put off. 

Thank you very much for your consideration of my input on these matters. I am happy to 
discuss these matters in greater depth with the Board or its individuals at any time. Please do 
not hesitate to communicate any questions or concerns. 

A copy of the July 8 editorial follows. 

Sincerely, 
Charles Gruszka 

H: 508-432-9013 
C: 774-239-2946 
charlesgruszka@hotmail.com



From: Charles Gruszka <charlesgruszka@hotmail.com>
Sent: Monday, June 21, 2021 5:50 PM 
To: editor@capecodchronicle.com 
Subject: LETTER TO EDITOR 

Editor: 

<editor@capecodchronicle.com>

Since moving to Harwich from Worcester in 2015, I have followed the deliberations of the 
Monomoy Regional School Committee and school budget deliberations very closely. I have 34 
years of experience in public school education, including 24 as a principal, serving at grade 
levels ranging from pre-K to 8, in a five-town regional school district in Massachusetts. I have 
served in a voluntary capacity as a community representative for the 10-year NEASC 
accreditation process for Monomoy Regional High School (MRHS), the Monomoy Regional 
School District (MRSD) Strategic Planning Steering Committee, the School Council of MRHS, and 
a number of other MRSD committees. 

While there is currently a considerable amount of focus on the status of the elementary 
schools, particularly Chatham Elementary School (CES), the financial crisis facing the MRSD is 
one that impacts ALL students at ALL grade levels. 

The MRSD FY'22 school budget approved at recent Town Meetings fell about $620,000 short of 
the amount required to fund all of the District's needs identified by the Administration, as 
presented to the School Committee. Some of the items not included in the budget will impact 
CES. Others will impact the middle and high school, attended by both Chatham and Harwich 
students. The budget did not include these items in order to reach a level of affordability for 
the Town of Harwich. While all other Harwich departments were asked to come in with level 
funded budgets, the Regional School Budget was set by the School Committee at an increase of 
just under 1 percent. Utilizing the funding formula in the Monomoy Regional Agreement, which 
is driven by student enrollment, this resulted in an assessment increase of over 2% for Harwich 
and a substantial decrease in assessment for Chatham. 

Even if Chatham picked up the costs of operating CES, the $620,000 FY'22 budget shortfall of its 
identified needs would not be made up. 

When the MRSD was formed, I don't believe that anyone could have anticipated that student 
enrollment in Chatham would decrease at a pace that is so much more rapid than that in 
Harwich. I believe it was assumed that enrollments would remain stable or increase/decrease 
at close to an equivalent rate in both Towns over time. The enrollment decline in Chatham that 
is far outpacing that in Harwich, and is expected to continue into the foreseeable future, means 
that Harwich will be picking up an increasingly higher percentage of the school budget with 
each passing year. This will mean that even a level funded school budget will generate an 
assessment that Harwich cannot afford. While there will be some cost reductions due to 
declining enrollment, even with Chatham contributing more to the budget to offset the per 



pupil cost of CES, future school budgets will not be able to meet the needs of the MRSD and, at 

the same time, generate an assessment affordable to Harwich. This will result in increased class 

sizes, the cutting of programs and course offerings, and/or an inability to maintain state of the 

art and up to date instructional materials. This will impact the education of Chatham and 

Harwich students equally, and at all grade levels. 

Since Regionalization, from FY12 to FY22, Chatham has never had a year where its school 

assessment has been as high as FY'11, the last year before Regionalization. During that period, 

Chatham has realized a cumulative total of over $16 million in assessment cost lower than its 

last year of operating its own completely separate school system. These are dollars that were 

available to pay for all other Town services cherished by its residents and maintain the lowest 

tax rate on Cape Cod. During the same time period, Harwich has been assessed a cumulative 

total of over $34 million higher than its FY'11 school assessment, the last year prior to 

Regionalization. The differential between the two towns totals over $50 million! 

It is my perspective that maintaining a balance between funding a top-quality education 

program and providing all the other town services that are important to its residents will be a 

significantly greater challenge for Harwich than Chatham in the years ahead. 

When I moved into Harwich and began learning about the schools, I was tremendously 

impressed at the quality of the Monomoy District, enabled by the budget provided by the 

taxpayers of the two Towns. Due to the increasing funding burden on Harwich driven by the 

much sharper decline in enrollment by Chatham, it will not be possible for Harwich to sustain a 

school budget to maintain the current quality and richness of the Monomoy District. While 

Chatham will be able to afford to pay more, that will not be possible under the current funding 

formula or even under a formula in which Chatham picks up the cost differential to operate 

CES. The reality is that Chatham is at the mercy of the affordability level of Harwich in setting 

the District school budget. 

Chatham residents need to be concerned about the quality of the preK-12 educational program 

for the students of its Town. The situation is not as simple as worrying about maintaining an 

elementary school in the Town. Not by any means! 

For the long term, I believe that the funding formula within the Regional Agreement between 

the two Towns needs to be renegotiated to move away from one based almost exclusively upon 

student enrollment to one that better reflects the relative affordability of the two towns. In 

determining a town's minimum contribution toward its school budget, the State intends that 

factors such as personal and property wealth be included in addition to student 

enrollment. However, there is a ceiling to those factors within the formulation that both 

Harwich and Chatham meet, which negates them and makes student enrollment the sole factor 

in determining each town's minimum required contribution. According to the Regional 

Agreement, student enrollment is also the sole determinant of each Town's assessment above 

the minimum. 



While most Regional Agreements in Massachusetts base assessments primarily upon student 
enrollment, the District formed by the two towns of Essex and Manchester-by-the Sea rely on 
average equalized valuation and town population as per the most recent decennial U.S. census 
in their formula for apportioning capital costs and non-instructional operational 
costs. Instructional costs are determined by a combination of average equalized valuation and 
student enrollment. Since each town would have to operate its own school system if not 
regionalized, it would have to assume total capital and operating cost. Ability to raise revenue 
based on property evaluation and taxpayer population would be the key determinants of the 
affordability of the school budget proposed by its school committee. The towns of 
Lanesborough and Williamstown, which form the Mt. Greylock Regional School District, also 
utilize equalized evaluation data in its calculations. What I am proposing is not without 
precedent. 

The current apportionment of costs for the MRSD based on three year rolling average student 
enrollment assesses Harwich at approximately 75% and Chatham at 25% of the costs above 
minimum required contribution (which, as explained above, is determined almost exclusively by 
student enrollment.) However, looking at the 2010 U.S. Census data on the two towns, 
Harwich population is 12,243 (66.65%) and Chatham is 6,125 (33.35%) of the total combined 
population of 18,368. As for equalized valuation data for FY'21, Harwich total valuation was 
$5,973,169,000 (44.64%) and Chatham equaled $7,406,455,520 (55.36%) of the two-Town total 
of $13,379,624,520. 

As can be seen, using total town population and/or equalized valuation data in the calculation 
of the respective assessments to the Towns above minimum required contribution would 
generate a much different, and, I would argue, fairer apportionment of the costs to operate the 
MRSD than the current Regional Agreement. 

Joint meetings of the Select Boards, Finance Committees, Finance Directors, and Town 
Managers of Harwich and Chatham should be occurring on an ongoing basis working toward 
recommending to the voters of the two Towns an amended formula for determining school 
assessments beyond minimum required contribution for the two Towns. The recommended 
amended formula should utilize factors beyond student enrollment, like total equalized 
valuation and total population that take ability to pay into consideration. I would recommend a 
consideration of the Essex and Manchester-by-the-Sea assessment formula as a good starting 
point for such deliberations. 

For the sake of maintaining the current high-quality preK-12 education experience for all of the 
students of both Towns in the MRSD, the elected and appointed officials of both Towns are 
urged to be open to negotiating a new funding formula that will generate assessments that 
match the ability to pay of both Towns, rather than be driven by the financial limitations of 
Harwich, as is the current situation. In addition to that of the elementary schools, the middle 
school and high school educational experience for the students of both Towns lies in the 
balance . 



Sincerely, 
Charles Gruszka 
6 Teaberry Avenue 
Harwich, MA 02645 
FI: 508-432-9013 
C: 774-239-2946 





1 

 

Law Office of Singer & Singer, LLC 
  26 Upper County Road 

   P. O. Box 67 

  Dennisport, Massachusetts 02639 

          

         Andrew L. Singer        Tel: (508) 398-2221 

      Marian S. Rose           Fax: (508) 398-1568 

               _____                                                                                                                             www.singer-law.com 

 

         Myer R. Singer (1938-2020)  

 

 
 November 9, 2021 

 

Via Email 

 

Harwich Select Board 

732 Main Street 

Harwich, MA 02645 

 

 Re:  Chloe’s Path, Harwich 

 

Dear Members of the Board: 

 

In connection with the proposed Local Initiative Program (LIP) Affordable Housing Community at the 

above property, I am writing in advance of our next meeting with the Board on November 15, 2021, with 

responses to comments discussed by the Board at its meeting on November 1, 2021. 

 

The Applicant appreciates the Board’s continued due diligence in reviewing this proposal over several 

meetings.  As has the Board, the Applicant has attempted to be transparent in all of its dealings with the Town 

and the community.  This has included several meetings with Town Staff and the Select Board as well as an 

open meeting held with members of the community and follow-up meetings and conversations with several 

individual neighbors.  Whether this proposal continues as a LIP or not, the Applicant will remain available to 

speak with interested community members throughout the Board of Appeals Comprehensive Permit process. 

 

As with any negotiated agreement, if one is reached, neither side will be able to achieve all of its 

initial desires.  Compromise is the nature of such an Agreement.  At the same time, the nature of M.G.L. 

Chapter 40B is that zoning laws in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts have historically constricted and 

prohibited the ability to construct needed affordable housing.  As such, density is the principal driver for 

successfully increasing affordable housing stock in our communities.  This is so because it is the market rate 

units in a development that subsidize the construction and operation of the deed-restricted units.  Projects 

proposed by nonprofit organizations and public agencies can often provide increased affordability and more 

flexibility on size because the proponents have the ability to access grants and low-interest loans, which are 

subsidized by State and Federal Governments.  By way of contrast, private parties proposing affordable 

housing through M.G.L. Chapter 40B must be able to commercially finance a project and make it 

economically feasible on their own.  The economics of such proposals are fundamentally different. 

 

As for the permitting order of such a development itself, we respectfully ask the Board members to 

recognize that a project has to start somewhere.  This is inherent in the development process, and there is 

nothing nefarious about it.  The requirements of each regulatory agency that has jurisdiction must be complied 

or a project does not get built. This means that if every regulator approves a project save one, the project does 

not get built.  The approval of any one regulatory agency does not bind or prejudice any other body. 

 

http://www.singer-law.com/


2 

 

 

 The following issue areas will be discussed herein in greater detail, per the concerns outlined by the 

Select Board members at their meeting of November 1, 2021: 

 

1. Density, Affordability, Rents, and Local Preference; 

2. Building Height; 

3. Screening, Sidewalks, and Lighting; 

4. Occupancy and Buildings; 

5. Wastewater and DEP; 

6. Wetland Protection, MESA, and Open Space; and 

7. Traffic Study. 

 

1. Density, Affordability, Rents, and Local Preference 

 

While we recognize the desires of several to significantly reduce the scope of the proposal, the 

proposed ninety-six (96) units are needed in order to make this affordable housing development 

economically feasible.  However, in addition to the twenty-four (24) deed-restricted 80% AMI units, 

the Applicant is able and willing to commit to further restrict an additional eight (8) units as so-

called workforce housing limited to households earning no more than 120% of AMI.  This will 

result in a new total of thirty-two (32), or one-third (33%), of the new housing units, being deed 

restricted as part of this proposal.  This compromise to provide restricted affordability in excess of that 

required by M.G.L. Chapter 40B is in response to concerns raised while still enabling the project to 

remain viable. 

 

As previously testified, there is also a strong demand for market rate rentals on Cape Cod generally 

and Harwich specifically.  The proposed combination of 80% AMI units, 120% AMI units, and 

market rate units will help meet all of these demands.  This development will benefit Harwich and 

Lower Cape residents. 

 

The Applicant agrees to a condition that the development will remain rental housing and will 

not be converted to condominium form of ownership for individual unit sales. 

 

The Applicant agrees to a condition that there will be a maximum 70% local preference for 

Harwich residents at the time of initial lease-up as allowed by State law. 

 

There were several critical comments about the proposal being too luxury for Harwich.  The provision 

of underground parking, on-site amenities, and a leasing office should be welcome for the quality of 

housing it will provide for all residents.  This is not a short-term rental facility.  By law, the deed-

restricted units are limited to year-round housing.  The Applicant agrees to a condition that the 

remaining units will be limited to ten-to-twelve-month leases and further that there shall be no 

short-term, furnished rentals that would be similar in nature to Vacation Rentals By Owner 

(VRBO) or AirBNB rentals. 

 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is designated as the reviewer and approver of appraisals and the 

pro forma for Comprehensive Permit proposals.  This is not within the jurisdiction of the Town. 

Notwithstanding this, the Applicant voluntarily shared its private market feasibility analysis with the 

Board and public.  Market rents are market rents.  No one knows what they will be in two-three years 

when this development will be operational.  They might be higher. They might be lower.  But in any 

event, they will be what the market will bear. This is axiomatic. Attached hereto is a Memorandum 

from Brian Bush further discussing rental philosophy. 

 

From the very beginning, the Applicant decided to propose this development because they feel it 

responds to an urgent need. No one gets wealthy building affordable housing.  Not only are profits 
capped by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, but even approaching such maximum cap would be 

welcome news to most affordable housing developers.  This development is an investment in the  



3 

 

 

future of Harwich and Cape Cod.  It is compliant with the laws surrounding such developments and 

will be a win-win for all. 

 

2. Building Height 

 

The height of the buildings (three residential stories on top of the parking level and 42 ft. 10 in. at the 

main entrance/53 ft. 10 in. at the rear walkout) is compatible and comparable with the immediate 

neighborhood not only because the buildings will be set at a lower topography, surrounded by woods, 

and almost 100% screened from public ways as demonstrated by the perspective renderings, but also 

because they will be similar in height and massing with the adjacent Fire and Police Station complex 

(40 ft. and 39.3 ft., respectively, at their main entrances and taller at the rear walkouts) as well as the 

Elementary School (44 ft.) and Cultural Center (45.1 ft.) located directly across the street.  In addition, 

by way of further reference in Harwich, if the property was located in the RH-3 Zoning District, which 

allows up to four stories and fifty feet of height, building height as calculated in the Harwich Zoning 

By-Law would be conforming.  In this instance, a waiver for building height is warranted to be 

granted by the Board of Appeals as part of the Comprehensive Permit review. 

 

3. Screening, Sidewalks, and Lighting 

 

The Applicant is willing to construct a fence and/or plantings along the rear boundaries of the 

five abutting house lots on Sisson Road, if the owners so desire. 

 

The Applicant is willing to make a reasonable contribution to the Harwich Sidewalk Fund.  

However, it is not reasonable for one applicant to reconstruct an ADA-compliant sidewalk along the 

entire, approximately 1.3-mile distance from Route 28 to Main Street in Harwich Center. 

 

The Applicant will comply with all lighting requirements of the Town of Harwich, including 

shielded, down-lit, dark-sky-compliant fixtures with no light glare off site. 

 

4. Occupancy and Buildings 

 

The proposal is for a total of 144 bedrooms.  Per MA regulations, this could result in a maximum 

occupancy on site of 288 people.  This number, however, is never likely to be met, in part because 

most of the fifty-eight (58) one-bedroom units will likely have one person, not two, most of the time. 

 

There has been a revolution in electric heat.  It is no longer the money-sink that it used to be.  In fact, 

many housing developments are now proposing electric heat because it is cost efficient and more 

environmentally friendly.  Electric heat-pump technology is some of the most efficient heating 

available in single family homes and apartments.  All energy types (coal, gas, oil, hydro, solar, wind) 

can be converted by power suppliers to electricity.  Heating systems that rely on gas (propane or 

natural gas) and oil are fossil fuels that can only heat with those fuels which limit flexibility in energy 

sources and pollute more than clean energy technologies such as wind and solar.  Electric heat is the 

responsible choice for heating of this type of building, and the Applicant is committed to this decision.  

In addition, the Applicant plans to incorporate roof-based solar equipment to take care of some of the 

building electricity needs. 

 

The buildings will be sprinkled.  The Fire Department owns equipment that can service the buildings 

as designed.  There will be a hardened surface around the buildings providing 360-degree fire safety 

vehicle access. 

 

5. Wastewater and DEP 

 
This proposal will better protect the water quality of the Saquatucket Estuary than the permitted by-

right development of seven homes on the property.  This may seem counter-intuitive, but it is not.  By  



4 

 

 

right, thirty (30) bedrooms can be built on the property with absolutely no requirement to treat for 

nitrogen.  The seven homes would be served by conventional Title 5 septic systems.  By contrast, this 

development requires approval of a Groundwater Discharge Permit from the MA DEP.  MA DEP 

requires that there be no net new introduction of nitrogen in the estuary by the development.  Thus, 

where the by-right development would result in fifty-three and a third (53.3) additional pounds of 

nitrogen annually entering the estuary, the proposed development will result in zero (0) additional 

pounds of nitrogen annually entering the estuary. 

 

As required by law, the Applicant will comply with all requirements of MA DEP.  Attached is a 

Memorandum from J.M. O’Reilly & Associates discussing this topic in more detail. 

 

In addition and as previously testified, the Applicant supports connecting to the future sewer on 

Sisson Road and will design the wastewater treatment facility to be easily connected up when 

available. 

 

6. Wetland Protection, MESA, and Open Space 

 

Wetlands will be protected, and the on-site open space is proposed to create wildlife corridor space 

nearest the wetlands.  As previously discussed, Lot 8 between the development and Forest Road was 

deeded to the Town of Harwich and is now conservation land. 

 

The Applicant will comply with all requirements of MESA.  The Applicant has been in 

conversation with MESA about a potential amendment to the conservation area as authorized by the 

prior restriction document.  However, this process cannot be formally completed first because the 

Applicant is caught in a Catch-22.  They cannot give up their current rights before knowing that they 

will have a replacement development.  This is why conditional approvals are sought.  Ironically, if the 

Applicant were to build the seven homes and seven septic systems on the property and then go back to 

MESA and DEP to change to the current proposal, they would receive a benefit in not having to 

improve wastewater to the level proposed. 

 

7. Traffic Study 

 

The Applicant will conduct a complete traffic study, including seasonal adjustments. 

 

 The Applicant respectfully submits that the Chloe’s Path Housing proposal will be a positive 

development that will meet an urgent, unmet need for rental housing and that the proposal can be conditioned 

appropriately to address concerns raised.  The Applicant appreciates your continued time and consideration 

and requests that the Board vote to support the LIP proposal. 

 

Thank you. 

 

       Very truly yours, 

         Andrew L. Singer 

         Andrew L. Singer 

ALS/a 

Attachments 
 

 
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

THIS E-MAIL CONTAINS PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY 

NAMED ABOVE.  IF THE READER IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT OR THE EMPLOYEE OR AGENT RESPONSIBLE FOR DELIVERING IT TO THE 

INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION OR COPYING OF THIS E-MAIL IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  IF 

YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS IN ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY US BY TELEPHONE AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL TO US AT 

BMOSSEY@SINGER-LAW.COM.  THANK YOU.   

 

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS OR PROBLEMS WITH RECEPTION, PLEASE CALL (508) 398-2221. 



Brian C. Bush 
Heritage Properties 

100 Merrimack Street #401 
Lowell, MA 01852 

978-458-0001 x 101 
bbush@heritageprop.net 

 

 

To:  Harwich Select Board 

From:  Brian Bush 

RE:  Chloe’s Path 

Date:  November 5, 2021 

 

 

I am writing to clarify two issues that were voiced at the Board's meeting on November 1, 2021: 1. The 

sale of Matrix, Heritage Properties’s 40b project in Hudson, MA, and 2. Market rents at a proposed 40b 

project in Brewster, as well as market rents in the mid and lower-Cape region. 

 

1. Though not specifically relevant to this proposed development, the question was asked why we 

sold Matrix,  our Hudson 40b project, and how long it took to develop.  The project took 4  years 

to re-permit, build, and lease up.  We sold the project in July 2018. Matrix was comprised of 176 

apartment units, a leasing office, a community room, outdoor recreation space, and an indoor 

storage building. The principals in the project were myself, a developer I know who wanted to 

retire, and an investor.  The investor and other developer had the right to force a sale in the 

event the investor could not be paid off within a certain time frame.  The three of us originally 

intended to refinance the project to return some, or all, of the investor’s capital, but bank 

interest rates were rising significantly during the winter of 2018, while capitalization rates 

remained stable.  As a result, there was more value in a sale at that time than in a refinance.  

The other two principals opted for a sale and that’s what happened.  It was  a good investment 

for all of us, though I had wished to keep the project if I had my choice.   The Chloe’s Path 

project will be different because it will be under my control and my intention is to own and 

manage it for a long time.  As I’ve mentioned, that is our typical strategy, evidenced by 

ownership of the first apartment complex purchased by  our company in 1978. 

 

2. At a previous meeting, Chairman Michael MacAskill asked why there is disparity in proposed 

market rents for the Eastward Homes project in Brewster compared to our project at Chloe’s 

Path.  I reached out to the principal at Eastward Homes and I was provided some information.  

As Mr. MacAskill mentioned in the November 1st meeting,  he and I did speak about what I 

found out about this proposed project in Brewster. In summary, the appraisal report indicates 

an extreme need for apartment housing due to a significant lack of housing availability on Cape 

Cod.  The appraiser examined eight comparable properties, most of which were 28 to 48 units in 

size, all of them on the Cape, and most of them are well over 20 years old. Most of the projects 

had no amenities and none had under-building parking.  The appraiser also frequently 

referenced  the “lack of competitive supply on Cape Cod” and expressed the likely need to look 

off-Cape, particularly Plymouth, to get good market comparable product, especially for three-

bedroom units, but the appraiser did not use that product to develop comparable rents.  In 

short, the comparable properties used by Eastward’s appraiser are not comparable to our 



 

 

proposed project: they have no covered parking, no on-site management, little or no amenity 

space, and they’re old. 

 

As far as market rents go, we ultimately get what the market will bear, but in all cases, we need 

to rent the units.  Our rent projections are based on our research of the market, as well as that 

of our consultant, Tracy Cross Associates.  The projections are backed up by data, not “feelings” 

about affordability. Comparable rental properties are listed in the Tracy Cross report.  At all of 

our apartments, we screen for income, credit-worthiness and criminal record. Rent can never be 

above 35% of a household’s income, and the applicant needs to have good credit and a clean 

background.  Our data indicates that there is a significant need for the housing we propose and, 

if you do the math, the hourly wage of people who can afford our market-rate units is between 

$33.32 to $54.52 per hour for single-earner households and $16.67 to $27.26 for two-earner 

households.  These are not outrageously high wages.  Our projections, based on actual data by 

the Federal government's Department of Housing and Urban Development, is that our market-

rate units will be affordable to people making 111% to 153% of Area Median Income.  This is not 

preposterous, it is attainable.  If it is not attainable, we will lower the rents.  It’s that simple. I 

would not risk the capital cost of this project if I did not believe the project to be feasible.  

 

 



TPA J.M. O'REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING, LAND SURVEYING & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

Site Development • Property Line • Subdivision • Sanitary • Land Court • Environmental Permitting 

MEMORANDUM 
JMO-3812A 

Date: November 4, 2021 

RE: Wastewater 
Chloe's Path — Affordable Housing 
Harwich, MA 

From: John O'Reilly, P.E., P.L.S. 
J.M. O'REILLY & ASSOCAITES, I 

J.M. O'REILLY & ASSOCIATES, INC. offers the flowing narrative of the status of the wastewater for the proposed 

affordable housing complex on Sisson Road, known as Chloe's Path. The proposed project calls for 144 bedrooms 

for a total wastewater flow of 15,840 gpd (110 gpd per bedroom). 

The wastewater flow of 15,840 gpd triggers the requirement of a Groundwater Discharge Permit (GWDP) application 

to the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MADEP). The typical Title 5 Sanitary Regulations 

are not applicable to the project, once the wastewater exceeds 10,000 gpd. 

The majority of the parcel is mapped to be within the Saquatucket Harbor Embayment. The remaining portion of 

the parcel, adjacent to Sisson Road, is mapped to be within the Herring River Estuary. Both the Satquatucket 

embayment and the Herring River embayment are identified as impaired embayments (excessive Nitrogen Load), as 

outlined in their respective Massachusetts Estuary Project Report. 

In accordance with Massachusetts Regulation 314 CMR 4.00: Massachusetts Surface Water Quality Standard; if an 

embayment is identified as an impaired waterbody, the issuance of a Groundwater Discharge Permit (314 CMR 5.00) 

can only be completed if the proposed project does not add any nitrogen to the impaired embayments. In order for 

the Project to receive a GWDP, the MADEP is going to require the proposed project demonstrate that there is a Zero-

Net Nitrogen load to either embayment. 

The first step in developing an application for a GWDP is to prepare a Hydrological Report of the parcel in which the 

characteristics of the groundwater is determined. The flow direction, groundwater elevations and quality are all 

determined during the Hydrological Report process. The installation of groundwater monitoring well network will 

be used to determine the groundwater characteristics as well as the location of the divide between the two 

embayments. Once the applicable embayment is determined, the project will need to offset the proposed nitrogen 

load within that specific embayment. 

Once the Hydrological Report is completed and approved by MADEP, the applicable embayment will have been 

identified. At that point in the application process, the Applicant can then begin to determine how best to seek the 

Zero-Net Nitrogen can be accomplished. One approach the Applicant could take would be to seek to work with 

other property owners, within the applicable embayment, and remediate (treat) the wastewater being generated 

by the respective parcel, on such parcel. 

In conclusion, for Chloe's Path to obtain the required GWDP, the project must demonstrate that the impaired 

embayment will NOT receive ANY additional nitrogen as a result of the wastewater from the project. 

Thank you 

1573 MAIN STREET, P.O. Box 1773, BREWSTER, MA 02631 • PHONE: (508) 896-6601 • FAX: (508) 896-6602 
WWW.JMOREILLYASSOC.COM 



Judith Underwood 
220 Sisson Road  

Harwich, MA 02645  
  

  
November 15, 2021  
  
Board of Selectmen Town 
of Harwich  
Harwich Town Hall  
VIA EMAIL  
  
RE:  Chloe’s Path 40B Project  
  
Chairman MacAskil and Members of the Board,  
  
I live at 220 Sisson Road, directly across from Chloe’s Path.  In full disclosure I serve as a Harwich 
Water & Wastewater Commissioner and as a Trustee on the Harwich Affordable Housing Trust, and 
I am an enormous advocate for both Clean Water and Affordable Housing.  I write this letter with a 
heavy heart and a lot of anxiety for my children and the Town’s future – so I will make my points 
concise and direct. It’s caused me enormous agita every time I try to write so please accept my 
letter with great appreciation for all you do. 
 
1) First, and with all due respect Chairman MacAskil you are incorrect in believing that the Forever 

Wild Covenant declared in the Barnstable Registry of Deeds Bk 29940 Pg 256 can be amended – 
it cannot. According to #22 Ammendments, Waivers, and Assignments of Rights. “With the 
exception of 1.E (Forever Wild Area) the DECLARANT, from time to time, shall have the right 
to waive, alter, or amend…there is NO exception for the Forever Wild Covenant” – it is as it is 
stated, and as Attorney Ford has stated.  There are “from time to time” amendments that can 
be made but NOT the Forever Wild Covenant. Please do not bring the Town of Harwich into a 
litigious situation. 

 
2) The stabilization design that Engineer O’Reilly presented to the Planning Board was NOT carried 

out.  Indeed, the developer ceased the employment of Engineer O’Reilly right after the Planning 
Board Meeting so he had no oversight, and the Town offices that were contacted to come and 
observe the dumping that was being done at the sight did not show.  I, and others, maintain 
that the hill there is not stabilized correctly and could wash away, or worse create a landslide 
(which we have seen out of California in similar situations), and injure or kill anyone in its path. 

 
3) Sisson Road in front of my house is a 40 mile an hour road.  The cars already back up from the 

elementary school pickup making a single lane which is dangerous for the police and fire 
fighters to do their work.  Having 200 – 250 cars going in and out of there are a lot of headlights 
on my front rooms, anytime a right-hand turn is made out of Chloe’s Path.  A left hand turn out 
of Chloe’s Path, any time of year, is dangerous as the driver’s (40 miles an hour) cannot see 



Judith Underwood 
220 Sisson Road  

Harwich, MA 02645  
  

coming up the hill from Town Center.  From May through September, we cannot take left hand 
turns out of our property because the traffic is so heavy.  How will adding an additional 200 – 
250 cars help the already challenging traffic situation in the Town Center? Lastly, how will this 
impact the ability of our Police and Fire Departments to do their jobs quickly and safely? 

 
4) The developers still have not identified where on the property the Turtle protection will be.  I 

would like you all to see the attached proposal submitted by Engineer O’Reilly in October of 
2016.  Please note the Turtle Protection Area – it’s now been cleared and the soil, plowed… 

 
5) Lastly, with regards to the Waste-Water Management. While I believe they could obtain the 

permit needed (it is a 40B), it will come at a cost in some part of the area.  I do not believe they 
can afford in their business plan to have a zero nitrogen system put in place – they are 
extremely costly.  Instead, it appears from Engineer O’Reilly’s remarks that they will either 
purchase/lease additional land that is unused and do a nitrogen credit swap.  In some areas this 
might be appealing, in this location however it will not keep down the eutrophication process. 
On paper they will be “doing the right thing” but in reality, that nitrogen will head right to 
Saquatucket Harbor. 

 
Thank you for your time and please go back to #1 and review very closely.  I put myself through 
NYU Graduate School working for an attorney who was the Pre-Law Dean.  He was a stickler for 
language, and the Forever Wild Areas language is not to be interpreted. It is final in its wording.  
Attorney Michael Ford is spot on, and as the Town of Harwich is part and parcel to this property (lot 
8 Conservation) we must be diligent in our steps forward and support what the Planning Board 
allowed five years ago. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Judith 
 
 
CC:  Joseph Powers, Town Administrator  
Meggan Eldridge, Asst. Town Administrator  
Harwich Board of Appeals  
Harwich Conservation Commission  
Amy Usowski, Conservation Commission  
Senator Julian Cyr  
Representative Sarah Peake  

  
    
  



KEY MAP

LOCUS

MA

NOT TO SCALE

ASSESSORS' MAP 31, PARCEL D-4
DEED BOOK 17492 PAGE 70

LOUIS J. SEMINARA, JR., TRUSTEE

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT
MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE
SIDE AND REAR YARD SETBACK
FRONT YARD SETBACK
MINIMUM FRONTAGE
MINIMUM AREA
ZONE

30 FEET
15%

20 FEET
25 FEET

150 FEET
40,000 SF

RL (RESIDENTIAL-LOW DENSITY)

Main 

Street

Parallel 

 Street

Siss
on

 Ro
ute

Ro
ad

39 & 
124

Route 1
2
4 Route 39

Forest
Street

S
outh

Street

QUIVET NECK REALTY TRUST

ASSESSORS' MAP 31, PARCEL D-3
DEED BOOK 1412 PAGE 465

ARTHUR P. DOANE, JR.
VIRGINIA DOANE

PRELIMINARY GRID SUBDIVISION PLAN

NOT A BUILDABLE LOT

LOT 2
40,136 SF

LOT 3
40,026 SF

LOT 4
42,317 SF

LOT 5
49,293 SF

LOT 6
59,935 SF

LOT 7
44,080 SF

LOT 8

DONOVAN BUILDING CORPORATION

PLAN OF LAND

FOR

HARWICH, MASSACHUSETTS

JMO-3812A

IN

SCALE 1"=60' OCTOBER 2, 2015

0 12060 180

CONCEPTUAL

G:\\AAJobs\DONOVAN\3812A-PREL.MODIFIED GRID ENVELOPS.dwg

LOT 1

SHOWING PROPOSED LIMIT OF ACTIVITY

AREA CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL PARCEL AREA 576,920 SF± (13.24 AC±)
TOTAL WETLAND AREA 170,660 SF± (3.91 AC±)
TOTAL UPLAND AREA 406,260 SF± (9.33 AC±)
AREA OF LOTS 1-8 (FOR HOMES) 143,064 SF± (3.28 AC±)
AREA OF ROAD 50,196 SF± (1.15 AC±)
AREA OF TEMPORARY DISTURBANCE 30,197 SF± (0.69 SC±)
TOTAL OF DISTURBED LOTS AND ROAD 223,458 SF± (5.13 AC±)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: (AFTER REVEGETATION OF TEMPORARY AREAS)
576,920 - 193260 = 383,660 SF± 
8.80 AC± OR  66.5 %

UPLAND OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:
406,260 - 193260 = 213,000 SF±
4.89 AC± OR 52.4 %

TOTAL UPLAND AREA LEFT IN NATURAL STATE
(INCLUDES PERMANENT AND TEMPORARY ALTERATIONS)

406,260 - 223,458 = 182,802 SF±
4.20 AC± OR 45.0%

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 5

0
' W

ID
E 

RI
G
H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

SI
SS

ON 
 R

OAD

FO
RE

S
T 

RO
ADAREA OF ROADWAY, UTILITIES, HOME 

CONSTRUCTION, ASSOCIATED GRADING FOR THE 
HOMES INCLUDING THE UTILITIES
AREA = 187,153 SF±

34

35

36

30
28

31

33 32

27

29

22

23
24

25

26

100 FOOT BUFFER ZONE

50 FOOT BUFFER ZONE

20

21

14

13

15

17
18

19

16

10

11A

11

10A

100 FOOT BUFFER ZONE

50 FOOT BUFFER ZONE

7

12

6

SOP3

SOP4

9 8

3

4

5

SOP2

SOP1

1

2

PARCEL D-3

AREA OF TEMPORARY DISTURBANCE ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE ROAD CONSTRUCTION TO BE REVEGETED 
BACK TO NATIVE SHRUB COMMUNITY,
AREA = 30,197 SF±

LOT 9
WETLAND

Over
gro

wn  
 Bog

Top  of  Inla
nd  Bank

Overgrown
   Bog

AREA OF TURTLE PROTECTION AREA
AREA = 101,100 SF±

TURTLE PROTECTION AREA OCTOBER 2, 2015

markcooperman
Polygon

markcooperman
Typewritten Text
PROPOSED STOCKPILE AREAFENCE AND SWEEP 2016

markcooperman
Polygon

markcooperman
Typewritten Text
AREA OF TEMPORARY DISTURBANCEMOVE EXISTING EXCLUSION FENCE &CONDUCT ROAD SHOULDER WORK AFTER NOV.15 AND REPLACE FENCE WHEN COMPLETE

markcooperman
Polygon

markcooperman
Text Box
CONSTRUCTION ACCESS/STAGING AREAPROPOSED WINTER WORK AFTER NOV.15REPLACE FENCE WHEN COMPLETED(See Photos)



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         


	01 - 11.22.21 - Agenda
	02 - New Business
	03 - Annual Committee Presentations
	04 - Annual Report Harwich Cultural Council  2020 - BOS Report
	05 -Annual Finance Committee Report to Selectman 11-11-21
	06 - Annual meeting - Finance
	07 - Memo - Financial assessment of town
	08 - Monomoy Regional School District Agreement Proposed Amendments
	09 - Proclamation (2)
	10 - MEMO - Rate increases for snow plow contractors
	10.1 - Recommendation to Increase Private Plow Rates 11-15-202
	11 - Event Application - Chamber of Commerce
	12 - Harwich_FY22_AwdDocs (Award Letters and Checklist)
	13 - Harwich RDP Contract
	15 - Old Business
	16 - MEMO - Update on various town properties
	17 - Contracts
	18 - Motorola Solutions for $177,400.90 for the purchase of portable radios for the police and fire departments
	19 - GHD Sewer Contract Memo
	19.1 - Harwich_CWMP_Agreement_rev01
	20 - Harwich_Agreement_-_Route_28 (1)
	21 - Town Administrator's Report
	22 - Post Procurement Checklist
	23 - Monthly Treasurer-Collector Report
	24 - OSD MA ITT-57 Co MIRS Radio Upgrade Program - $19609.80
	25 - Correspondence
	26 - MRSD letter - Mr. Gruszka
	27 - Chloe's Path - 11.9.21 Harwich Board of Selectmen Email Letter (Chloe's Path, Harwich)
	28 - Chloe's Path - BCB Memorandum (11.5.2021)
	29 - Chloe's Path - JMO-Wastewater Memo (11.4.2021)
	30- Chloe's Path - JUnderwood_Chloes_HarwichBoS_Nov_15_2021
	31 - Chloe's Path - 3812A.GRID SUBDIVISION & DISTURBED ARAS WITH TURTLE  PROTECTION AREA  Re... (1)
	32 - Chloe's Path - D618



